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VISION 
STATEMENT

ENLIGHTEN THE FUTURE 
THROUGH EXCELLENCE, 
COMMITMENT, INTEGRITY 
AND HONESTY

MISSION
STATEMENT

TO BECOME LEADING POWER 
PRODUCER WITH SYNERGY 
OF CORPORATE CULTURE 
AND VALUES THAT RESPECT 
COMMUNITY AND ALL OTHER 
STAKEHOLDERS
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Notice is hereby given that Annual General Meeting of the Members of Nishat Power Limited (the 
“Company”) will be held on October 26, 2019 (Saturday) at 11:30 A.M. at Emporium Mall, The Nishat 
Hotel, Trade and Finance Centre Block, Near Expo Centre, Abdul Haq Road, Johar Town, Lahore, to 
transact the following business: 

1.	 To  receive, consider  and  adopt  the  Annual Audited Un-Consolidated and Consolidated 
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended  June 30, 2019 with the Chairman 
Review, Directors’ and Auditors’ reports thereon.

2.	 To appoint statutory Auditors for the year ending June 30, 2020 and fix their remuneration. 
 

	 BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

LAHORE 	 KHALID MAHMOOD CHOHAN
September 18, 2019	 (Company Secretary)

NOTES:

BOOK CLOSURE NOTICE:-

The Ordinary Shares Transfer Books of  the  Company  will  remain  closed from 19-10-2019 to 
26-10-2019 (both  days  inclusive) for attending and voting at Annual General Meeting. Physical 
transfers/ CDS Transactions IDs received in order in all respect up to 1:00 p.m. on 18-10-2019 at 
Share Registrar, Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt) Ltd, 7-Bank Square, Lahore, will be considered in 
time for attending of meeting.

A member eligible to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member his / her proxy to 
attend and vote instead of him/her. Proxies in order to be effective must reach the Company’s registered 
office not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting. Proxies of the Members through 
CDC shall be accompanied with attested copies of their CNIC. In case of corporate entity, the Board’s 
Resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature shall be furnished along with proxy form to the 
Company. The shareholders through CDC are requested to bring original CNIC, Account Number and 
Participant Account Number to produce at the time of attending the meeting.

Shareholders are requested to immediately notify the change in address, if any.

TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS THROUGH EMAIL:

In pursuance of the directions given by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) 
vide SRO 787 (I)/2014 dated September 8, 2014, those shareholders who desire to receive Annual 
Financial Statements in future through email instead of receiving the same by post are advised to 
give their formal consent along with their valid email address on a standard request form which is 
available at the Company’s website i.e. www.nishatpower.com and send the said form duly signed 
by the shareholder along with copy of his/her CNIC to the Company’s Share Registrar M/s Hameed 



NISHAT POWER LIMITED 7

Majeed Associates (Pvt) Limited. Please note that giving email address for receiving of Annual Financial 
Statements instead of receiving the same by post is optional, in case you do not wish to avail this 
facility please ignore this notice, Financial Statements will be sent in compact disk to the registered 
address of the shareholders.

UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND / SHARES

Shareholders who have not collected their dividend/physical shares so far are advised to contact our 
Share Registrar to collect/enquire about their unclaimed dividend or shares, if any. 

VIDEO CONFERENCE FACILITY	

In terms of the Companies Act, 2017, members residing in a city holding at least 10% of the total 
paid up share capital may demand the facility of video-link for participating in the annual general 
meeting. The request for video-link facility shall be received by the Share Registrar at the address given 
hereinabove at least 7 days prior to the date of the meeting.

Statement Under Rule 4(2) of the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or 
Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017

Name of Investee Company Lalpir Solar Power (Pvt) Limited (LSPL)
Total Investment Approved: Equity investment upto Rupees 278.460 million 

was approved by members in Annual General 
Meeting on October 26, 2018.

Amount of Investment Made to date: Nil
Reasons for deviations from the approved 
timeline of investment, where investment 
decision was to be implemented in specified 
time:

In previous financial year, LSPL has obtained the 
approval from NTDCL for Grid Interconnection 
Study. During the year, the NEPRA has given 
generation license to LSPL.

Subsequently, LSPL applied to Central Power 
Purchasing Agency (CPPA) for consent to 
Purchase Power from this project called, Power 
Acquisition Request (PAR). Once the PAR is 
given, LSPL shall apply for the tariff as per policy 
announced by the government.

Material change in financial statements 
of associated company or associated 
undertaking since date of the resolution 
passed for approval of investment in such 
company:

At the time of approval, as per available latest 
audited financial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2018, the basic loss per share was 
Rs.1.63 and breakup value per share was Rs. 
1.73. As per latest available annual audited  
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 
2019 the basic profit per share is Rs. 1.45 and 
breakup value per share is Rs.3.18.
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW
With gratitude, I would like to appreciate the trust and support forwarded by our stakeholders which 
helped the Company to post earnings per share of Rs 10.65 in current year as compared to Rs 9.07 
last year. 

The composition of the Board of Directors reflects mix of varied backgrounds and rich experience in 
the fields of business, finance and banking.

The Board provides strategic direction and is always available for guidance to the management. The 
Board approves the budget and ensures that a competent and energetic team is in position to achieve 
the goals set and ensures compliance of all regulatory requirements by the Management. The Board 
has developed a risk management framework after identification of risks and mitigating measures 
specific to the Company. 

The Board is ably assisted by its Committees, where Audit Committee reviews the financial statements 
and ensures that the accounts fairly represent the financial position of the Company by ensuring 
effectiveness of internal controls, while, the HR Committee overviews HR policy framework and 
recommends selection and compensation of senior management team.

Summarizing my review, I am pleased with the Board’s overall performance and their effective role 
played in achieving the Company‘s objectives.

CHAIRMAN
Lahore: September 18, 2019
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DIRECTORS’ 
REPORT

The Board of Directors of Nishat Power Limited (The 
Company) is pleased to present Annual Report with the 
Audited Financial Statements of the Company together 
with Auditors’ Report thereon for the financial year ended 
June 30, 2019.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY:

The principal activity of the Company is to build, own, operate and maintain a fuel fired power plant 
based on Reciprocating Engine Technology having gross capacity of 200MW in Jamber Kalan, Tehsil 
Pattoki, District Kasur, Punjab, Pakistan.

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The Company had turnover of Rs 15,582 million (2018: Rs 16,929 million) during the year against 
operating cost of Rs 10,584 million (2018: Rs 12,707 million) resulting in a gross profit of Rs 4,998 
million (2018: Rs 4,222 million). The current year’s net profit after tax amounts to Rs 3,770 million 
resulting earnings per share of Rs 10.65 compared to previous year’s profit after tax of Rs 3,211 million 
and earnings per share of Rs 9.07.

We would like to draw your attention to emphasis of matter paragraph of the independent auditors’ 
report to the members which refers to an amount of Rs 816 million (2018: Rs 816 million) relating to 
capacity purchase price, included in trade debts, not acknowledged by National Transmission and 
Despatch Company Limited (‘NTDCL’). Further details are  mentioned in note 17.2 of the annexed 
financial statements. Based on the favourable Expert determination and International Arbitration 
Award, management strongly feels that under the terms of the PPA and Implementation Agreement, 
the above amount is likely to be recovered by the company. Consequently, no provision for the above 
mentioned amount has been made in these financial statements.

NTDCL continues to default on its payment obligations. The Company took up the matter with NTDCL 
and Private Power & Infrastructure Board (‘PPIB’) by giving notices of default pursuant to provisions 
of Power Purchase Agreement and Implementation Agreement.  The Company is facing the risk of 
increased receivables due to overall challenge of circular debt plaguing the Power Sector operating in 
Pakistan. For other risks being faced by the Company, please refer to note 36 of the annexed financial 
statements.

Total receivables from NTDCL on June 30, 2019 stand at Rs 16,045 million, out of which overdue 
receivables are Rs 13,145 million.

OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT EVENTS:

During the period, NEPRA has issued a notice to the company, showing the intention of revising tariff 
of the company by taking suo motto action. In the notice, NEPRA has claimed that company has 
been earning abnormal profits during the past years, which are in excess of the tariff determined for 
the company. The Company has challenged the authority of NEPRA for revising tariff, in the Islamabad 
High Court, which is pending adjudication.
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Operational results:

The plant operated at an optimal efficiency with 39.46% (2018: 68.27%) average capacity factor and 
dispatched 675 GWh (2018: 1,171 GWh) of electricity to NTDCL during the year.

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA:

Financial year ending June 30,		  2019	 2018
	              		  (Rupees in Millions)	

	
Turnover	 15,582	 16,929
Net Profit	 3,770	 3,211
Total non-current assets 	 10,007	 10,660
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 	 3,541	 3,541
Long term financing	 3,040	 5,092
Short term financing	 6,420	 4,579
		
Generation (MWh)	 675,106	 1,171,192
Earnings per share-basic and diluted (Rs.)	 10.646	 9.07
Share prices (Market value rupees per share)	 27.54	 29.64

Due to increased power generation capacity of the country, the Company’s capacity utilization factor has 
seen some falling trend i.e. from 68% of previous year to 39% in this year. However, the management 
believes that NTDC would still need to run our Power Plant, due to the unique technological advantage 
of RFO based eleven (“11”) Reciprocating Engines and one (“01”) Steam Turbine, which can produce 
power during peak hours round the year, at a very short notice period.

Capacity Factor / Percent Load (%) 
(July 2018 - June 2019)
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Lalpir Solar Power (Pvt) Limited

In the financial year 2016, the Company incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary, Lalpir Solar Power 
(Private) Limited (‘LSPPL’), since then the Company has taken up 100,000 shares of the LSPPL. 
The principal activity of LSPPL is to build, own, operate and maintain or invest in a solar power 
project having gross capacity upto 20 MWp with net estimated generation capacity of upto approx 
19 MWp. The project site is located at Mehmood Kot, District Muzaffar Garh, Multan. The Company 
achieved various milestones like approval of Feasibility Study, No Objection Certificate (‘NOC’) from 
Environment Protection Agency (EPA) and approval of Grid Interconnection study from Multan Electric 
Power Company (MEPCO). However, the upfront solar tariff announced by National Electric Power 
Regulatory Authority (NEPRA) has expired on June 30, 2016. In previous financial year, LSPPL has 
obtained the approval from NTDCL for Grid Interconnection Study. During the year, the NEPRA has 
given generation license to LSPPL.

Subsequently, LSPPL applied to Central Power Purchasing Agency (CPPA) for consent to Purchase 
Power from this project called, Power Acquisition Request (PAR). Once the PAR is given, LSPPL shall 
apply for the tariff as per policy announced by the government.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND CONTROL:
	
The Board has set up an independent audit function headed by a qualified person reporting to the 
Audit Committee. The scope of internal auditing within the Company is clearly defined which broadly 
involves review and evaluation of its’ internal control system.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The company adheres to maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that are operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION MEASURES

Environmental monitoring for Emissions from Diesel Generators and testing of waste water is conducted 
on periodic basis for compliance of National Environmental Quality Standards (NEQS).

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK:

The Company Management is fully cognizant of its responsibility as recognized by the  Companies 
Act, 2017 provisions and Code of Corporate Governance issued by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan (SECP). The following comments are acknowledgement of Company’s 
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commitment to high standards of Corporate Governance and continuous improvement.

•	 The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its state 
of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

•	 Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.

•	 Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial 
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

•	 International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan, have been 
followed in preparation of financial statements and any departure there from has been 
adequately disclosed and explained.

•	 The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and 
monitored.

•	 There are no significant doubts upon Company’s ability to continue as going concern.

•	 All the directors on the Board are fully conversant with their duties and responsibilities as 
directors of corporate bodies. The directors were apprised of their duties and responsibilities 
through orientation courses.

•	 Value of investments in respect of retirement benefits fund:

	 Provident Fund: June 30, 2019 is Rs 159.247 million

ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS IN AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

During the year under review, Four Audit Committee Meetings were held, attendance position was as 
under:-

Sr. #	 Name of Member 	 # of Meetings Attended
		
1	 Mr. Ahmad Aqeel 	 (Member/Chairman) 	 4
2	 Mr. Shahzad Ahmad Malik 	 (Member) 	 4
3	 Mr. Yousuf Bashir 	 (Member)	 4

ATTENDENCE OF MEMBERS IN HR COMMITTEE 

During the year under review One Human Resource & Remuneration (HR&R) Committee meeting was 
held, attendance position was as under:-

Sr. #	 Name of Member 	 # of Meetings Attended
		
1	 Mr. Hassan Mansha	 (Member) 	 1
2	 Mr. Ghazanfar Hussain Mirza	 (Member)	 1
3	 Mr. Ahmad Aqeel	 (Member/Chairman) 	 1
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ATTENDENCE OF DIRECTORS IN BOD MEETINGS 

During the year under review, four Board of Directors Meetings were held, attendance position was as under:-

Sr. #	 Name of Directors 	 # of Meetings Attended
		
1	 ***Mian Hassan Mansha	 (Chairman)	 3
2	 Mr. Khalid Qadeer Qureshi	 (Died on February 24, 2019)	 2
3	 Mr. Ahmad Aqeel		  4
4	 Mr. Mahmood Akhtar		  3
5	 **Mr. Ghazanfar Hussain Mirza (Chief Executive)	 4
6	 Mr. Shahzad Ahmad Malik		  4
7	 Mr. Yousuf Bashir		  4
8	 *Mr. Norez Abdullah		  1

*Mr. Norez Abdullah appointed as Director in place of Mr. Khalid Qadeer Qureshi with effect from March 05, 
2019. 

**Mr. Ghazanfar Hussain Mirza appointed as Chairman Board of Directors in place of Mr. Khalid Qadeer 
Qureshi with effect from March 05, 2019. 

**Mr. Ghazanfar Hussain Mirza appointed as Chief Executive in place of Mian Hassan Mansha with effect from 
April 27, 2019. 

***Mian Hassan Mansha appointed as Chairman Board of Directors in place of Mr. Ghazanfar Hussain Mirza 
with effect from April 27, 2019.

LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

The new Code of Corporate Governance has marked a number of changes to bring local companies 
governance in line with the global norms. The company have taken initiatives to implement amendments 
in the new Code. Number of Directorships and composition of the board has been linked with the 
restructuring of the Board at the time of next election of Directors.

The Board lays great emphasis on adding and practicing good Corporate Governance, with a view to 
achieve transparency in its operations, so as to boost stakeholders’ confidence.

NAME OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY:

Following persons served as directors of the company during the financial year 2019.

Sr. #	 Name of Directors

1	 Mr. Ahmad Aqeel
2	 Mr. Yousuf Bashir
3	 Mian Hassan Mansha
4	 Mr. Shahzad Ahmad Malik
5	 Mr. Norez Abdullah
6	 Mr. Ghazanfar Hussain Mirza
7	 Mr. Mahmood Akhtar
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COMPOSITION OF BOARD:

	 Total number of Directors:
	 (a)   Male	 7
	 (b)   Female:	 0
	 Composition:
	 (i)    Independent Directors	 2
	 (ii)    Other Non-executive Directors	 3
	 (iii)   Executive Directors	 2

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

Audit Committee of the Board:

Sr. #	 Name of Directors

1	 Mr. Ahmad Aqeel (Independent Director) – Chairman
2	 Mr. Yousuf Bashir (Independent Director)
3	 Mr. Shahzad Ahmad Malik (Non-Executive Director)
	
Human Resource and Remuneration Committee:

Sr. #	 Name of Directors

1	 Mr. Ahmad Aqeel – (Independent Director) - Chairman
2	 Mian Hassan Mansha (Non-Executive Director)
3	 Mr. Ghazanfar Hussain Mirza (Executive Director)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION:

The company does not pay remuneration to its non-executive directors including independent directors 
except for meeting fee. Aggregate amount of remuneration paid to executive and non-executive 
directors have been disclosed in note 31 of the annexed financial statements.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS AND COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD AND COMMITTEES:

Election of directors was held on August 22, 2017 in an Extra Ordinary General Meeting, after which 
latest composition of the board and chairman/chief executive roles of the board and committees as 
elected by the directors in their meeting held on August 29, 2017 was as follows:
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Board of Directors:

Sr. #	 Name of Directors

1	 Mian Hassan Mansha                       (Chief Executive)
2	 Mr. Khalid Qadeer Qureshi                 (Chairman)
3	 Mr. Mahmood Akhtar
4	 Mr. Shahzad Ahmad Malik 
5	 Mr. Ahmad Aqeel 
6	 Mr. Ghazanfar Hussain Mirza 
7	 Mr. Yousuf Bashir

Audit Committee of the Board:

Sr. #	 Name of Directors

1	 Mr. Yousuf Bashir
2	 Mr. Shahzad Ahmad Malik		  (Chairman)
3	 Mr. Ahmad Aqeel 	               

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee:

Sr. #	 Name of Directors

1	 Mian Hassan Mansha
2	 Mr. Ahmad Aqeel 	                   
3	 Mr. Ghazanfar Hussain Mirza		  (Chairman)

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The company has fully complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2017. A statement to this effect is annexed with this report.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING:

The statement of pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2019 is enclosed.

TRADING IN THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY:

All trades in the shares of the listed Company, carried out by its directors, executives and their spouses 
and minor children during the year ended June 30, 2019 is annexed to this report.
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RELATED PARTIES:

The transactions between the related parties were carried out on the basis of arm’s length prices. The 
Company has fully complied with the best practices on transfer pricing as contained in Act and Code.

CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

The accompanied Chairman’s review deals with the performance of the company for the year ended 
June 30, 2019 and future outlook. The directors endorse the contents of the review.

MAINTENANCE RESERVE:

The Directors are pleased to inform that a maintenance reserve of Rs. 3.1 Billion is being created out 
of Retained earnings of the Company. The main purpose of this reserve is to account for major repair 
and maintenances expenses.

AUDITORS:

The present auditors M/s A. F. Ferguson, Chartered Accountants retire and being eligible, offer 
themselves for re-appointment for the year 2019-20. The Audit Committee of the Board has 
recommended the reappointment of the retiring auditors.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Board of Directors appreciates all its stakeholders for their trust and continued support to the 
Company. The Board also recognizes the contribution made by a very dedicated team of professionals 
and engineers who served the Company with enthusiasm, and hope that the same spirit of devotion 
shall remain intact in the future ahead to the Company.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER	 DIRECTOR
September 18, 2019
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PATTERN OF HOLDINGS
OF THE SHARES HELD BY THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF NISHAT POWER LIMITED AS AT JUNE 30, 2019

	 262	 1  -	 100	 5,812	 0.00
	 1236	 101  -	 500	 599,658	 0.17
	 416	 501  -	 1000	 403,117	 0.11
	 607	 1001  -	 5000	 1,730,354	 0.49
	 250	 5001  -	 10000	 2,091,322	 0.59
	 79	 10001  -	 15000	 1,053,923	 0.30
	 51	 15001  -	 20000	 940,320	 0.27
	 47	 20001  -	 25000	 1,114,300	 0.31
	 31	 25001  -	 30000	 900,476	 0.25
	 18	 30001  -	 35000	 604,142	 0.17
	 18	 35001  -	 40000	 693,500	 0.20
	 10	 40001  -	 45000	 431,500	 0.12
	 32	 45001  -	 50000	 1,585,950	 0.45
	 1	 50001  -	 55000	 52,500	 0.01
	 12	 55001  -	 60000	 696,500	 0.20
	 7	 60001  -	 65000	 446,204	 0.13
	 10	 65001  -	 70000	 682,000	 0.19
	 13	 70001  -	 75000	 959,240	 0.27
	 11	 75001  -	 80000	 861,500	 0.24
	 8	 80001  -	 85000	 665,500	 0.19
	 4	 85001  -	 90000	 350,500	 0.10
	 3	 90001  -	 95000	 283,394	 0.08
	 22	 95001  -	 100000	 2,193,127	 0.62
	 1	 100001  -	 105000	 105,000	 0.03
	 1	 105001  -	 110000	 110,000	 0.03
	 1	 110001  -	 115000	 114,500	 0.03
	 3	 115001  -	 120000	 358,000	 0.10
	 5	 120001  -	 125000	 618,500	 0.17
	 2	 125001  -	 130000	 259,500	 0.07
	 3	 130001  -	 135000	 404,500	 0.11
	 3	 135001  -	 140000	 411,501	 0.12
	 4	 140001  -	 145000	 568,997	 0.16
	 3	 145001  -	 150000	 449,500	 0.13
	 5	 155001  -	 160000	 787,319	 0.22
	 2	 160001  -	 165000	 322,154	 0.09
	 2	 165001  -	 170000	 335,500	 0.09
	 3	 170001  -	 175000	 518,500	 0.15
	 2	 180001  -	 185000	 370,000	 0.10
	 3	 185001  -	 190000	 564,500	 0.16
	 4	 195001  -	 200000	 800,000	 0.23
	 1	 200001  -	 205000	 205,000	 0.06
	 1	 205001  -	 210000	 210,000	 0.06
	 1	 210001  -	 215000	 210,280	 0.06
	 1	 215001  -	 220000	 220,000	 0.06
	 2	 220001  -	 225000	 449,500	 0.13
	 1	 230001  -	 235000	 233,000	 0.07
	 3	 245001  -	 250000	 747,000	 0.21
	 1	 250001  -	 255000	 255,000	 0.07
	 1	 265001  -	 270000	 267,500	 0.08
	 1	 270001  -	 275000	 272,000	 0.08
	 1	 295001  -	 300000	 300,000	 0.08
	 1	 315001  -	 320000	 320,000	 0.09
	 1	 395001  -	 400000	 400,000	 0.11
	 1	 400001  -	 405000	 403,000	 0.11

	 NUMBER OF	                              SHAREHOLDING		  TOTAL NUMBER OF	 PERCENTAGE OF
	 SHAREHOLDERS	 FROM	 TO	 SHARES HELD	 TOTAL CAPITAL
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	 1	 450001  -	 455000	 451,000	 0.13
	 1	 490001  -	 495000	 490,554	 0.14
	 6	 495001  -	 500000	 3,000,000	 0.85
	 1	 500001  -	 505000	 503,500	 0.14
	 5	 515001  -	 520000	 2,597,000	 0.73
	 1	 555001  -	 560000	 555,500	 0.16
	 1	 595001  -	 600000	 600,000	 0.17
	 1	 675001  -	 680000	 676,500	 0.19
	 2	 680001  -	 685000	 1,368,000	 0.39
	 1	 695001  -	 700000	 700,000	 0.20
	 1	 715001  -	 720000	 716,744	 0.20
	 1	 720001  -	 725000	 723,500	 0.20
	 1	 750001  -	 755000	 751,000	 0.21
	 1	 870001  -	 875000	 875,000	 0.25
	 1	 910001  -	 915000	 914,500	 0.26
	 1	 920001  -	 925000	 923,500	 0.26
	 1	 995001  -	 1000000	 1,000,000	 0.28
	 1	 1045001  -	 1050000	 1,050,000	 0.30
	 1	 1095001  -	 1100000	 1,099,047	 0.31
	 1	 1195001  -	 1200000	 1,200,000	 0.34
	 1	 1295001  -	 1300000	 1,300,000	 0.37
	 1	 1320001  -	 1325000	 1,321,627	 0.37
	 1	 1380001  -	 1385000	 1,380,457	 0.39
	 3	 1495001  -	 1500000	 4,500,000	 1.27
	 1	 1530001  -	 1535000	 1,531,500	 0.43
	 1	 1595001  -	 1600000	 1,600,000	 0.45
	 1	 1845001  -	 1850000	 1,847,000	 0.52
	 1	 1900001  -	 1905000	 1,902,000	 0.54
	 1	 2295001  -	 2300000	 2,300,000	 0.65
	 1	 2795001  -	 2800000	 2,798,168	 0.79
	 1	 3825001  -	 3830000	 3,826,488	 1.08
	 1	 4120001  -	 4125000	 4,124,500	 1.16
	 1	 4155001  -	 4160000	 4,158,245	 1.17
	 1	 4635001  -	 4640000	 4,636,000	 1.31
	 1	 4935001  -	 4940000	 4,936,500	 1.39
	 2	 4995001  -	 5000000	 10,000,000	 2.82
	 1	 5340001  -	 5345000	 5,340,500	 1.51
	 1	 7380001  -	 7385000	 7,380,500	 2.08
	 1	 12085001  -	 12090000	 12,089,425	 3.41
	 1	 15395001  -	 15400000	 15,400,000	 4.35
	 1	 29995001  -	 30000000	 30,000,000	 8.47
	 1	 180585001  -	 180590000	 180,585,155	 51.00

	 3,267			   354,088,500	 100.00

	 NUMBER OF	                              SHAREHOLDING		  TOTAL NUMBER OF	 PERCENTAGE OF
	 SHAREHOLDERS	 FROM	 TO	 SHARES HELD	 TOTAL CAPITAL
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Categories of Shareholders as at June 30, 2019

Sr. #          Categories	         		  Shares Held	 Percentage
			 
	
1	 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse 
	    and Minor Children	 4,501	 0.0013 
2	 Associates Companies, Undertkaings and related parties	 180,632,955	 51.0135 
3	 NIT and ICP	  Nil 	 Nil
4	 Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking 
	    Financial Institutions	  53,527,000 	 15.1169
5	 Insurance Companies	 5,364,988	 1.5152
6	 Modarabas and Mutual Funds	 683,000	 0.1929 
7	 Shareholders holding 10% or more	 180,632,955	 51.0135 
8	 General Public		
	 a. Local	 86,375,762	 24.3938
	 b. Foreign	  10,500 	 0.0030
9	 Others	 27,489,794	 7.7635 
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    Categories of Shareholders		  Shares Held	 Percentage

Associated Companies, Undertaking and Related Parties		
NISHAT MILLS LIMITED	 47,800	 0.0135
NISHAT MILLS LIMITED	 180,585,155	 51.0000

	 180,632,955	 51.0135
		
Mutual Funds		
MCBFSL - TRUSTEE PAK OMAN ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND	 75,000	 0.0212
MC FSL - TRUSTEE JS GROWTH FUND	 224,500	 0.0634
M C F S L-TRUSTEE ASKARI ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND	 43,500	 0.0123
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC ENERGY FUND	 122,000	 0.0345
MCBFSL-TRUSTEE ABL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND	 20,000	 0.0056
CDC - TRUSTEE LAKSON EQUITY FUND	 2,500	 0.0007
MCBFSL - TRUSTEE AKD ISLAMIC STOCK FUND	 72,500	 0.0205
CDC - TRUSTEE ASKARI EQUITY FUND	 73,000	 0.0206
CDC - TRUSTEE ASKARI ASSET ALLOCATION FUND	 25,000	 0.0071
MCBFSL - TRUSTEE PAK OMAN ADVANTAGE ASSET 
   ALLOCATION FUND	 25,000	 0.0071

	 683,000	 0.1929
Directors and their spouses and Minor Children		
MIAN HASSAN MANSHA	 1	 0.0000
MR. AHMAD AQEEL	 500	 0.0001
MR. YOUSUF BASHIR	 1,000	 0.0003
MR. MAHMOOD AKHTAR	 1,000	 0.0003
MR. SHAHZAD AHMAD MALIK	 500	 0.0001
MR. GHAZANFAR HUSAIN MIRZA	 1,000	 0.0003
MR. NOREZ ABDULLAH	 500	 0.0001

	 4,501	 0.0013
		
Executives		  Nil	 Nil
		
Public Sector Companies and Corporations		
Joint Stock Companies	  12,500,369 	 3.5303
		
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking 
   Finance Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, 
   Modarabas and Pension Funds		
		
Banks, DFIs and NBFIs	  53,527,000 	 15.1169
Insurance Companies	 5,364,988	 1.5152
Pension Funds/ Providend Funds etc.	 1,751,500	 0.4947
Trusts/Foundation etc.	 13,237,925	 3.7386

	  73,881,413 	 20.8653
		
Shareholders holding 5% or more voting rights:		
NISHAT MILLS LIMITED	 180,632,955	 51.0135
ALLIED BANK LIMITED	 30,000,000	 8.4725

	 210,632,955	 59.4860
		

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS
AS ON JUNE 30, 2019
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There are no trading in shares of the Company, carried out by its Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial 
Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary, Other Employees and their spouses and minor children during 
the year July 01, 2018 to June 30, 2019.

For the purpose of this clause, Board of directors have set threshold for Other Employees, which includes all of 
the employees covered under any of the following categories:

i) 	 Employees at General Manager position and above,
 
ii) 	 Employees from Finance Department, Accounts Department, Internal Audit Department and 

Corporate Department

iii) 	 Any employee receiving annual gross salary of Rs. 3 million or above.

 

INFORMATION UNDER LISTING REGULATION NO. 5.6.1(d)) OF  
PSX RULE BOOK AS ON JUNE 30, 2019
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

Name of company : Nishat Power Limited
Year ended : June 30, 2019 

 The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1.	 The total number of directors are Seven ( 7  ) as per the following:

	 a.	 Male:	 7
	 b.	 Female:	 0
 
2.	 The composition of board is as follows:
  

	 a)	 Independent Director	 Mr. Ahmad Aqeel
			   Mr. Yousuf Bashir
			 
	 b)	 Other Non-executive Director	 Mian Hassan Mansha
			   Mr. Shahzad Ahmad Malik
			   Mr. Norez Abdullah
			 
	 c)	 Executive Directors	 Mr. Ghazanfar Hussain Mirza
			   Mr. Mahmood Akhtar

3.	 The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five 
listed companies, including this company.  

4.	 The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have 
been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and 
procedures. 

5.	 The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 
policies of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the 
dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained. 

6.	 All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have 
been taken by board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and 
these Regulations. 

7.	 The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a 
director elected by the board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements 
of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of 
meeting of board. 

8.	 The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of 
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations. 
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9.	 The Board has arranged Directors’ Training program for the following:

	 a)	 Independent Director	 Mr. Ahmad Aqeel

	 b)	 Other Non-executive Director		 Mr. Shahzad Ahmad Malik

	 c)	 Executive Directors	 Mr. Ghazanfar Hussain Mirza
			   Mr. Mahmood Akhtar

10.	 The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal 
Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied 
with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

11.	 CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.

12.	 The board has formed committees comprising of members given below: 

	 a)	 Audit Committee 

		  1.	 Mr. Ahmad Aqeel (Independent Director) – Chairman

		  2.	 Mr. Yousuf Bashir (Independent Director)

		  3.	 Mr. Shahzad Ahmad Malik (Non-Executive Director)

	 b)	 HR and Remuneration Committee 

		  1.	 Mr. Ahmad Aqeel – (Independent Director) - Chairman

		  2.	 Mian Hassan Mansha (Non-Executive Director)

		  3.	 Mr. Ghazanfar Hussain Mirza (Executive Director)

13.	 The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and 
advised to the committee for compliance. 

14.	 The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following:

	 a)	 Audit Committee:

	 Four quarterly meetings were held during the financial year ended June 30, 2019

	 b)	 HR and Remuneration Committee

	 One Meetings of HR and Remuneration Committee was held during the financial year ended 
June 30, 2019.
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15.	 The board has set up an effective internal audit function which is considered suitably qualified, 
experienced for the purpose and conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

16.	 The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory 
rating under the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight 
Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children 
do not hold shares of the company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with 
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the 
ICAP.

17.	 The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide 
other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory 
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this 
regard. 

18.	 We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

 
 

Lahore	 (MIAN HASSAN MANSHA)
Dated: September 18, 2019	 CHAIRMAN
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF NISHAT POWER LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Nishat Power Limited (the 
Company), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2019, 
and the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, unconsolidated statement of comprehensive 
income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we 
have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, 
were necessary for the purposes of the audit.
	
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the unconsolidated statement of financial position, unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, 
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in 
equity and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof 
conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a 
true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at June 30, 2019 and of the profit and other 
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable 
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to note 18.2 to the annexed unconsolidated financial statements, which describes the 
matter regarding recoverability of certain trade debts. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Unconsolidated and Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s 
Reports Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the annual report, but does not include the unconsolidated and consolidated financial 
statements and our auditor’s reports thereon.
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Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial 
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and 
the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of unconsolidated financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
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based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a)	 proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 
2017 (XIX of 2017);

(b)	 the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of  profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income , the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity 
and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been 
drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with 
the books of account and returns;

(c)	 investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for 
the purpose of the Company’s business; and

(d)	 zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was 
deducted by the company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 
7 of that Ordinance.

 
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Khurram Akbar 
Khan.

	                 

A.F.Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
	
	
Lahore:
Date:  September 18, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT TO 
THE MEMBERS OF NISHAT POWER LIMITED
 
REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES 
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017  

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of 
Nishat Power Limited for the year ended June 30, 2019 in accordance with the requirements of 
regulation 40 of the Regulations. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status 
of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to 
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to 
inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to 
comply with the Regulations. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the 
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit 
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal 
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, 
the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks. 

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation 
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related 
party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies 
Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the 
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit 
Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company’s process 
for identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at 
arm’s length price or not. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement 
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with 
the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 
30, 2019. 

A.F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Lahore:  September 18, 2019

Engagement Partner: Khurram Akbar Khan
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	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES			 
			 
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES			 
			 
Authorised share capital			 
500,000,000 (2018: 500,000,000) 			 
   ordinary shares of Rs 10 each		   5,000,000 	  5,000,000 
			 
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 			 
354,088,500 (2018: 354,088,500)			 
   ordinary shares of Rs 10 each	 5	  3,540,885 	  3,540,885 
Capital reserve	 6	  3,153,633 	  -   
Revenue reserve: Un-appropriated profits	 7	  12,414,201 	  12,860,551 
			 
		   19,108,719 	  16,401,436 
			      
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY			 
			 
Long term financing - secured	 8	  654,638 	  3,040,170 
			 
CURRENT LIABILITIES			 
			 
Current portion of long term financing - secured	 8	  2,385,532 	  2,052,155 
Short term borrowings - secured	 9	  6,420,312 	  4,578,891 
Trade and other payables	 10	  261,601 	  637,586 
Unclaimed dividend		   21,666 	  15,001 
Accrued markup	 11	  233,908 	  182,486 
			 
		   9,323,019 	  7,466,119 
			 
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS	 12		
		   29,086,376 	  26,907,725 
			 
The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.		
	

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2019

	 CHIEF EXECUTIVE 		  CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

“In case of any discrepancy on the Company’s website, the auditors shall only be responsible in respect of the information 
contained in the hard copies of the audited financial statements available at the Company’s registered office.”
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	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)

ASSETS			 
			 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS			 

Fixed assets 	 13	  10,005,584 	  10,658,095 
Long term investments 	 14	  1,000 	  1,000 
Long term loans and advances 	 15	  6 	  231 
			 
		   10,006,590 	  10,659,326 

			 
			 
			 
CURRENT ASSETS 			 
			 
Stores, spares and loose tools 	 16	  757,521 	  924,777 
Inventories 	 17	  1,719,399 	  1,569,339 
Trade debts 	 18	  15,643,517 	  12,328,941 
Advances, deposits, prepayments and 			 
  other receivables 	 19	  904,445 	  1,254,999 
Income tax receivable 		   34,128 	  30,038 
Cash and bank balances 	 20	  20,776 	  140,305 
			 
		   19,079,786 	  16,248,399 
			 
			 

			 
		   29,086,376 	  26,907,725       
			      

	  	 DIRECTOR
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	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)

Sales	 21	  15,581,918 	  16,929,085 
			 
Cost of sales	 22	  (10,584,021)	  (12,707,336)
			 
Gross profit		   4,997,897 	  4,221,749 
			 
Administrative expenses	 23	  (274,123)	  (320,434)
			 
Other expenses	 24	  (15,884)	  (2,770)
			 
Other income	 25	  7,305 	  51,033 
			 
Finance cost	 26	  (945,646)	  (737,319)
			 
Share of loss of associate 		   -   	  (843)
			 
Profit before taxation		   3,769,549 	  3,211,416 
			 
Taxation	 27	  -   	  -   
			 
Profit for the year		   3,769,549 	  3,211,416 
			 
Earnings per share - basic and diluted (in Rupees)	 28	  10.646 	  9.070 
			 
The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

	 CHIEF EXECUTIVE 	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER	 DIRECTOR
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		  2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)

			 
Profit for the year		    3,769,549 	  3,211,416  
			 
Other comprehensive income:			 
			 
Items that may be reclassified subsequently			 
   to profit or loss		   -   	  -   
			 
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently			 
  to profit or loss		   -   	  -   
		   -   	  -   
			 
Total comprehensive income for the year		    3,769,549 	  3,211,416 
			 
			 
The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

	 CHIEF EXECUTIVE 	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER	 DIRECTOR
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	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)

Cash flows from operating activities			 
			 
Cash generated from operations	 29	  2,250,308 	  679,630 
Finance cost paid		   (894,223)	  (740,014)
Income tax paid		   (4,090)	  (5,256)
Long term loans and advances - net		   225 	  2,563 
Retirement benefits paid		   (21,543)	  (19,827)
			 
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities		   1,330,677 	  (82,904)
			 
Cash flows from investing activities			 
			 
Purchase of fixed assets		   (280,720)	  (249,501)
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets		   93,395 	  1,101 
Investment in equity securities of subsidiary		   -   	  (500)
Profit on bank deposits received		   4,950 	  2,605 
			 
Net cash outflow from investing activities		   (182,375)	  (246,295)
			 
Cash flows from financing activities			 
			 
Repayment of long term financing		   (2,052,155)	  (1,765,368)
Dividend paid		   (1,057,097)	  (707,643)
			 
Net cash outflow from financing activities		   (3,109,252)	  (2,473,011)
			 
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents		   (1,960,950)	  (2,802,210)
			 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year		   (4,438,586)	  (1,636,376)
			 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year	 30	  (6,399,536)	  (4,438,586)
			 

Refer note 8 for reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities.			 
			 
The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

	 CHIEF EXECUTIVE 	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER	 DIRECTOR
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		  Capital	 Revenue
	 Share	 reserve:	 reserve: 
	 capital	 Maintenance	 Un-appropriated	 Total 
		  reserve	 profit
		                          (Rupees in thousand) 		
			 
			 
Balance as on July 01, 2017	  3,540,885 	  - 	  10,357,312 	  13,898,197 
				  
Profit for the year	  - 	  - 	  3,211,416 	  3,211,416 
Other comprehensive income for the year	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 
				  
Total comprehensive income for the year	  - 	  - 	  3,211,416 	  3,211,416 
				  
Dividend to equity holders of the company:				  
				  
Final dividend for the year ended June 30, 2017				  
   @ Rupees 2 per share 	  - 	  - 	  (708,177)	  (708,177)
				  
Total contributions by and distributions to owners				  
   of the company recognised directly in equity	  - 	  - 	  (708,177)	  (708,177)
				  
Capital Reserve	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 
				  
Balance as on June 30, 2018	  3,540,885 	  - 	  12,860,551 	  16,401,436 
				  
Profit for the year	  - 	  - 	  3,769,549 	  3,769,549 
Other comprehensive income for the year	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 
				  
Total comprehensive income for the year	  - 	  - 	  3,769,549 	  3,769,549 
				  
Dividend to equity holders of the company:				  
				  
Final dividend for the year ended June 30, 2018				  
   @ Rupees 1.5 per share 	  - 	  - 	  (531,133)	  (531,133)
Interim dividend for the quarter ended March 31, 2019				  
   @ Rupees 1.5 per share 	  - 	  - 	  (531,133)	  (531,133)
				  
Total contributions by and distributions to owners				  
   of the company recognised directly in equity	  - 	  - 	  (1,062,266)	  (1,062,266)
				  
Transfer to maintenance reserve	  - 	  3,153,633 	  (3,153,633)	  - 
				  
Balance as on June 30, 2019	  3,540,885 	  3,153,633 	  12,414,201 	  19,108,719 
				  
				  
The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.			 
	

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

	 CHIEF EXECUTIVE 	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER	 DIRECTOR
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE 
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

1.	 THE COMPANY AND ITS ACTIVITIES	
		
	 Nishat Power Limited (the ‘company’) is a public company limited by shares incorporated 

in Pakistan on February 23, 2007 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now 
Companies Act, 2017). The company is a subsidiary of Nishat Mills Limited, Pakistan. The 
company’s ordinary shares are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.	

		
	 The principal activity of the company is to build, own, operate and maintain a fuel fired power 

station having gross capacity of 200 MW in Jamber Kalan, Tehsil Pattoki, District Kasur, 
Punjab, Pakistan. The address of the registered office of the company is 53-A, Lawrence 
Road, Lahore. The company has a Power Purchase Agreement (‘PPA’) with its sole customer, 
National Transmission and Despatch company Limited (‘NTDC’) for twenty five years which 
commenced from June 09, 2010.	

		
	 These unconsolidated financial statements are the separate financial statements of the 

company  in which investment in subsidiary has been accounted for at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. 	

		
2.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION	
		
2.1	 Statement of compliance	
		
	 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 

accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting 
standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:	

		
	 i)	 International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’) issued by the International 

Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

	 ii)	 Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 (‘Act’).
		
	 Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRS, the provisions of 

and directives issued under the Act have been followed.	
		
2.2	 Initial application of standards, amendments or interpretation to existing standards	
		
	 The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to 

the company’s unconsolidated financial statements covering annual periods, beginning on or 
after the following dates:	

		
2.2.1	 Standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting standards that are 

effective in current year	
		
	 Certain standards, amendments and interpretations to IFRS are effective for accounting 

periods beginning on July 1, 2018 but are considered not to be relevant or to have any 
significant effect on the company’s operations (although they may affect the accounting 
for future transactions and events) and are, therefore, not detailed in these unconsolidated 
financial statements, except for the following:	
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	 (a)	 IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’	
		
		  This standard was notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 

(‘SECP’) to be effective for annual periods ending on or after June 30, 2019.  This 
standard replaces guidance in International Accounting Standard (‘IAS’) 39, ‘Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’. It includes requirements on the 
classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities. It also includes an 
expected credit losses model that replaces the current incurred loss impairment model. 
However, in respect of companies holding financial assets due from the Government of 
Pakistan, SECP through SRO 985(I)/2019 dated September 2, 2019 has notified that 
the requirements contained in IFRS 9 with respect to application of Expected Credit 
Losses method shall not be applicable till June 30, 2021 and that such companies 
shall follow relevant requirements of IAS 39 in respect of above referred financial assets 
during the exemption period. Accordingly, the company has changed its accounting 
policies and followed the requirements of IFRS 9 for:	

		
	 - 	 classification and measurement of all financial assets except investments in subsidiary 

and associate that are accounted for in accordance with IAS 27 ‘Separate financial 
statements’ and IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ respectively; 
and	

		
	 - 	 recognition of loss allowance for financial assets other than the financial assets due from 

the Government of Pakistan and investments in subsidiary and associate.	
		
		  In respect of application of IFRS 9, the company has adopted modified retrospective 

approach as permitted by this standard, according to which the company is not required 
to restate the prior period results. The adoption of IFRS 9 has not resulted in any impact 
on the opening balance of un-appropriated profit. In respect of classification of financial 
assets, the company’s management has assessed which business models apply to the 
financial assets held by the company and has classified its financial instruments into the 
appropriate IFRS 9 categories (i.e. mainly financial assets previously classified as ‘loans 
and receivables’ have now been classified as ‘amortised cost’).	

		
	 (b)	 IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’	
		
		  This standard was notified by the SECP to be effective for annual periods beginning 

on or after July 1, 2018. This standard deals with revenue recognition and establishes 
principles for reporting useful information to users of the unconsolidated financial 
statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash 
flows arising from an entity’s contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised when 
a customer obtains control of a good or service and thus has the ability to direct the 
use and obtain the benefits from the good or service. The standard replaces IAS 18, 
‘Revenue’, and IAS 11, ‘Construction contracts’, and related interpretations.	

		
		  The company has applied IFRS 15 using the modified retrospective approach for 

transition. This approach requires entities to recognise the cumulative effect of initially 
applying IFRS 15 as an adjustment to the opening balance of un-appropriated profit in 
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the period of initial application. Comparative prior year periods would not be adjusted. 
The application of IFRS 15 does not have any impact on the revenue recognition policy 
of the company and therefore, the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard as 
an adjustment to the opening balance of un-appropriated profit in the period of initial 
application is nil. Therefore, the comparative information has not been restated and 
continues to be reported under the previous accounting policy.	

		
2.2.2	 Exemption from applicability of certain interpretations to standards	
		
	 The SECP through SRO 24(I)/2012 dated January 16, 2012 has granted exemption from 

the application of International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (‘IFRIC’) 4, 
‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’, and IFRIC 12, ‘Service Concession 
Arrangements’, to all companies. However, the SECP made it mandatory to disclose the 
impact of the application of IFRIC 4 or IFRIC 12 on the results of the companies.	

		
	 Under IFRIC 4, the consideration required to be made by the lessee for the right to use the 

asset is to be accounted for as a finance lease under IAS 17, ‘Leases’. The company’s power 
plant’s control due to purchase of total output by NTDC appears to fall under the scope of 
IFRIC 4. Consequently, if the company were to follow IFRIC 4 and IAS 17, the effect on the 
unconsolidated financial statements would be as follows:		

			 
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
				  
	 De-recognition of property, plant and equipment	  (9,635,568)	  (10,334,566)
				  
	 De-recognition of trade debts		   (5,510,129)	  (2,740,321)
				  
	 Recognition of lease debtor 		   11,556,096 	  10,928,786 				  
	 Decrease in un-appropriated profit at the 
	    beginning of the year		   (2,146,101)	  (1,154,414)
	 Decrease in profit for the year		   (1,443,500)	  (991,687)
				  
	 Decrease in un-appropriated profit at the end of the year	  (3,589,601)	  (2,146,101) 
				  

2.2.3	 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective 
and have not been early adopted by the company	

		
	 There are certain standards, amendments to the approved accounting standards and 

interpretations that are mandatory for the company’s accounting periods beginning on or after July 
1, 2019, but are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the company’s 
operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these unconsolidated financial statements, except for 
the following:	

		
	 - 	 IFRS 16, ‘Leases’: this standard has been notified by the SECP to be effective for 

annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. This standard replaces the 
current guidance in IAS 17, ‘Leases’ and is a far reaching change in accounting by 
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lessees in particular. Under IAS 17, lessees were required to make a distinction between 
a finance lease (on statement of financial position) and an operating lease (off statement 
of financial position). IFRS 16 now requires lessees to recognise a lease liability reflecting 
future lease payments and a ‘right-of-use asset’ for virtually all lease contracts. The 
IASB has included an optional exemption for certain short-term leases and leases of 
low-value assets; however, this exemption can only be applied by lessees. For lessors, 
the accounting stays almost the same. However, as the IASB has updated the guidance 
on the definition of a lease (as well as the guidance on the combination and separation 
of contracts), lessors will also be affected by the new standard. At the very least, the 
new accounting model for lessees is expected to impact negotiations between lessors 
and lessees.

		
		  SECP through SRO 986(I)/2019 dated September 2, 2019 has granted exemption from 

the requirements of IFRS 16 to all companies that have executed their power purchase 
agreements before January 1, 2019. Therefore, the standard will not have any impact 
on the company’s unconsolidated financial statements.

		
	 -	 Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 on the definition of material: (effective for periods 

beginning on or after July 1, 2019). These amendments to IAS 1, ‘Presentation of 
financial statements’ and IAS 8, ‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates 
and errors’, and consequential amendments to other IFRSs: i) use a consistent definition 
of materiality throughout IFRSs and the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting; 
ii) clarify the explanation of the definition of material; and iii) incorporate some of the 
guidance in IAS 1 about immaterial information. It is unlikely that these amendments will 
have any significant impact on the company’s unconsolidated financial statements.

		
	 - 	 Amendment to IFRS 9, Financial instruments’, on prepayment features with negative 

compensation and modification of financial liabilities: (effective for periods beginning 
on or after July 1, 2019). This amendment confirmed two points: (1) that reasonable 
compensation for prepayments can be both negative or positive cash flows when 
considering whether a financial asset solely has cash flows that are principal and interest 
and (2) that when a financial liability measured at amortised cost is modified without this 
resulting in de-recognition, a gain or loss should be recognised immediately in profit or 
loss. The gain or loss is calculated as the difference between the original contractual 
cash flows and the modified cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. 
It is unlikely that this amendment will have any significant impact on the company’s 
unconsolidated financial statements.	

		
3.	 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT	
		
3.1	 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost 

convention.	
		
3.2	 Critical accounting estimates and judgements	
		
	 The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates 

which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise 
judgement in applying the company’s accounting policies. 	
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	 This note provides an overview of the area that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, 
and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to the estimates and assumptions 
turning out to be wrong. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is 
included in other notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the unconsolidated financial statements. 	

		
	 a)    	 Useful lives and residual values of fixed assets
		
		  The company reviews the useful lives of fixed assets on regular basis. Any change in 

estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of fixed 
assets with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

		
		  Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience 

and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact 
on the company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

		
4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES	
		
	 The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial 

statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, 
unless otherwise stated.	

		
4.1	 Taxation	
		
	 Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the statement 

of profit or loss except to the extent that relates to items recognised directly in equity or other 
comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive 
income.	

		
	 Current	
		
	 The profits and gains of the company derived from electric power generation are exempt from 

tax in terms of clause 132 of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, 
subject to the conditions and limitations provided therein.	

		
	 Under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, the 

company is also exempt from levy of minimum tax on ‘turnover’ under section 113 of the Income 
Tax Ordinance, 2001. However, full provision is made in the statement of profit or loss on income 
from sources not covered under the above clauses at current rates of taxation after taking into 
account, tax credits and rebates available, if any.	

		
	 Deferred	
		
	 Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary 

differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the 
unconsolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of 
the taxable profit. However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of 
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of transaction 
neither affects accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised 
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is 
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probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, 
unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised.	

		
	 Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences 

reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of 
financial position date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss, except 
in the case of items credited or charged to other comprehensive income or equity in which case it 
is included in other comprehensive income or equity.	

		
	 Deferred tax has not been provided in these unconsolidated financial statements as the company’s 

management believes that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future due 
to the fact that the profits and gains of the company derived from electric power generation are 
exempt from tax subject to the conditions and limitations provided for in terms of clause (132) of 
Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 	

		
4.2	 Property, plant and equipment	
		
4.2.1	 Operating fixed assets	
		
	 Operating fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified 

impairment loss. Freehold land is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. Historical cost 
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.	

		
	 Depreciation on operating fixed assets, other than identifiable capital spares in plant and machinery, 

is charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight line method so as to write off the cost 
of an asset over its estimated useful life at the annual rates mentioned in note 13.1 after taking into 
account their residual values. Depreciation on identifiable capital spares in plant and machinery is 
charged on the basis of number of hours used.	

		
	 The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, at each financial year end, and adjusted if 

impact on depreciation is significant. The company’s estimate of the residual value of its operating 
fixed assets as at June 30, 2019, has not required any adjustment as its impact is considered 
insignificant.	

		
	 An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s 

carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 4.4).	
		
	 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, 

as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item 
will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and 
maintenance costs are included in the statement of profit or loss during the period in which they 
are incurred. 	

		
	 The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset, represented by the difference between the 

sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as an income or expense. 	
		
4.2.2	 Capital work-in-progress	
		
	 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. All expenditure 

connected with specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried 
under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to operating fixed assets as and when these 
are available for use.	
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4.2.3	 Major spare parts and standby equipment	
		
	 Major spare parts and stand-by equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment when an 

entity expects to use them for more than one year. Transfers are made to relevant operating fixed 
assets category as and when such items are available for use.	

		
4.3	 Intangible assets	
		
	 Expenditure incurred to acquire computer software has been capitalised as an intangible asset 

and stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any identified impairment loss. Intangible 
assets are amortised using the straight line method over a period of five years.	

		
	 An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s 

carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 4.4).	
		
4.4	 Impairment of non-financial assets	
		
	 Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation 

and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An 
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its 
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of 
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the 
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent 
of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial 
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the 
impairment at the end of each reporting period.	

		
4.5	 Leases	
		
	 The company is the lessee:	
		
4.5.1	 Operating leases	
		
	 Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor 

are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives 
received from the lessor) are charged to profit on a straight line basis over the lease term.	

		
4.6	 Stores, spares and loose tools	
		
	 Stores, spares and loose tools are valued principally at weighted average cost except for items 

in transit which are stated at invoice value plus other charges paid thereon till the statement of 
financial position date while items considered obsolete are carried at nil value.	

		
4.7	 Inventories	
		
	 Inventories except for those in transit are valued principally at lower of weighted average cost 

and net realizable value. Materials in transit are stated at cost comprising invoice value plus other 
charges paid thereon.	

		



51NISHAT POWER LIMITED

	 Net realizable value is determined on the basis of estimated selling price in the ordinary course 
of business less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the 
sale. Provision is made in the unconsolidated financial statements for obsolete and slow moving 
inventories based on management’s estimate.	

		
4.8	 Investments	
		
	 Investments intended to be held for less than twelve months from the statement of financial 

position date or to be sold to raise operating capital, are included in current assets. All other 
investments are classified as non-current. Management determines the appropriate classification 
of its investments at the time of the purchase and re-evaluates such designation on a regular 
basis.	

		
4.8.1	 Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries	
		
	 Investment in subsidiary company is measured at cost as per the requirements of IAS-27 

“Separate Financial Statements”. However, at subsequent reporting dates, the company reviews 
the carrying amount of the investment and its recoverability to determine whether there is an 
indication that such investment has suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the 
carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to the extent of impairment loss. Impairment losses 
are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit or loss.	

		
4.8.2	 Investment in equity instruments of associates	
		
	 Associates are all entities over which the company has significant influence but not control. 

Investment in equity instruments of associates are accounted for using the equity method of 
accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The company’s investment in associates includes 
goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment loss) identified on the acquisition. The company’s 
share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss, and its share of post acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The 
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of investment. 
When the company’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, 
including any other unsecured receivables, the company does not recognise further losses, unless 
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. Unrealised gains on 
transactions between the company and its associates are eliminated to the extent of company’s 
interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides 
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.	

		
	 At each reporting date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of the investments to assess 

whether there is any indication that such investments have suffered an impairment loss. If any 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss, if any. Impairment losses are recognised as expense in the statement of profit or 
loss. Impairment losses recognised in the statement of profit or loss on equity instruments are not 
reversed through the statement of profit or loss.	

		
4.9	 Financial assets 	
		
4.9.1	 Classification	
		
	 From July 1, 2018, the company classifies its financial assets other than investments in subsidiary 

and associate in the following measurement categories:	
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	 - 	 those to be measured subsequently at fair value [either through other comprehensive 
income (‘OCI’) or through profit or loss], and

	
	 - 	 those to be measured at amortised cost.
	
	 The classification depends on the company’s business model for managing the financial 

assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.	
		
	 For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. 

For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether 
the company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the 
equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).	

		
	 The company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing 

those assets changes.	
		
4.9.2	 Recognition and derecognition	
		
	 Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date, being the date 

on which the company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised 
when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been 
transferred and the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.	

4.9.3	 Measurement	
		
	 At initial recognition, the company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of 

a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at 
FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.	

		
	 Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining 

whether their cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest.	
		
	 Debt instruments	
		
	 Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the company’s business model for 

managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement 
categories into which the company classifies its debt instruments:	

		
	 i) 	 Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where 

those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured 
at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other 
income using the effective interest rate method, except for delayed payment markup on 
amounts due under the PPA which is included in revenue. Any gain or loss arising on 
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss. Impairment losses are presented as 
separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.	

		
	 ii) 	 FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the 

financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal 
and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken 
through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income 
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and foreign exchange gains and losses, which are recognised in profit or loss. When the 
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI 
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is 
included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Impairment expenses 
are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.	

		
	 iii) 	 FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured 

at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is 
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it arises.	

		
	 Equity instruments	
		
	 The company subsequently measures all equity investments except for investments in subsidiary 

and associate at fair value. Where the company’s management has elected to present fair value 
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value 
gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from 
such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the company’s 
right to receive payments is established.	

		
	 Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in the statement of profit or 

loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at 
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.	

		
4.9.4 	 Impairment of financial assets other than those due from the Government of Pakistan	
		
	 From July 1, 2018, the company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses 

associated with its financial assets. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether 
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.	

		
	 Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining 

financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.	
		
4.10	 Accounting policies applied until June 30, 2018	
		
	 The company has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively, but has elected not to restate comparative 

information. As a result, the comparative information provided continues to be accounted for in 
accordance with the company’s previous accounting policy. 	

		
	 Classification	
		
	 Until June 30, 2018, the company classified its financial assets in the following categories: at fair 

value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, available-for-sale and held to maturity. The 
classification depended on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management 
determined the classification of its financial assets at the time of initial recognition.	

		
	 a)	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
		
		  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were the financial assets held for trading 

and financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or 
loss. Derivatives were also categorized as held for trading unless they were designated 
as hedges. A financial asset was classified as held for trading if acquired principally for the 
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purpose of selling in the short term. Assets in this category were classified as current assets 
if expected to be settled within twelve months, otherwise, they were classified as non-
current.

		
	 b)	 Loans and receivables
		
		  Loans and receivables were non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 

payments that are not quoted in an active market. They were included in current assets, 
except for maturities greater than twelve months after the statement of financial position 
date, which were classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables comprised of 
trade debts, advances, deposits, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the 
statement of financial position.

		
	 c)	 Available-for-sale financial assets
		
		  Available-for-sale financial assets were non-derivatives that were either designated in this 

category or not classified in any of the other categories. They were included in non-current 
assets unless management intends to dispose of the investments within twelve months 
from the statement of financial position date.

		
	 d)	 Held to maturity
		
		  Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity, where management 

has the intention and ability to hold till maturity were classified as held to maturity and were 
stated at amortized cost.

		
	 Recognition and measurement	
		
	 All financial assets were recognized at the time when the company became a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of investments were recognized on 
trade-date – the date on which the company committed to purchase or sell the asset. Financial 
assets were initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried 
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss were 
initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs were expensed in the statement of profit or 
loss. Financial assets were derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets 
expired or had been transferred and the company had transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss were subsequently carried at fair value. For investments having quoted price in active 
market, the quoted price represented the fair value. In other cases, fair value was measured using 
appropriate valuation methodology and where fair value could not be measured reliably, these 
were carried at cost. Loans and receivables and held to maturity investments were carried at 
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.	

		
	 Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss’ category were presented in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they 
arose. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit and loss was recognized 
in the statement of profit or loss as part of other income when the company’s right to receive 
payments was established.	
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	 Changes in the fair value of securities classified as available-for-sale were recognized in other 
comprehensive income. When securities classified as available-for-sale were sold or impaired, the 
accumulated fair value adjustments recognized in equity were included in the statement of profit 
or loss as gains and losses from investment securities. Interest on available-for-sale securities 
calculated using the effective interest method was recognized in the statement of profit or loss.  
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments were recognized in the statement of profit or 
loss when the company’s right to receive payments was established.	

		
	 The company assessed at each reporting date whether there was objective evidence that 

a financial asset or a group of financial assets was impaired. If any such evidence existed for 
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss was removed from equity and recognized in 
the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in the statement of profit or loss on 
equity instruments were not reversed through the statement of profit or loss.	

		
4.11	 Financial liabilities	
		
	 Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the company becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially measured at fair value 
less transaction costs. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised 
at fair value and transaction costs are expensed on profit or loss.	

		
	 Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured 

at amortised cost using the effective yield method.	
		
	 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled 

or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender or 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange and modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition 
of a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.	

		
4.12	 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities	
		
	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated 

financial statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amount 
and the company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the 
liabilities simultaneously.	

		
4.13	 Financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan	
		
	 Financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan include trade debts and other receivables 

due from NTDC/Central Power Purchasing Agency (Guarantee) Limited (‘CPPA-G) under the 
PPA that also includes accrued amounts. As referred to in note 2.2.1(a) to these unconsolidated 
financial statements, SECP through SRO 985(I)/2019 dated September 2, 2019 has notified 
that, in respect of companies holding financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan, 
the requirements contained in IFRS 9 with respect to application of Expected Credit Losses 
method shall not be applicable till June 30, 2021 and that such companies shall follow relevant 
requirements of IAS 39 in respect of above referred financial assets during the exemption period. 
Accordingly, the same continue to be reported as per the following accounting policy:	

		
	 A provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the company will 

not be able to collect all the amount due according to the original terms of the receivable. 	
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	 The company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence 
that the financial asset is impaired. The financial asset is impaired and impairment losses are 
incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that 
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has 
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated. 
Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtor is experiencing significant financial 
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter 
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where observable data indicates that there is a 
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic 
conditions that correlate with defaults. The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between 
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future 
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective 
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss. When the financial asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the 
provision. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to the statement 
of profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the 
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised 
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised 
impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

4.14	 Trade debts
	
	 Trade debts are amounts due from NTDC/CPPA-G in the ordinary course of business. They are 

generally due for settlement as referred to in note 4.22 and therefore are all classified as current. 
Trade debts are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they 
contain significant financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The company 
holds the trade debts with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore 
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision 
for impairment.	

		
4.15	 Share capital	
		
	 Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs 

directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, if 
any.	

		
4.16	 Employee benefits	
		
	 (i)	 Short term obligations
		
		  Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and accumulating annual 

leaves that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period 
in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ 
services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected 
to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee 
benefit obligations in the statement of financial position.

		
	 (ii)	 Post employment benefit - Defined contribution plan (Provident Fund)
		
		  There is an approved defined contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal monthly 

contributions are made both by the company and employees to the fund at the rate of 10 
percent of the basic salary subject to completion of minimum qualifying period of service as 
determined under the rules of the fund.  
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4.17	 Trade and other payables	
		
	 Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in 

the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are recognized initially at 
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.	

		
4.18	 Provisions	
		
	 Provisions are recognized when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a 

result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions 
are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimate.	

		
4.19	 Cash and cash equivalents	
		
	 Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, bank overdrafts, 

running finance under mark-up arrangements and short term loans which form an integral part of 
the company’s cash management.	

		
4.20	 Borrowings	
		
	 Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are 

subsequently stated at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction 
costs) and the redemption value is recognized in the statement of profit or loss over the period of 
the borrowings using the effective interest method. 	

		
	 Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to 

defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the statement of financial position 
date.	

		
4.21	 Borrowing costs	
		
	 General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 

production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time 
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time 
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on 
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets 
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are 
recognised in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.	

		
4.22	 Revenue recognition	
		
	 Revenue shall be recognised when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation by 

transferring a promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when 
(or as) the customer obtains control of that asset and thus has the ability to direct the use and 
obtain the benefits from the good or service. 	

		
	 “Revenue from the sale of electricity to NTDC, the sole customer of the company, is recorded on 

the following basis:

	 - 	 Capacity revenue is recognised based on the capacity made available to NTDC; and

	 - 	 Energy revenue is recognised based on the Net Electrical Output (NEO) delivered to 
NTDC.
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	 Capacity and Energy revenue is recognised based on the rates determined under the mechanism 
laid down in the PPA. 	

		
	 Delayed payment markup on amounts due under the PPA is accrued on a time proportion basis 

by reference to the amount outstanding and the applicable rate of return under the PPA.	
		
	 Invoices are generally raised on a monthly basis and are due after 30 days from acknowledgement 

by NTDC.	
		
4.23	 Foreign currency transactions and translation	
		
	 a)	 Functional and presentation currency
		
		  Items included in the unconsolidated financial statements of the company are measured 

using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the company operates 
(the functional currency). The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the 
company’s functional and presentation currency.

		
	 b)	 Transactions and balances
		
		  Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange rates 

prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from 
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates 
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss. 

		
4.24	 Dividend 	
		
	 Dividend distribution to the company’s members is recognised as a liability in the period in which 

the dividends are approved.	
		
4.25	 Contingent liabilities	
		
	 Contingent liability is disclosed when:	
		
	 -	 there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be 

confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the company; or

	 -	 there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

		
5.	 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL	
		
	 This represents 354,088,500 (2018: 354,088,500) ordinary shares of Rs 10 each fully paid in 

cash. 180,632,955 (2018: 180,632,955) ordinary shares of the company are held by Nishat Mills 
Limited, the holding company.	
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6.	 This represents maintenance reserve set aside from retained earnings for the purpose of meeting 
repair and maintenance costs associated with major maintenance of the plant in coming years. 
The reserve is not available for distribution of profits through dividend and will be utilized on actual 
occurrence of expenditure.	

		
7.	  In accordance with the terms of agreement with the lenders of long term finances, there are 

certain restrictions on the distribution of dividends by the company.	 	

			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
8.	 LONG TERM FINANCING - SECURED			  		
	 The reconciliation of the carrying amount is as follows:			  		
	 Opening balance		   5,092,325 	  6,857,693 
	 Less: Repayments during the year		   2,052,155 	  1,765,368 		
			    3,040,170 	  5,092,325 
	 Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities	  2,385,532 	  2,052,155 		
			    654,638 	  3,040,170    
				  
				  
	 Long term financing under mark-up arrangement obtained from following banks:
				  
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
	 Lender			 
	 National Bank of Pakistan		   527,628 	  883,784 
	 Habib Bank Limited		   703,568 	  1,178,486 
	 Allied Bank Limited		   703,568 	  1,178,486 
	 United Bank Limited		   691,030 	  1,157,485 
	 Faysal Bank Limited		   414,376 	  694,084 				  
			    3,040,170 	  5,092,325 
	 Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 	  2,385,532 	  2,052,155 
				  
			    654,638 	  3,040,170    
				  
8.1	 This represents long term financing obtained from a consortium of banks led by Habib Bank 

Limited (Agent Bank). The portion of long term financing from Faysal Bank Limited is on 
murabaha basis. The overall financing is secured against registered first joint pari passu charge 
on immovable property, mortgage of project receivables, hypothecation of all present and 
future assets and all properties of the company (excluding the mortgaged immovable property 
and mortgaged energy payment receivables), lien over project bank accounts and pledge of 
shares held by the holding company in Nishat Power Limited. It carries mark-up at the rate of 
three months Karachi Inter-Bank Offered Rate (KIBOR) plus three percent per annum, payable 
on quarterly basis. The mark-up rate charged during the year on the outstanding balance 
ranged from 9.92% to 13.99% (2018: 9.12% to 9.50%) per annum. The finance is repayable 
in five quarterly instalments ending on July 01, 2020.	
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			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
9.	 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - SECURED

	 Short term borrowings under mark-up arrangements 
	    obtained as under:			 
				  
	 Running finances	 - note 9.1	  5,220,315 	  2,774,392 
	 Term finances	 - note 9.2	  1,199,997 	  1,804,499 
				  
			    6,420,312 	  4,578,891      
9.1	 Running finances			 
				  
	 The total running finance and running musharka main facilities obtained from various 

commercial banks under mark-up arrangements aggregate Rs 7,201.520 million (2018: Rs 
6,651.520 million). Such facilities have been obtained at mark-up rates ranging from three 
months KIBOR plus 0.25% to 2% per annum, payable quarterly, on the balance outstanding. 
The aggregate facilities are secured against charge on  present and future fuel stock/inventory 
and present and future energy purchase price receivables. The mark-up rate charged during 
the year on the outstanding balance ranged from 7.18% to 12.99% (2018: 6.39% to 8.43%) 
per annum. Various sub facilities comprising money market loans and letters of guarantee 
have also been utilized under the aforementioned main facilities.

	
9.2	 Term finances
	
	 The total murabaha and term finance main facilities obtained from various commercial banks 

under mark-up arrangements aggregate Rs 2,650 million (2018: Rs 2,450 million). Such 
facilities have been obtained at mark-up rates ranging from one week to six months KIBOR 
plus 0.05% to 1.25%, payable at the maturity of the respective murabaha transaction/term 
finance facility. The aggregate facilities are secured against first pari passu charge on current 
assets comprising of fuel stocks/inventory. The mark-up rate charged during the year on the 
outstanding balance ranged from 6.41% to 13.75% (2018: 6.45% to 7.43%) per annum. 
Various sub facilities comprising running musharka and running finance have also been utilized 
under the aforementioned main facilities. 

	
9.3	 Letters of credit and guarantee
	
	 The main facilities for opening letters of credit and guarantee aggregate Rs 500 million (2018: 

Rs 800 million). The amount utilised at June 30, 2019, for letters of credit was Rs 19.740 
million (2018: Rs 140.210 million) and for letters of guarantee was Rs 112.500 million (2018: 
Rs 202.984 million). The aggregate facilities for opening letters of credit and guarantee are 
secured by charge on present and future current assets including fuel stocks/inventory of the 
company and by lien over import documents.

			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
10.	 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES			 
				  
	 Creditors 	 - note 10.1	  62,937 	  469,811 
	 Payable to contractors		   3,457 	  3,495 
	 Workers’ profit participation fund	 - note 10.2	  188,477 	  160,571 
	 Withholding tax payable 		   -   	  652 
	 Other accrued liabilities 		   6,730 	  3,057 
				  
			    261,601	  637,586   
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			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
10.1	 Includes amounts due to the following related parties:
			 
	 Security General Insurance Company Limited		   552 	  -   
	 Adamjee Insurance Company Limited		   6,291 	  5,289 
	 D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited		   184 	  -   
				  
			    7,027 	  5,289   

10.2	 Workers’ Profit Participation Fund			 
				  
	 Opening balance		   160,571 	  144,186 
	 Provision for the year	 - note 19.1	  188,477 	  160,571 
				  
			    349,048 	  304,757 
	 Less: Payments made during the year		   160,571 	  144,186 
				  
	 Closing balance		   188,477 	  160,571    
				  

10.3	 Workers’ Welfare Fund (WWF’) has not been provided for in these unconsolidated financial 
statements based on the advice of the company’s legal consultant. However, in case the 
company pays WWF, the same is recoverable from NTDC as a pass through item under 
section 9.3(a) of the PPA.

			 
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
11.	 ACCRUED MARKUP			 
				  
	 Accrued mark-up / interest on:
			 
	 Long term financing - secured		   105,994 	  120,733 
	 Short term borrowings - secured		   127,914 	  61,753 
				  
			    233,908 	  182,486    

12.	 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS			 
				  
12.1	 Contingencies

	 Contingent liabilities:			 
				  
	 (i)	  A sales tax demand of Rs 1,218.132 million was raised against the company through 

order dated December 11, 2013, passed by the Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue 
(‘ACIR’) disallowing input sales tax for the tax periods of July 2010 through June 2012. 
The disallowance was primarily made on the grounds that since revenue derived by 
the company on account of ‘capacity revenue’ was not chargeable to sales tax, input 
sales tax claimed by the company was required to be apportioned with only the input 
sales tax attributable to other revenue stream i.e. ‘energy revenue’ admissible to the 
company. Upon appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [‘CIR(A)’], such 
issue was decided in company’s favour, however, certain other issues agitated by the 
company were not adjudicated. Both the company and department have filed appeals 
against the order of CIR(A) before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (‘ATIR’), which are 
pending adjudication
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		  Subsequently, the above explained issue was taken up by department for tax periods 
of July 2009 to June 2013 (involving input sales tax of Rs 1,722.811 million), however, 
the company assailed the underlying proceedings before Lahore High Court (‘LHC’) 
directly and in this respect, through order dated October 31, 2016, LHC accepted the 
company’s stance and annulled the proceedings. The department has challenged the 
decision of LHC before Supreme Court of Pakistan and has also preferred an Intra Court 
Appeal against such order which are pending adjudication.

		
		  Similarly, for financial year 2014, company’s case was selected for ‘audit’ and such 

issue again formed the core of audit proceedings (involving input sales tax of Rs 
596.091 million). Company challenged the jurisdiction in respect of audit proceedings 
before LHC and while LHC directed the management to join the subject proceedings, 
department was debarred from passing the adjudication order. During the year, LHC 
has dismissed the petition in favour of the department, by allowing the department to 
complete the audit proceedings that are pending completion.

		
		  Since the issue has already been decided in company’s favour on merits by LHC and 

based on advice of the company’s legal counsel, no provision on these accounts have 
been made in these unconsolidated financial statements.

		
	 (ii)    	 During the year, the Commissioner Inland Revenue has raised a demand of Rs 179.046 

million against the company through his order dated April 16, 2019, mainly on account 
of input tax claimed on inadmissible expenses in sales tax return for the tax periods 
of July 2014 to June 2017 and sales tax default on account of suppression of sales 
related to tax period June 2016. The company filed application for grant of stay before 
the ATIR against recovery of the aforesaid demand that was duly granted. Further, the 
company has filed appeals before CIR(A) and ATIR against the order which is pending 
adjudication. Management has strong grounds to believe that the case will be decided 
in company’s favour. Therefore, no provision has been made on this account in these 
unconsolidated financial statements.

		
	 (iii)	 During the year, National Electric Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA) issued a show 

cause notice dated February 13, 2019, to the company along with other Independent 
Power Producers to provide rationale of abnormal profits earned since commercial 
operation date (COD) that eventually led to initiation of proceedings against the company 
by NEPRA on March 18, 2019. The company has challanged the authority of NEPRA to 
take suo moto action before the Islamabad High Court (IHC) wherein IHC has provided 
interim relief by suspending the suo moto proceedings. The case is currently pending 
adjudication before IHC. Management is confident that based on the facts and law, 
there will be no adverse implications for the  company.

		
	 (iv)	 The banks have issued the following on behalf of the company:
		
	 (a)	 Letter of guarantee of Rs 11 million (2018: Rs 11 million) in favour of Director Excise and 

Taxation, Karachi, under direction of Sindh High Court in respect of suit filed for levy of 
infrastructure cess.  

		
	 (b)	 Letters of guarantee of Rs 100 million (2018: Rs 190.484 million) in favour of fuel 

suppliers.
		
	 (c)	 Letter of guarantee of Rs 1.5 million (2018: Rs 1.5 million) in favour of Punjab Revenue 

Authority, Lahore.
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	 Contingent asset:
		
	 (i) 	 On August 07, 2017, the company instituted arbitration proceedings against NTDC/

Government of Pakistan by filing a Request for Arbitration (‘RFA’) with the London Court 
of International Arbitration (‘LCIA’) (the ‘Arbitration Proceedings’) for disallowing an 
amount of Rs 1,084.748 million relating to delayed payment charges on outstanding 
delayed payment invoices. The company believes it is entitled to claim delayed payment 
charges on outstanding delayed payments receivables from NTDC as per terms of the 
PPA. However, NTDC has denied this liability and objected on the maintainability of the 
Arbitration Proceedings, terming it against the PPA and refused to pay delayed payment 
charges on outstanding delayed payments receivables.

		
		  The LCIA appointed a sole Arbitrator and a hearing was also held in March 2018. During 

the year, the Arbitrator has issued Partial Final Award in which he has rejected the 
NTDC’s objection to the maintainability of the Arbitration Proceedings.

		
		  While the Arbitration Proceedings on merits of the case are underway, the company has 

submitted the Partial Final Award before LHC and obtained interim relief from honourable 
LHC, whereby, LHC has restrained NTDC from taking steps for delaying the arbitration 
proceedings and challenging the award in Civil Courts of Pakistan. As the above amount 
is disputed, therefore, on prudence basis, the company has not recognised the income 
and corresponding asset for such amount in these unconsolidated financial statements.

		
	 12.2	 Commitments
		
	 (i)        Letters of credit and contracts for other than capital expenditure aggregating Rs 19.548 

million (2018: Rs 140.210 million).
		
	 (ii)       The amount of future payments under non-cancellable operating lease and the period 

in which these payments will become due are as follows:	
		
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
	

	 Not later than one year		   3,894 	  3,894   

13.	 FIXED ASSETS			 
				  
	 Property, plant and equipment:			 
	 Operating fixed assets	 - note 13.1	  9,809,491 	  10,449,604 
	 Capital work-in-progress 	 - note 13.2	  21,726 	  14,284 
	 Major spare parts and standby equipment	 - note 13.3	  171,600 	  189,932 
				  
			    10,002,817 	  10,653,820 
	 Intangible asset:			 
	 Computer software	 - note 13.4	  2,767 	  4,275 
				  
			    10,005,584 	  10,658,095    
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13.1	 Operating fixed assets
										          (Rupees in 
										          thousand)
	  Freehold 	  Buildings	 Plant and 	 Improve-	  Electric 	  Computer 	  Furniture 	  Office 	  Vehicles 	  Total 
	 land -	 and roads	 machinery	 ments on	 installa-	 equipment	 and	 equipment
	 note 13.1.2	 on freehold		  leasehold	 tions		  fixtures
		  land		  property
COST 
Balance as at July 01, 2017 	  80,686 	  198,172 	  16,879,372 	  40,909 	  661 	  27,150 	  10,162 	  51,013 	  114,259 	  17,402,384 
Additions during the year 	  -   	  -   	  118,222 	  -   	  -   	  3,137 	  1,287 	  3,929 	  9,355 	  135,930 
Disposals during the year - note 13.1.4 	  -   	  -   	  (51,734)	  -   	  -   	  (669)	  -   	  -   	  (6,589)	  (58,992)										        
Balance as at June 30, 2018 	  80,686 	  198,172 	  16,945,860 	  40,909 	  661 	  29,618 	  11,449 	  54,942 	  117,025 	  17,479,322 
										         										        
Balance as at July 01, 2018 	  80,686 	  198,172 	  16,945,860 	  40,909 	  661 	  29,618 	  11,449 	  54,942 	  117,025 	  17,479,322 
Additions during the year 	  -   	  17,161 	  172,420 	  -   	  383 	  3,014 	  522 	  145 	  97,965 	  291,611 
Disposals during the year - note 13.1.4 	  -   	  -   	  (468,705)	  -   	  -   	  (1,734)	  -   	  (2,735)	  -   	  (473,174)										        
Balance as at June 30, 2019 	  80,686 	  215,333 	  16,649,575 	  40,909 	  1,044 	  30,898 	  11,971 	  52,352 	  214,990 	  17,297,759 
										        
										        
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT 										        
Balance as at July 01, 2017 	  -   	  54,062 	  5,952,613 	  25,064 	  450 	  18,182 	  4,707 	  21,880 	  34,694 	  6,111,652 
Depreciation charge for the year 	  -   	  7,982 	  927,350 	  4,091 	  59 	  7,872 	  996 	  4,868 	  22,792 	  976,010 
Disposals during the year 	  -   	  -   	  (51,734)	  -   	  -   	  (669)	  -   	  -   	  (5,541)	  (57,944)
										        
Balance as at June 30, 2018 	  -   	  62,044 	  6,828,229 	  29,155 	  509 	  25,385 	  5,703 	  26,748 	  51,945 	  7,029,718 
										         										        
Balance as at July 01, 2018 	  -   	  62,044 	  6,828,229 	  29,155 	  509 	  25,385 	  5,703 	  26,748 	  51,945 	  7,029,718 
Depreciation charge for the year 	  -   	  8,415 	  773,401 	  4,091 	  54 	  2,703 	  1,190 	  5,322 	  29,134 	  824,310 
Disposals during the year 	  -   	  -   	  (361,940)	  -   	  -   	  (1,573)	  -   	  (2,248)	  -   	  (365,761)
										        
Balance as at June 30, 2019 	  -   	  70,459 	  7,239,690 	  33,246 	  563 	  26,515 	  6,893 	  29,822 	  81,079 	  7,488,267 
										        

Book value as at June 30, 2018 	  80,686 	  136,128 	  10,117,631 	  11,754 	  152 	  4,233 	  5,746 	  28,194 	  65,080 	  10,449,604 
										        

Book value as at June 30, 2019 	  80,686 	  144,874 	  9,409,885 	  7,663 	  481 	  4,384 	  5,077 	  22,531 	  133,911 	  9,809,491 
										        

Annual depreciation rate % 		   	 4 to 5.85 
	  -   	  4 to 5.24	 and number 	 10	 10	 33	 10	 10	 20
			   of hours used								      
			 

13.1.1	 Improvements on leasehold property represents costs of improvement incurred on property 
owned by Nishat (Aziz Avenue) Hotels and Properties Limited, a related party.	

	
13.1.2	 Freehold land represents 137,879 square meters of land situated at Jamber Kalan, Tehsil 

Pattoki, District Kasur, Punjab, out of which approximately 85,407 square meters represents 
covered area.	 .

		  2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
13.1.3	 The depreciation charge for the year has 
	    been allocated as follows:			 
			 
	  Cost of sales 	  - note 22 	  789,939 	  947,831 
	  Administrative expenses 	  - note 23 	  34,371 	  28,179 
				  
			    824,310 	  976,010

13.1.4	 The aggregate book value of sale of operating fixed assets during the current and previous 
year was below Rs 5 million.	 .
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			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
13.2	 Capital work-in-progress			 
				  
	 Plant and machinery		   -   	  5,512 
	 Civil works		   21,725 	  7,772 
	 Advances against purchase of vehicles		   -   	  1,000 				  
			    21,725 	  14,284 
	 The reconciliation of the carrying amount is as follows:			  				 
	 Opening balance		   14,284 	  -   
	 Additions during the year 		   39,319 	  109,743 				  
			    53,603 	  109,743 
	 Transfers during the year		   (22,835)	  (95,459)
	 Charged to profit		   (9,042)	  -   
				  
	 Closing balance		   21,726 	  14,284 
				  
13.3	 Major spare parts and standby equipment			 
				  
	 Opening balance		   189,932 	  90,645 
	 Additions during the year 		   84,391 	  122,194 
	 Reclassified from stores, spares and loose tools		  70,007 	  -   				  
			    344,330 	  212,839 				  
	 Transfers during the year		   (172,730)	  (22,907)
				  
	 Closing balance 		   171,600 	  189,932 
				  
13.4	 Intangible asset			 
				  
	 Computer software			 
				  
	 Cost			 
	 Opening balance		   7,542 	  7,542 
	 Addition during the year		   -   	  -   
				  
	 Closing balance 		   7,542 	  7,542 
				  
	 Amortization			 
	 Opening balance		   (3,267)	  (1,759)
	 Charge for the year	 - note 22	  (1,508)	  (1,508)
				  
	 Closing balance 		   (4,775)	  (3,267)
				  
	 Book value 		   2,767 	  4,275 
				  
	 Annual amortization rate		   20% 	  20%     

13.5     	All property, plant and equipment and intangible asset of the company are pledged as security 
for long term financing as disclosed in note 8 to these unconsolidated financial statements.
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			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
14.	 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS			 
				  
	 Investment in associate	 - note 14.1	  -   	  -
	 Investment in subsidiary	 - note 14.2	  1,000 	  1,000				  
			    1,000 	  1,000  

14.1	 Related party - Associate			 
	 Unquoted:			 
	 Nishat Energy Limited			  				  
	 250,000 (2018: 250,000) fully paid ordinary shares 				 

of Rs 10 each [Equity held  25% (2018: 25%)] - Cost	  2,500 	  2,500 
				  
				  
	 The company directly holds 25% ordinary shares in Nishat Energy Limited (‘NEL’). NEL is an 

unquoted public company limited by shares incorporated in Pakistan to build, own, operate and 
maintain a coal fired power station. The address of the registered office of NEL is 1-B, Aziz Avenue, 
Canal Bank, Gulberg V, Lahore. NEL is no longer considered a going concern by its management 
and hence, the investment is fully impaired.					  
	

			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
14.2	 Subsidiary
	 Unquoted:		
	 Lalpir Solar Power (Private) Limited			 
			 
	 100,000 (2018: 50,000) fully paid ordinary shares of 			 
	    Rs 10 each [Equity held 100% (2018 : 100%)] - Cost		   1,000 	  1,000   
			 
	 The company directly holds 100% shares in its wholly owned subsidiary, Lalpir Solar Power 

(Private) Limited (‘LSPPL’). LSPPL is a private company limited by shares incorporated in 
Pakistan to build, own, operate and maintain or invest in a solar power project. The address 
of the registered office of LSPPL is 1-B, Aziz Avenue, Canal Bank, Gulberg V, Lahore. 

	
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
15. 	 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

	 Loans to employees - considered good		   229 	  752 
	 Less: Current portion shown under 
	              current assets	 - note 19	  (223)	  (521)
				  
			    6 	  231    
			 

	 This represents interest free motor vehicle loans given to employees, receivable in maximum 
60 monthly instalments in accordance with the company’s policy. These loans are secured 
against registration of cars in the joint name of the company and the employee and against 
the accumulated provident fund balance of the relevant employee. These loans have not been 
carried at amortised cost as the effect of discounting is not considered material.
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			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
16. 	 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

	 Stores		   10,694 	  8,579 
	 Spares [including in transit Rs 2.642 million 
	    (2018: Rs 4.680 million)]		   732,634 	  901,164 
	 Loose tools		   14,193 	  15,034 
				  
			    757,521 	  924,777  

16.1	 Stores and spares include items which may result in fixed capital expenditure but are not 
distinguishable.			 

			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
17.	 INVENTORIES

	 Furnace oil		   1,688,656 	  1,553,946 
	 Diesel		   4,515 	  2,166 
	 Lubricating oil		   26,228 	  13,227
 
			    1,719,399 	  1,569,339

			 
18.  	 TRADE DEBTS			 
			 
18.1	 These represent trade receivables from NTDC and are considered good. These are secured by 

a guarantee from the Government of Pakistan under the Implementation Agreement and are in 
the normal course of business and interest free, however, a delayed payment mark-up at the 
rate of three months KIBOR plus 4.5% per annum is charged in case the amounts are not paid 
within due dates. The rate of delayed payment mark-up charged during the year on outstanding 
amounts ranges from 10.57% to 17.47% (2018: 10.57% to 14.66%) per annum. Trade debts 
include unbilled receivables of Rs 652.678 million (2018: Rs 340.666 million).

	
18.2	 Included in trade debts is an amount of Rs 816.033 million relating to capacity revenue not 

acknowledged by NTDC as the plant was not fully available for power generation. However, the 
sole reason of this under-utilization of plant capacity was non-availability of fuel owing to non-
payment by NTDC.

	
	 Since management considers that the primary reason for claiming these payments is that plant 

was available, however, could not generate electricity due to non-payment by NTDC, therefore, 
management believes that company cannot be penalized in the form of payment deductions 
due to NTDC’s default of making timely payments under the PPA. Hence, the company had 
taken up this issue at appropriate forums. 
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	 On June 28, 2013, the company entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (‘MoU’) for 
cooperation on extension of credit terms with NTDC whereby it was agreed that the constitutional 
petition filed by the company before the Supreme Court of Pakistan on the abovementioned 
issue would be withdrawn unconditionally and it would be resolved through the dispute 
resolution mechanism under the PPA. Accordingly, as per terms of the MoU, the company 
applied for withdrawal of the aforesaid petition in 2013 and on January 25, 2018, the Supreme 
Court disposed off the petitions filed before it. During the financial year 2014, the company in 
consultation with NTDC, appointed an Expert for dispute resolution under the PPA.

	
	 During the financial year 2016, the Expert gave his determination whereby the aforesaid amount 

was determined to be payable to the company by NTDC. Pursuant to the Expert’s determination, 
the company demanded the payment of the aforesaid amount of Rs 816.033 million from NTDC 
that has not yet been paid by NTDC. The company filed a request for arbitration in the London 
Court of International Arbitration (‘LCIA’), whereby an Arbitrator was appointed.

	
	 In October 2015, the Government of Pakistan (‘GOP’) through Private Power & Infrastructure 

Board (‘PPIB’) filed a case in the court of Senior Civil Judge, (“Civil Case 2015”), Lahore, against 
the aforementioned decision of the Expert, praying it to be illegal, which is pending adjudication 

	
	 Consequently, invitation to participate in arbitration was issued to the PPIB/GOP. PPIB filed 

separate Civil Suit before the Civil Judge, Lahore, seeking inter alia that the parties should 
be restrained from participating in the arbitration proceedings in the LCIA (“Civil Case 2016”). 
The company filed applications in the Civil Court where the company prayed that the Civil 
Court, Lahore lacks the jurisdiction in respect of the cases filed by PPIB. In respect of the 
aforementioned applications, through its orders dated April 18, 2017, the Civil Court, Lahore 
rejected company’s pray and granted the pray of PPIB whereby, the court accepted PPIB’s 
applications for interim relief in 2015 and 2016 Civil Suits. Being aggrieved, the company 
challenged before the Additional District Judge, Lahore against the aforementioned orders of the 
Civil Court and continued to take part in the arbitration proceedings. Furthermore, in response 
to the company’s continued participation in the arbitration proceedings, PPIB filed contempt 
petition before Lahore High Court (‘LHC’) in respect of the decision of the Civil Court, Lahore 
and the LHC passed an order in those proceedings. The Company challenged the LHC’s order 
before the Division Bench of LHC, which decided the matter in favour of the company through 
its order dated May 31, 2017 whereby, the aforementioned order of the LHC was suspended. 

	
	 The Arbitrator, on June 08, 2017,  declared his Partial Final Award and decided the matter 

principally in company’s favour and declared that the above mentioned Expert’s determination 
is final and binding on all parties (“Final Partial Award”). 

	
	 Aggrieved by the Partial Final Award, NTDC challenged the Arbitrator’s decision in Lahore 

Civil Court (“Civil Case 2017”), which suspended the Final Partial Award on July 10, 2017. In 
response to this decision of Civil Court, the company filed a revision petition in District Court and 
the District Court (“District Case 2017”) while granting interim relief to the company, suspended 
the Civil Court’s order on August 12, 2017. Along with challenging the Final Partial Award in 
Lahore Civil Court, NTDC also challenged the same, on July 06, 2017, in Commercial Court 
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of England. As per advice of foreign legal counsel, the company also filed a case for anti suit 
injunction in Commercial Court of England against NTDC on August 14, 2017.

	
	 The District Judge, Lahore through his order dated July 8, 2017 set-aside the aforementioned 

orders of the Civil Judge, Lahore dated April 18, 2017 and accepted company’s appeals but 
dismissed the company’s revision petitions concerning the issue of jurisdiction. Aggrieved by 
this decision, (i) the company filed writ petitions before the LHC, which announced a favourable 
decision and suspended the proceedings of Civil Cases 2015 and 2016 till the final decision 
of LHC; and (ii) GOP/PPIB filed revision petitions in the LHC, which are currently pending 
adjudication.

	
	 On October 29, 2017, the Arbitrator declared his Final Award whereby he ordered NTDC to pay 

to the company: i) Rs 816.033 million pursuant to Expert’s determination; ii) Rs 189.385 million 
being Pre award interest; iii) Rs 9.203 million for breach of arbitration agreement; iv) Rs 1.684 
million and USD 612,310 for the company’s cost of proceedings; v) GBP 30,157 for company’s 
LCIA cost of Arbitration and vi) Interest at KIBOR + 4.5% compounded semi-annually from the 
date of Final Award until payment of these amounts by NTDC (“the Final Award”) that works out 
to Rs 205.870 million up to June 30, 2019.

	
	 On November 24, 2017, NTDC challenged the Final Award in Commercial Court of England. On 

November 29, 2017, company filed an application before Lahore High Court for implementation 
of Final Award that is also pending adjudication. During the hearing held in December 2017 in 
London, NTDC withdrew its petitions dated July 06, 2017 and November 24, 2017 filed before 
Commercial Court of England against the company, pertaining to Partial Final Award and Final 
Award respectively.

	
	 On May 4, 2018, Commercial Court of England issued a favourable decision in the case of anti 

suit injunction, thereby preventing NTDC from pursuing case in Pakistan Civil Courts against 
Partial Final Award/Final Award and taking any steps outside England to set aside Partial Final 
Award/Final Award issued by the Arbitrator. Aggrieved by this decision, NTDC had sought 
permission to file an appeal before the Court of Appeals, London, which was rejected by the 
Court on October 04, 2018.

	
	 Based on the favourable Expert’s determination and Arbitration Award, management strongly 

feels that under the terms of the PPA and Implementation Agreement, the above amount of Rs 
816.033 million is likely to be recovered by the company. Consequently, no provision for this 
amount has been made in these unconsolidated financial statements. 

	
	 Further, being prudent, the company has not recognised the abovementioned amounts in these 

financial statements for Pre-award interest, breach of arbitration agreement, company’s cost of 
proceedings, company’s LCIA cost of Arbitration and interest thereon on all these amounts as 
per Final Award due to its uncertainty since it is pending adjudication as mentioned above. Such 
amounts as per Final Award would be recognized when it attains finality and its collectibility is 
certain.
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			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
19. 	 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS
	    AND OTHER RECEIVABLES			 
			 
	 Advances - considered good:			 
	 -  To employees		   395 	  16,694 
	 -  To suppliers		   743 	  3,404 
	 Current portion of long term loans 
	    - considered good	 - note 15	  223 	  521 
	 Balances with statutory authorities:			 
	 -  Customs duty recoverable		   4 	  12 
	 -  Sales tax		   458,530 	  497,662 
	 Claims recoverable from NTDC for pass 
	    through items:			 
	 -  Workers’ Profit Participation Fund	 - notes 19.1 
		  and 19.2	  401,225 	  718,290 
	 Interest receivable	 - note 19.3	  1,654 	  1,034 
	 Security deposits and bank guarantee margins		   7,612 	  6,522 
	 Prepayments		   5,738 	  6,186 
	 Other receivables	 - note 19.4	  28,321 	  4,674 
				  
			    904,445 	  1,254,999    

19.1 	 Workers’ Profit Participation Fund

	 Opening balance		   718,291 	  567,720 
	 Accrued for the year	 - note 10.2	  188,477 	  160,571 
				  
			    906,768 	  728,291 
	 Less: Amount received during the year		   505,543 	  10,000 
				  
	 Closing balance		   401,225 	  718,291  
				  

19.2	 Under section 9.3(a) of the PPA with NTDC, payments to Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 
are recoverable from NTDC as a pass through item.

	
19.3	 Includes an amount due from MCB Bank Limited, a related party amounting to Rs 0.674 

million (2018: Rs 0.469 million).
	
19.4	 Includes an amount due from Lalpir Solar Power (Private) Limited, a related party amounting 

to Rs 4.373 million (2018: Rs 4.373 million).
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19.5	 The maximum aggregate amount due from  Lalpir Solar Power (Private) Limited, a related 
party at the end of any month during the year was Rs 4.373 million (2018: Rs 4.373 million). 

	
19.6	 The maximum aggregate amount due from MCB Bank Limited, a related party at the end of 

any month during the year was Rs 1.654 million (2018: Rs 1.034 million). 			
.

			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
20. 	 CASH AND BANK BALANCES			 
			 
	 Cash at bank:			 
	 - On saving accounts 	 - note 20.1	  19,430 	  135,355 
	 - On current accounts 		   549 	  4,224 
				  
		  - note 20.2	  19,979 	  139,579 
	 Cash in hand		   797 	  726 
				  
			    20,776 	  140,305 
				  
20.1	 Profit on balances in saving accounts ranges from 3.11% to 10.50% (2018: 3.00% to 4.75%) 

per annum.			 
				  
20.2	 Cash at bank includes Rs 17.359 million (2018: Rs 23.448 million) in MCB Bank Limited, a 

related party.					  
	

			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
21. 	 SALES

	 Energy revenue		   11,240,901 	  14,066,981 
	 Less: Sales tax		   1,644,765 	  2,054,816 
				  
			    9,596,136 	  12,012,165 
	 Capacity revenue		   4,791,511 	  4,217,339 
	 Delayed payment markup		   1,194,271 	  699,581 
				  
			    15,581,918 	  16,929,085   
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			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
22. 	 COST OF SALES			 
			 
	 Raw materials consumed		   8,801,876 	  10,882,284 
	 Salaries and other benefits	 - note 22.1	  277,238 	  234,372 
	 Repairs and maintenance		   39,123 	  21,847 
	 Stores, spares and loose tools consumed	- note 22.2	  357,039 	  372,965 
	 Electricity consumed in-house		   23,213 	  4,245 
	 Insurance	 - note 22.3	  211,016 	  168,296 
	 Travelling and conveyance		   24,035 	  20,185 
	 Printing and stationery		   805 	  702 
	 Postage and telephone		   661 	  628 
	 Vehicle running expenses		   3,094 	  2,178 
	 Entertainment		   1,920 	  1,819 
	 Depreciation on operating fixed assets	 - note 13.1.3	  789,939 	  947,831 
	 Amortization of intangible asset	 - note 13.4	  1,508 	  1,508 
	 Fee and subscription		   3,923 	  4,184 
	 Miscellaneous	 - note 22.4	  48,631 	  44,292 
				  
			    10,584,021 	  12,707,336   
			 
22.1	 Salaries and other benefits include Rs 15.573 million (2018: Rs 14.104 million) in respect of 

provident fund contribution by the company.
	
22.2	 This includes goods of Rs 0.301 million (2018: Rs 2.261 million) purchased from D.G. Khan 

Cement Company Limited, a related party.
	
22.3	 This includes amount of Rs 206.873 million (2018: Rs 163.6 million) charged by Security General 

Insurance Company Limited, a related party, in respect of insurance of the company’s assets.
	
22.4	 This includes wages of contractual employees aggregating Rs 30.752 million (2018: 

Rs 27.698 million).			 
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
23. 	 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES			 
			 
	 Salaries and other benefits	  - note 23.1 	  124,094 	  106,734 
	 Travelling and conveyance	  - note 23.2 	  66,481 	  55,995 
	 Entertainment		   1,154 	  1,222 
	 Rent, rates and taxes	  - note 23.3 	  12,561 	  12,661 
	 Printing and stationery		   729 	  1,033 
	 Postage and telephone		   1,269 	  1,166 
	 Vehicle running expenses		   5,756 	  5,250 
	 Legal and professional charges	  - note 23.4 	  10,346 	  89,563 
	 Insurance	  - note 23.5 	  4,838 	  3,765 
	 Advertisement		   179 	  960 
	 Fee and subscription		   3,226 	  3,939 
	 Depreciation on operating fixed assets	 - note 13.1.3	  34,371 	  28,179 
	 Miscellaneous		   9,119 	  9,967 
				  
			    274,123 	  320,434    
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23.1	 Salaries and other benefits include Rs 5.970 million (2018: Rs 5.723 million) in respect of 
provident fund contribution by the company.

	
23.2	 Includes Rs 58.403 million (2018: Rs 47.061 million) in respect of aviation services from 

Pakistan Aviators and Aviation (Private) Limited, a related party.
	
23.3	 Includes operating lease rentals of Rs 12.461 million (2018: Rs 12.461 million) in respect of 

property leased from Nishat (Aziz Avenue) Hotels and Properties Limited, a related party.
	
23.4	 Legal and professional charges include the following in respect of auditors’ remuneration 

(excluding sales tax) for:
	
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)

	 Statutory audit fee		   1,675 	  1,565 
	 Half yearly review		   875 	  875 
	 Tax services		   985 	  861 
	 Certifications required by various regulations		   264 	  167 
	 Reimbursement of expenses		   149 	  194 
				  
			    3,948 	  3,662 

23.5	 This represents insurance services obtained from 
	    following related parties:			 
				  
	 Adamjee Life Assurance Company Limited		   432 	  506 
	 Security General Insurance Company Limited		   3,246 	  2,581 
				  
			    3,678 	  3,087

24.	 OTHER EXPENSES			 
				  
	 Exchange loss		   1,366 	  2,770 
	 Donations		   500 	  -   
	 Loss on disposal of operating fixed assets		   14,018 	  -   
				  
			    15,884 	  2,770 
25.	 OTHER INCOME			 
				  
	 Profit on bank deposits		   4,074 	  2,548 
	 Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets		   -   	  53 
	 Scrap sales		   3,231 	  4,845 
	 Insurance receipts against business interruption loss	  -   	  43,587 
				  
			    7,305 	  51,033   
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			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
26.	 FINANCE COST			  				  
	 Interest / mark-up on:			 
	  - Long term financing - secured		   458,528 	  533,774 
	  - Short term borrowings - secured		   482,561 	  201,149 
	 Financing fee and bank charges		   4,557 	  2,396 
				  
			    945,646 	  737,319  
				  
27.	 TAXATION			  				  
	 Current:			 
	 - For the year		   -   	  -   
	 - Prior years		   -   	  -   
				  
			    -   	  -   	

			 
27.1	 Relationship between tax expense
	    and accounting profit			 
				  
	 Profit before taxation		   3,769,549 	  3,211,416 
				  

	 Tax at the applicable rate of 29% (2018: 30%)		   1,093,169 	  963,424 
	 Tax effect of amounts that are:			 
	 Exempt as referred to in note 4.1		   (1,091,988)	  (962,660)
	 Allowable as tax credit		   (1,181)	  (764)

			    -   	  -   	
			 

27.2	 For the purposes of current taxation, the tax credit available for carry forward is estimated at Rs 
25.387 million (2018: Rs 84.722 million). As explained in note 4.1, management believes that the 
tax credit available for carry forward may not be utilized in the foreseeable future. Consequently, 
on prudence basis, deferred tax asset on tax credit available for carry forward has not been 
recognized in these unconsolidated financial statements. Tax credit would expire as follows:

		  Accounting year to	 Amount of tax credit	 Accounting year in which
		  which tax credit relates	 (Rupees in thousand)	 tax credit will expire
			 
		  2018	   8,145	 2020
		  2019	 17,242	 2021

			   25,387 
	
			   2019	 2018
28. 	 EARNINGS PER SHARE			 
			 
28.1 	 Basic earnings per share			 
			 
	 Net profit for the year	 Rupees	  3,769,549,000 	  3,211,416,000 
				  
	 Weighted average number of ordinary shares	Number	  354,088,500 	  354,088,500 
				  
	 Earnings per share	 Rupees	  10.646 	  9.070    
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28.2 	 Diluted earnings per share			 
			 
	 A diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the company does not have any 

convertible instruments in issue as at June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 which would have 
any effect on the earnings per share if the option to convert is exercised.		
	

			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
29. 	 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

	 Profit before taxation		   3,769,549 	  3,211,416 
				  
	 Adjustment for non cash charges and other items:			 
				  
	 Depreciation on operating fixed assets    - note 13.1.3	  824,310 	  976,010 
	 Amortization on intangible assets              - note 13.4	  1,508 	  1,508 
	 Profit on bank deposits		   (4,074)	  (2,548)
	 Finance cost		   945,646 	  737,319 
	 Provision for employee retirement benefits		   21,543 	  19,827 
	 Loss/(gain) on disposal of operating fixed assets		   14,018 	  (53)
	 Share of loss of associate 		   -   	  843 
				  
	 Profit before working capital changes		   5,572,500 	  4,944,322 
				  
	 Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes:			 
				  
	 Decrease/(increase) in current assets			 
				  
	 Stores, spares and loose tools		   167,255 	  (262,485)
	 Inventories		   (150,060)	  (593,780)
	 Trade debts		   (3,314,576)	  (3,384,501)
	 Advances, deposits, prepayments and 			 
	      other receivables		   351,174 	  (152,433)
				  
			    (2,946,207)	  (4,393,199)
	 Increase/(decrease) in current liabilities			 
				  
	 Trade and other payables		   (382,650)	  127,973 
	 Unclaimed dividend		   6,665 	  534 
				  
			    (375,985)	  128,507 
				  
			    (3,322,192)	  (4,264,692)
				  
			    2,250,308 	  679,630    
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			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
30. 	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS			 
			 
	 Cash and bank balances	  - note 20	  20,776 	  140,305 
	 Short term borrowings - secured	  - note 9	  (6,420,312)	  (4,578,891)
				  
			    (6,399,536)	  (4,438,586) 

31.	 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

31.1	 The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the year for remuneration, 
including certain benefits, to the chief executive, directors and executives of the company is 
as follows:

		  Chief	 Executive	  Non Executive	       Executives 
		  Executive	 Director	 Directors	
		   2019	  2018	  2019	  2018	 2019	 2018	 2019	 2018
		   ( R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d )
Short term employee benefits								      
								      
Managerial remuneration	  15,867 	  14,490 	  7,568 	  7,140 	  -   	  -   	 113,281 	  105,773 
Medical allowance and reimbursement	  324 	  1,449 	  762 	  740 	  -   	  -   	  15,682 	  13,702 
Bonus	  5,472 	  2,530 	  2,696 	  1,235 	  -   	  -   	  34,712 	  15,224 
Overtime	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  3,075 	  -   
Leave encashment	  -   	  -   	  420 	  397 	  -   	  -   	  6,974 	  5,487 

	  21,663 	  18,469 	  11,446 	  9,512 	  -   	  -   	 173,724 	  140,186 
								      
Meeting fee	   -    	   -    	   -    	   -    	  775 	  1,075 	  -   	  -   
								      
Post employment benefits					      	  		

Contribution to provident fund	  324 	  -   	  757 	  714 	  -   	  -   	  11,328 	  10,577 
								      
	  21,987 	  18,469 	  12,203 	  10,226 	  775 	  1,075 	  185,052 	  150,763 
								      
								      
Number of persons	 1*	 1	  1 	  1 	  5 	  5 	  47 	  43 
  								      
	 * Mr. Ghazanfar Hussain Mirza was appointed as the Chief Executive in place of Mr. Hassan 

Mansha on April 27, 2019.

31.2	 The executive director, a non-executive director and certain executives are provided with 
company maintained vehicles.			   		
	

32.	 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES	 		
				  
	 The related parties include the holding company, subsidiaries and associates of the holding 

company, subsidiary, associate, related parties on the basis of common directorship, key 
management personnel of the company and its holding company and post employment 
benefit plan (Provident Fund). Key management personnel are those persons having authority 
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the company, directly or 
indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that company. The company in 
the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Amounts due 
from and to related parties are shown under receivables and payables. Significant related party 
transactions have been disclosed in respective notes in these unconsolidated financial statements 
other than the following:
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		  2019	 2018
			   (Rupees in thousand)
Relationship with 	 Nature of transactions		
the company		  	
				  
(i)  Holding company	 Dividends paid	  541,899 	  361,266 
(ii)  Other related parties	 Purchase of services	  901 	  -   
(iii) Key Management 
       Personnel	 Remuneration            - note 32.1	  34,965 	  29,770
		  Dividends paid	  12 	  8 

32.1	 This represents remuneration of the Chief Executive and Directors that is presented in the 
remuneration disclosed in note 31 to these unconsolidated financial statements.

32.2    	 The related parties with whom the company had entered into transactions or had arrangements/
agreements in place during the year have been disclosed below along with their basis of 
relationship: 

	 Name of related party	 Relationship	 %age of 
			   shareholding 
			   of the company
			 
	 Nishat Mills Limited	 Holding company	 51.01%
	 Security General Insurance Company Limited	 Common directorship	 N/A
	 D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited	 Common directorship	 N/A
	 Pakistan Aviators and Aviation (Private) Limited	 Common directorship	 N/A
	 Nishat (Aziz Avenue) Hotels and Properties Limited	 Common directorship	 N/A
	 Nishat Hotels and Properties Limited	 Common directorship	 N/A
	 Adamjee Insurance Company Limited	 Associate of holding company	 0.26%
	 MCB Bank Limited	 Associate of holding company	 N/A
	 Adamjee Life Assurance Company Limited 	 Associate of holding company	 0.01%
	 Lalpir Solar Power (Private) Limited	 Subsidiary	 N/A
	 Nishat Energy Limited	 Associate	 N/A
	 Mr. Hassan Mansha	 Director	 0.0000%
	 Mr. Norez Abdullah	 Director	 0.0001%
	 Mr. Ahmad Aqeel	 Director	 0.0001%
	 Mr. Yousuf Bashir	 Director	 0.0003%
	 Mr. Shahzad Ahmad Malik	 Director	 0.0001%
	 Mr. Ghazanfar Hussain Mirza	 Chief Executive	 0.0003%
	 Mr. Mahmood Akhtar	 Director	 0.0003%
				  
		  2019	 2018
		  MWH	 MWH
33.	 CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
				  
	 Installed capacity [based on 8,760 hours 
	    (2018: 8,760 hours)]		  1,710,872 	  1,710,872 
	 Actual energy delivered 		   675,103 	  1,171,192 
					   

	 Output produced by the plant is dependent on the load demanded by NTDC and plant 
availability.
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		  2019	 2018

34.	 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

	 Total number of employees as at June 30		  218	 217

					   
	 Average number of employees during the year		  218	 217
					   

35.	 DISCLOSURE RELATING TO PROVIDENT FUND
	
	 The investments by the provident fund in collective investment schemes, listed equity and 

debt securities have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the 
Companies Act, 2017 and the conditions specified thereunder.

	
36.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
	
36.1	 Financial risk factors
	
	 The company is exposed to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, 

other price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The company’s overall 
risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 
minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance.

	
	 Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors (the Board). The Board provides 

principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as 
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity. All 
treasury related transactions are carried out within the parameters of these policies.

		
(a)	 Market risk
	
	 (i)	 Currency risk
		
		  Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 

will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly 
from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to 
transactions in foreign currencies.

		
		  The company is not exposed to any significant currency risk. 
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	 (ii)	 Other price risk
		
		  Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 

instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising 
from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors 
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar 
financial instruments traded in the market. The company is not exposed to equity price 
risk since there are no investments in equity instruments traded in the market at the 
reporting date. The company is also not exposed to commodity price risk since it does 
not hold any financial instrument based on commodity prices. 

		
	 (iii)	 Interest rate risk
		
		  Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 

instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 
		
		  The company has no significant long-term interest-bearing assets. The company’s 

interest rate risk arises from borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose 
the company to cash flow interest rate risk.

		
		  At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the company’s interest bearing financial 

instruments was:

		  2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
		  Fixed rate instruments

		  Financial assets			 
		  Bank balances - saving accounts	 - note 20	  19,430 	  135,355 
					   
	 	 Financial liabilities		   -   	  -   
					   
		  Net exposure		   19,430 	  135,355 
					   
		  Floating rate instruments			 
					   
		  Financial assets			 
		  Trade debts - overdue		   9,020,734 	  5,782,071 
					   
		  WPPF receivable from NTDC - overdue		   198,076 	  557,719 
					   
				     9,218,810 	  6,339,790 
	 	 Financial liabilities			 
		  Long term financing - secured		   (3,040,170)	  (5,092,325)
		  Short term borrowings - secured		   (6,420,312)	  (4,578,891)
					   
				     (9,460,482)	  (9,671,216)
					   
	 	 Net exposure		   (241,672)	  (3,331,426)
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	 Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments			 
				  
	 The company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value 

through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the statement of financial position 
date would not affect profit or loss of the company.

		
	 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
		
	 If interest rates on variable rate financial instruments, at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% 

higher / lower with all other variables held constant, post tax profit for the year would have 
been Rs 44.204 million (2018: Rs 13.837 million) lower / higher, mainly as a result of  higher / 
lower interest expense on floating rate instruments.

				  
(b)	 Credit risk	
				  
	 Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss 

for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit risk mainly arises from deposits 
with banks, trade and other receivables. 

	
(i)	 Exposure to credit risk
	
	 The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The 

maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:	
		
		  2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
				  
	 Long term loans and advances		   6 	  231 
	 Trade debts		   15,643,517 	  12,328,941 
	 Advances, deposits and other receivables		   439,035 	  731,041 
	 Bank balances		   19,979 	  139,579 
				  
			    	 16,102,537 	  13,199,792 
				  
	 As of June 30, age analysis of trade debts was as follows: 			 
				  
	 Neither past due nor impaired		   3,513,017 	  4,130,532 
				  
	 Past due but not impaired:			 
				  
	  - 1 to 30 days 		   1,252,398 	  1,850,964 
	  - 31 to 90 days		   1,196,102 	  2,798,729 
	  - 91 to 180 days		   3,643,063 	  1,872,619 
	  - 181 to 365 days		   4,009,833 	  188,868 
	  - above 365 days		   2,029,104 	  1,487,229 
				  
			    	 12,130,500 	  8,198,409 
				  
				     15,643,517 	  12,328,941  
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(ii)	 Credit quality of financial assets	
			 
	 The credit quality of major financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be 

assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about 
counterparty default rate:				  
	

	  	                                     Rating 		  Rating 	  2019	  2018
			   Short term		   Long term 	 Agency	 (Rupees in thousand)
						    
	 NTDC	                            Not available			    3,513,017 	  4,130,532 
	 Al-Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited	  A-1 	 A+	  JCR-VIS 	  1 	  4 
	 Allied Bank Limited	  A1+ 	 AAA	  PACRA 	  25 	  168 
	 Askari Bank Limited	  A1+ 	 AA+	 PACRA	  14 	  11 
	 Bank Alfalah Limited	  A1+ 	 AA+	 PACRA	  5 	  5 
	 Bank Islami Pakistan Limited	 A1	 A+	 PACRA	  1 	  3 
	 Habib Bank Limited	  A-1+ 	  AAA 	  JCR-VIS 	  569 	  449 
	 MCB Bank Limited	  A1+ 	 AAA	 PACRA	  17,358 	  23,448 
	 MCB Islamic Bank Limited	  A1+ 	 A	 PACRA	  17 	  - 
	 National Bank of Pakistan	  A1+ 	 AAA	 PACRA	  23 	  113,016 
	 The Bank of Punjab	  A1+ 	 AA	 PACRA	  12 	  13 
	 Burj Bank Limited	  A-1 	 A+	 JCR-VIS	  2 	  2 
	 The Bank of Khyber	  A1 	 A	 PACRA	  5 	  - 
	 Faysal Bank Limited	  A1+ 	 AA	 PACRA	  3 	  - 
	 Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited	  A-1 	 AA-	 JCR-VIS	  1 	  - 
	 United Bank Limited	  A-1+ 	 AAA	 JCR-VIS	  1,943 	  2,460 
						    
					      3,532,996 	  4,270,111    

	 Due to the company’s long standing business relationships with these counterparties and 
after giving due consideration to their strong financial standing, management does not expect 
non-performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the company. Accordingly, 
the credit risk is minimal.

(c)	 Liquidity risk
				  
	 Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated 

with financial liabilities.
	
	 The company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that, as far as possible, it always has 

sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, 
without incurring unacceptable loss or risking damage to the company’s reputation.

	
	 The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2019.

		   Carrying 	  Less than 	  One to five 	  More than 
		  amount	 one year	 years	 five years

			                                        (Rupees in thousand)

	 Long term financing	  3,040,170 	  2,385,532 	  654,638 	  - 
	 Short term borrowings	  6,420,312 	  6,420,312 	  - 	  - 
	 Unclaimed dividend	  21,666 	  21,666 		
	 Trade and other payables	  73,124 	  73,124 	  - 	  - 
	 Accrued markup	  233,908 	  233,908 	  - 	  - 
					   
		   9,789,180 	  9,134,542 	  654,638 	  -    
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	 The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2018.
			   	  
		   Carrying 	  Less than 	  One to five 	  More than 
		  amount	 one year	 years	 five years

			                                        (Rupees in thousand)

	 Long term financing	  5,092,325 	  2,052,155 	  3,040,170 	  - 
	 Short term borrowings	  4,578,891 	  4,578,891 	  - 	  - 
	 Unclaimed dividend	  15,001 	  15,001 		
	 Trade and other payables	  474,798 	  474,798 	  - 	  - 
	 Accrued markup	  182,486 	  182,486 	  - 	  - 
					   
		   10,343,501 	  7,303,331 	  3,040,170 	  -    
  
 
36.2	 Fair value estimation
	
	 The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the unconsolidated financial 

statements approximate their fair values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective 
evidence at each reporting date.

	
36.3	 Financial instruments by categories			 
		  Financial assets 	 Loans
		  at amortised 	 and
		  cost	 receivables
		  2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
	 Assets as per statement of financial position
			 
	 Long term loans and advances		   229 	  752 
	 Trade debts		   15,643,517 	  12,328,941 
	 Advances, deposits and other receivables		   438,812 	  730,520 
	 Cash and bank balances		   20,776 	  140,305 
				  
			    16,103,334 	  13,200,518    
      
 
			    Financial liabilities at 
			   amortised cost 	
		  2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
	 Liabilities as per statement of financial position
			 
	 Long term financing		   3,040,170 	  5,092,325 
	 Short term borrowings		   6,420,312 	  4,578,891 
	 Trade and other payables		   73,124 	  474,798 
	 Unclaimed dividend		   21,666 	  15,001 
	 Accrued markup		   233,908 	  182,486 
				  
			    9,789,180 	  10,343,501    
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36.4	 Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to offsetting
	
	 There are no significant financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject to offsetting, 

enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements.
	
36.5	 Capital management
	
	 The company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and lenders and to 
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The company manages its 
capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. 
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of 
dividends paid to shareholders or issue new shares. Consistent with others in the industry and 
the requirements of the lenders, the company monitors the capital structure on the basis of 
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net borrowings divided by total capital employed. Net 
borrowings are calculated as total borrowings including current and non-current borrowings as 
disclosed in note 9 to these financial statements less cash and cash equivalents as disclosed 
in note 30 to these financial statements. Total capital employed includes equity as shown in 
the statement of financial position, plus net borrowings. 

	
	 The gearing ratio as at June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 is as follows:
			 
		  2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
				  
	 Borrowings - note 9		   3,040,170 	  5,092,325 
	 Less: Cash and cash equivalents - note 30		   (6,399,536)	  (4,438,586)
				  
	 Net borrowings		   9,439,706 	  9,530,911 
	 Total equity 		   19,108,719 	  16,401,436 
				  
	 Total capital employed		   28,548,425 	  25,932,347 
				  
	 Gearing ratio	  Percentage 	  33.07 	  36.75    
 

	 In accordance with the terms of agreement with the lenders of long term finances (as discussed 
in note 8 to these unconsolidated financial statements), the company is required to comply 
with certain financial covenants in respect of capital requirements which the company has 
complied with throughout the reporting period.
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37.	 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
	
	 These unconsolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on September 18, 2019 

by the Board of Directors of the company.
	
38.	 CORRESPONDING FIGURES
	
	 Corresponding figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to reflect better 

presentation of events and transactions for the purpose of comparison, however, no significant 
reclassifications have been made except for ‘delayed payment markup’ of Rs 699.581 million 
previously included in ‘energy revenue’ and ‘capacity revenue’, now separately presented 
under Sales as per the requirements of IFRS 15.

	

	 CHIEF EXECUTIVE 	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER	 DIRECTOR
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS
The Board of Directors of Nishat Power Limited (The Company) is pleased to present Consolidated 
Annual Report with the Consolidated Audited Financial Statements of the Company together with 
Auditors’ Report thereon for the financial year ended June 30, 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANY AND BRIEF OVER ITS OPERATIONS

In the financial year 2016, the Company incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary, Lalpir Solar Power 
(Private) Limited (‘LSPPL’), since then the Company has taken up 100,000 shares of the LSPPL. 
The principal activity of LSPPL is to build, own, operate and maintain or invest in a solar power 
project having gross capacity upto 20 MWp with net estimated generation capacity of upto approx 
19 MWp. The project site is located at Mehmood Kot, District Muzaffar Garh, Multan. The Company 
achieved various milestones like approval of Feasibility Study, No Objection Certificate (‘NOC’) from 
Environment Protection Agency (EPA) and approval of Grid Interconnection study from Multan Electric 
Power Company (MEPCO). However, the upfront solar tariff announced by National Electric Power 
Regulatory Authority (NEPRA) has expired on June 30, 2016. In previous financial year, LSPPL has 
obtained the approval from NTDCL for Grid Interconnection Study. During the year, the NEPRA has 
given generation license to LSPPL.

Subsequently, LSPPL applied to Central Power Purchasing Agency (CPPA) for consent to Purchase 
Power from this project called, Power Acquisition Request (PAR). Once the PAR is given, LSPPL shall 
apply for the tariff as per policy announced by the government.

AUDITORS:

The present auditors of LSPPL M/s Riaz Ahmad & Co. Chartered Accountants retire and being eligible, 
offer themselves for re-appointment for the year 2019-20.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Board of Directors appreciates all its stakeholders for their trust and continued support to the 
Company. 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER	 DIRECTOR
September 18, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF NISHAT POWER LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Nishat Power Limited and its 
subsidiary (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows 
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 
position of the Group as at June 30, 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its 
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable 
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Pakistan (the Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to note 18.2 to the annexed consolidated financial statements, which describes 
the matter regarding recoverability of certain trade debts. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this 
matter.

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.
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Information Other than the Unconsolidated and Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s 
Reports Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated and unconsolidated financial 
statements and our auditor’s reports thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report 
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and 
the Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. 

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

•	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities 
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group 
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The comparative information as at, and for the year ended June 30, 2018 has not been audited.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Khurram Akbar 
Khan.

	                 

A.F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
	
	
Lahore:
Date:  September 18, 2019
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		  Audited	 Un-audited
	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES			 
			 
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES			 
			 
Authorised share capital			 
500,000,000 (2018: 500,000,000) 			 
ordinary shares of Rs 10 each		   5,000,000 	  5,000,000 
			 
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 			 
354,088,500 (2018: 354,088,500)			 
ordinary shares of Rs 10 each	 5	  3,540,885 	  3,540,885 
Capital reserve	 6	  3,153,633 	  -   
Revenue reserve: Un-appropriated profits	 7	  12,413,549 	  12,859,724 
			 
Attributable to owners of the parent		   19,108,067 	  16,400,609 
			      
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY			 
			 
Long term financing - secured	 8	  654,638 	  3,040,170 
			 
CURRENT LIABILITIES			 
			 
Current portion of long term financing - secured	 8	  2,385,532 	  2,052,155 
Short term borrowings - secured	 9	  6,420,312 	  4,578,891 
Trade and other payables	 10	  261,684 	  637,913 
Unclaimed dividend		   21,666 	  15,001 
Accrued markup	 11	  233,908 	  182,486 
			 
		   9,323,102 	  7,466,446 
			 
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS	 12		
		   29,085,807 	  26,907,225 
			 
			 
The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.v

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2019

	 CHIEF EXECUTIVE 		  CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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		  Audited	 Un-audited
	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)

ASSETS			 
			 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS			 

Fixed assets 	 13	  10,010,357 	  10,662,869 
Investment accounted for under equity method 	 14	  -   	  -   
Long term loans and advances 	 15	  6 	  231
 
		   10,010,363 	  10,663,100 

			 
			 
			 
CURRENT ASSETS 			 
			 
Stores, spares and loose tools 	 16	  757,521 	  924,777 
Inventories 	 17	  1,719,399 	  1,569,339 
Trade debts 	 18	  15,643,517 	  12,328,941 
Advances, deposits, prepayments and 			 
  other receivables 	 19	  900,072 	  1,250,625 
Income tax receivable 		   34,138 	  30,048 
Cash and bank balances 	 20	  20,797 	  140,395
 
		   19,075,444 	  16,244,125 
			 
			 
			 

		   29,085,807 	  26,907,225        
			      

	  	 DIRECTOR
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		  Audited	 Un-audited
	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)

Sales	 21	  15,581,918 	  16,929,085 
			 
Cost of sales	 22	  (10,584,021)	  (12,707,336)
			 
Gross profit		   4,997,897 	  4,221,749 
			 
Administrative expenses	 23	  (274,201)	  (320,567)
			 
Other expenses	 24	  (15,884)	  (2,770)
			 
Other income	 25	  7,558 	  51,044 
			 
Finance cost	 26	  (945,646)	  (737,319)
			 
Share of loss of associate 		   -   	  (843)
			 
Profit before taxation		   3,769,724 	  3,211,294 
			 
Taxation	 27	  -   	  -   
			 
Profit for the year		   3,769,724 	  3,211,294 
			 
Earnings per share - basic and diluted (in Rupees)	 28	  10.646 	  9.069 
			 
Profit attributable to owners of the parent		   3,769,724 	  3,211,294 
			 
The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

	 CHIEF EXECUTIVE 	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER	 DIRECTOR
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		  Audited	 Un-audited
		  2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)

			 
Profit for the year		    3,769,724 	  3,211,294  
			 
Other comprehensive income:			 
			 
Items that may be reclassified subsequently			 
   to profit or loss		   -   	  -   
			 
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently			 
  to profit or loss		   -   	  -   
		   -   	  -   
			 
Total comprehensive income for the year		   3,769,724	   3,211,294

Attributable to owners of the parent		  3,769,724	 3,211,294  

			 
The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

	 CHIEF EXECUTIVE 	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER	 DIRECTOR



96 ANNUAL REPORT 2019

		  Audited	 Un-audited
	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)

Cash flows from operating activities			 
			 
Cash generated from operations	 29	  2,249,985 	  679,559 
Finance cost paid		   (894,223)	  (740,014)
Income tax paid		   (4,090)	  (5,261)
Long term loans and advances - net		   225 	  2,563 
Retirement benefits paid		   (21,543)	  (19,827)
			 
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities		   1,330,354 	  (82,980)
			 
Cash flows from investing activities			 
			 
Purchase of fixed assets		   (280,719)	  (249,901)
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets		   93,395 	  1,101 
Profit on bank deposits received		   5,203 	  2,616 
			 
Net cash outflow from investing activities		   (182,121)	  (246,184)
			 
Cash flows from financing activities			 
			 
Repayment of long term financing		   (2,052,155)	  (1,765,368)
Dividend paid		   (1,057,097)	  (707,643)
			 
Net cash outflow from financing activities		   (3,109,252)	  (2,473,011)
			 
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents		   (1,961,019)	  (2,802,175)
			 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year		   (4,438,496)	  (1,636,321)
			 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year	 30	  (6,399,515)	  (4,438,496)
			 

Refer note 8 for reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities.			 
			 
The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

	 CHIEF EXECUTIVE 	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER	 DIRECTOR
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		 Attributable to owners of the parent
		  Capital	 Revenue
	 Share	 reserve:	 reserve: 
	 capital	 Maintenance	 Un-appropriated	 Total 
		  reserve	 profit
		                          (Rupees in thousand) 		
			 
			 
Balance as on July 01, 2017 (un-audited)	  3,540,885 	  - 	  10,356,607 	  13,897,492 
				  
Profit for the year (un-audited)	  - 	  - 	  3,211,294 	  3,211,294 
Other comprehensive income for the year	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 
				  
Total comprehensive income for the year	  - 	  - 	  3,211,294 	  3,211,294 
				  
Dividend to equity holders of the parent:				  
				  
Final dividend for the year ended June 30, 2017				  
   @ Rupees 2 per share 	  - 	  - 	  (708,177)	  (708,177)
				  
Total contributions by and distributions to				  
   owners of the parent recognised directly in equity	  - 	  - 	  (708,177)	  (708,177)
				  
Balance as on June 30, 2018 (un-audited)	  3,540,885 	  - 	  12,859,724 	  16,400,609 
				  
Profit for the year	  - 	  - 	  3,769,724 	  3,769,724 
Other comprehensive income for the year	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 
				  
Total comprehensive income for the year	  - 	  - 	  3,769,724 	  3,769,724 
				  
Dividend to equity holders of the parent:				  
				  
				  
Final dividend for the year ended June 30, 2018				  
   @ Rupees 1.5 per share 	  - 	  - 	  (531,133)	  (531,133)
Interim dividend for the quarter ended March 31, 2019				  
   @ Rupees 1.5 per share 	  - 	  - 	  (531,133)	  (531,133)
				  
Total contributions by and distributions to				  
owners of the parent recognised directly in equity	  - 	  - 	  (1,062,266)	  (1,062,266)
				  
Transfer to maintenance reserve	  - 	  3,153,633 	  (3,153,633)	  - 
				  
Balance as on June 30, 2019 (audited)	  3,540,885 	  3,153,633 	  12,413,549 	  19,108,067 
				  
				  
The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.					  
			 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

	 CHIEF EXECUTIVE 	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER	 DIRECTOR
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

1.	 THE COMPANY AND ITS ACTIVITIES	
		
	 The group comprises of Nishat Power Limited (the ‘parent company’) and Lalpir Solar Power 

(Private) Limited (the ‘subsidiary’). 	
		
	 The parent company is a public company limited by shares incorporated in Pakistan on 

February 23, 2007 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 
2017, hereinafter may be referred to as the ‘Act’).It is a subsidiary of Nishat Mills Limited, 
Pakistan. The parent company’s ordinary shares are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange 
Limited.	

		
	 The principal activity of the parent company is to build, own, operate and maintain a fuel 

fired power station having gross capacity of 200 MW in Jamber Kalan, Tehsil Pattoki, District 
Kasur, Punjab, Pakistan. The address of the registered office of the parent company is 53-A, 
Lawrence Road, Lahore. The parent company has a Power Purchase Agreement (‘PPA’) with 
its sole customer, National Transmission and Despatch company Limited (‘NTDC’) for twenty 
five years which commenced from June 09, 2010.	

		
	 The subsidiary was incorporated in Pakistan on November 19, 2015 as a private company 

limited by shares. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of Nishat Power Limited. The registered 
office of the subsidiary is situated at 53-A, Lawrence Road, Lahore. 	

		
	 The principal activity of the subsidiary is to build, own, operate and maintain or invest in a solar 

power project having gross capacity upto 20 MW. The project site is located at Mehmood 
Kot, District Muzaffargarh. During the year, subsidiary has obtained the approval (NOC) from 
NTDC for Grid Interconnection Study. Meanwhile, the upfront solar tariff announced by National 
Electric Power Regulatory Authority (‘NEPRA’) had already expired on June 30, 2016. However, 
the subsidiary will now pursue with Power Acquisition Request (PAR) pending at the Central 
Power Purchasing Agency (Guarantee) Limited and after getting required consents for Energy 
Purchase Agreement, the management shall try to get suitable tariff through new regime of 
competitive bidding, recently announced by NEPRA or as amended from time to time.	

		
	 Subsequent to the reporting date, the subsidiary has received Generation License from 

NEPRA for its solar power plant.	
		
	 The parent company has an associate, Nishat Energy Limited (‘NEL). The parent company 

directly holds 25% ordinary shares in NEL, which is an unquoted public company limited 
by shares incorporated in Pakistan to build, own, operate and maintain a coal fired power 
station. The address of the registered office of NEL is 1-B, Aziz Avenue, Canal Bank, Gulberg 
V, Lahore. 	

		
2.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION	
		
2.1	 Statement of compliance	
		
	 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 

accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting 
standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:	
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	 i)	 International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

		
	 ii)	 Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 (‘Act’).
		
	 Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRS, the provisions of 

and directives issued under the Act have been followed.	
		
2.2	 Initial application of standards, amendments or interpretation to existing standards	
		
	 The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to 

the group’s consolidated financial statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after 
the following dates:	

		
2.2.1	 Standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting standards that are 

effective in current year	
		
	 Certain standards, amendments and interpretations to IFRS are effective for accounting 

periods beginning on July 1, 2018 but are considered not to be relevant or to have any 
significant effect on the group’s operations (although they may affect the accounting for 
future transactions and events) and are, therefore, not detailed in these consolidated financial 
statements, except for the following:	

		
	 (a)	 IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’	
		
		  This standard was notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 

(‘SECP’) to be effective for annual periods ending on or after June 30, 2019.  This 
standard replaces guidance in International Accounting Standard (‘IAS’) 39, ‘Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’. It includes requirements on the 
classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities. It also includes an 
expected credit losses model that replaces the current incurred loss impairment model. 
However, in respect of companies holding financial assets due from the Government of 
Pakistan, SECP through SRO 985(I)/2019 dated September 2, 2019 has notified that 
the requirements contained in IFRS 9 with respect to application of Expected Credit 
Losses method shall not be applicable till June 30, 2021 and that such companies shall 
follow relevant requirements of IAS 39 in respect of above referred financial assets during 
the exemption period. Accordingly, the group has changed its accounting policies and 
followed the requirements of IFRS 9 for:	

		
	 - 	 classification and measurement of all financial assets except investments associate 

that is accounted for in accordance with IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint 
Ventures’ respectively; and	

		
	 - 	 recognition of loss allowance for financial assets other than the financial assets due from 

the Government of Pakistan and investment in associate.	
		
	 In respect of application of IFRS 9, the group has adopted modified retrospective approach 

as permitted by this standard, according to which the group is not required to restate the 
prior period results. The adoption of IFRS 9 has not resulted in any impact on the opening 
balance of un-appropriated profit. In respect of classification of financial assets, the group’s 
management has assessed which business models apply to the financial assets held by 
the group and has classified its financial instruments into the appropriate IFRS 9 categories 
(i.e. mainly financial assets previously classified as ‘loans and receivables’ have now been 
classified as ‘amortised cost’).	
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	 (b)	 IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’	
		
		  This standard was notified by the SECP to be effective for annual periods beginning 

on or after July 1, 2018. This standard deals with revenue recognition and establishes 
principles for reporting useful information to users of the consolidated financial statements 
about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from 
an entity’s contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains 
control of a good or service and thus has the ability to direct the use and obtain the 
benefits from the good or service. The standard replaces IAS 18, ‘Revenue’, and IAS 
11, ‘Construction contracts’, and related interpretations.	

		
		  The group has applied IFRS 15 using the modified retrospective approach for transition. 

This approach requires entities to recognise the cumulative effect of initially applying 
IFRS 15 as an adjustment to the opening balance of un-appropriated profit in the 
period of initial application. Comparative prior year periods would not be adjusted. The 
application of IFRS 15 does not have any impact on the revenue recognition policy 
of the group and therefore, the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard as 
an adjustment to the opening balance of un-appropriated profit in the period of initial 
application is nil. Therefore, the comparative information has not been restated and 
continues to be reported under the previous accounting policy.	

		
2.2.2	 Exemption from applicability of certain interpretations to standards	
		
	 The SECP through SRO 24(I)/2012 dated January 16, 2012 has granted exemption from 

the application of International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (‘IFRIC’) 4, 
‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’, and IFRIC 12, ‘Service Concession 
Arrangements’, to all companies. However, the SECP made it mandatory to disclose the 
impact of the application of IFRIC 4 or IFRIC 12 on the results of the companies.	

		
	 Under IFRIC 4, the consideration required to be made by the lessee for the right to use the 

asset is to be accounted for as a finance lease under IAS 17, ‘Leases’. The group’s power 
plant’s control due to purchase of total output by NTDC appears to fall under the scope 
of IFRIC 4. Consequently, if the group were to follow IFRIC 4 and IAS 17, the effect on the 
consolidated financial statements would be as follows:			 

			 
		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
				  
	 De-recognition of property, plant and equipment	  (9,635,568)	  (10,334,566)
				  
	 De-recognition of trade debts		   (5,510,129)	  (2,740,321)
				  
	 Recognition of lease debtor 		   11,556,096 	  10,928,786 				  
	 Decrease in un-appropriated profit at the 
	    beginning of the year		   (2,146,101)	  (1,154,414)
	 Decrease in profit for the year		   (1,443,500)	  (991,687)
				  
	 Decrease in un-appropriated profit at the end of the year	  (3,589,601)	  (2,146,101) 
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2.2.3	 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective 
and have not been early adopted by the company	

		
	 There are certain standards, amendments to the approved accounting standards and interpretations 

that are mandatory for the group’s accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2019, but are 
considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the group’s operations and are, 
therefore, not detailed in these consolidated financial statements, except for the following:	

		
	 - 	 IFRS 16, ‘Leases’: this standard has been notified by the SECP to be effective for 

annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. This standard replaces the 
current guidance in IAS 17, ‘Leases’ and is a far reaching change in accounting by 
lessees in particular. Under IAS 17, lessees were required to make a distinction between 
a finance lease (on statement of financial position) and an operating lease (off statement 
of financial position). IFRS 16 now requires lessees to recognise a lease liability reflecting 
future lease payments and a ‘right-of-use asset’ for virtually all lease contracts. The 
IASB has included an optional exemption for certain short-term leases and leases of 
low-value assets; however, this exemption can only be applied by lessees. For lessors, 
the accounting stays almost the same. However, as the IASB has updated the guidance 
on the definition of a lease (as well as the guidance on the combination and separation 
of contracts), lessors will also be affected by the new standard. At the very least, the 
new accounting model for lessees is expected to impact negotiations between lessors 
and lessees.

		
		  SECP through SRO 986(I)/2019 dated September 2, 2019 has granted exemption from 

the requirements of IFRS 16 to all companies that have executed their power purchase 
agreements before January 1, 2019. Therefore, the standard will not have any impact 
on the group’s consolidated financial statements.

		
	 -	 Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 on the definition of material: (effective for periods 

beginning on or after July 1, 2019). These amendments to IAS 1, ‘Presentation of 
financial statements’ and IAS 8, ‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates 
and errors’, and consequential amendments to other IFRSs: i) use a consistent definition 
of materiality throughout IFRSs and the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting; 
ii) clarify the explanation of the definition of material; and iii) incorporate some of the 
guidance in IAS 1 about immaterial information. It is unlikely that these amendments will 
have any significant impact on the group’s consolidated financial statements.

		
	 - 	 Amendment to IFRS 9, Financial instruments’, on prepayment features with negative 

compensation and modification of financial liabilities: (effective for periods beginning 
on or after July 1, 2019). This amendment confirmed two points: (1) that reasonable 
compensation for prepayments can be both negative or positive cash flows when 
considering whether a financial asset solely has cash flows that are principal and interest 
and (2) that when a financial liability measured at amortised cost is modified without this 
resulting in de-recognition, a gain or loss should be recognised immediately in profit or 
loss. The gain or loss is calculated as the difference between the original contractual 
cash flows and the modified cash flows discounted at the original effective interest 
rate. It is unlikely that this amendment will have any significant impact on the group’s 
consolidated financial statements.	

		
3.	 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT	
		
3.1	 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost 

convention.	
		



102 ANNUAL REPORT 2019

3.2	 Critical accounting estimates and judgements	
		
	 The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates 

which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise 
judgement in applying the group’s accounting policies. 

	
	 This note provides an overview of the area that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, 

and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to the estimates and assumptions 
turning out to be wrong. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is 
included in other notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the consolidated financial statements.  	

		
	 a)    	 Useful lives and residual values of fixed assets
		
			  The group reviews the useful lives of fixed assets on regular basis. Any change in estimates 

in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of fixed assets with 
a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

			 
			  Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience 

and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact 
on the group and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

		
4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES	
		
	 The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial 

statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, 
unless otherwise stated.	

		
4.1	 Principles of consolidation	
		
	 a)	 Subsidiaries
		
		  Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the group has 

control. The group controls an entity when the group is exposed to, or has rights 
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect 
those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are 
fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are 
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

		
		  The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by 

the group. The acquisition method of accounting is used for all business combinations 
regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration 
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, 
the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business and the equity 
interests issued by the group. The consideration transferred also includes the fair value 
of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement and fair 
value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary. Identifiable assets acquired 
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with 
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The 
group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate 
share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

		
		  Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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		  If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of 
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value 
at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

		
		  Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the group is recognised at fair 

value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent 
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with 
IFRS 9 either in consolidated statement of profit or loss or as a change to consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as 
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

		
		  Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration 

transferred and the fair value of non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair value of the 
net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss as a 
bargain purchase.

		
		  Where the settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable 

in the future are discounted to their present values as at the date of exchange. The 
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a 
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable 
terms and conditions.

		
		  Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between 

group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the 
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting 
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with 
the policies adopted by the group.

		
		  Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in 

the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of 
financial position respectively.

		
	 b)	 Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control
		
		  Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are 

accounted for as equity transactions – that is, as transactions with the owners in their 
capacity as owners. A change in ownership interests results in an adjustment between 
the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their 
relative interests in the subsidiary. The difference between fair value of any consideration 
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary 
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also 
recorded in equity.

		
	 c)	 Disposal of subsidiaries
		
		  When the group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-

measured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying 
amount recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss. The fair value is the initial 
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequent accounting for the retained interest 
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously 
recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive income in respect of that 
entity are accounted for as if the group had directly disposed of the related assets or 
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liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in consolidated statement 
of comprehensive income are reclassified to consolidated statement of profit or loss.

		
	 d)	 Associates
		
		  Associates are all entities over which the group has significant influence but not control, 

generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. 
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting 
after initially being recognized at cost. Under the equity method of accounting, the 
investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the 
group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, 
and the group’s share of movements in other comprehensive income of the investee 
in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from associates 
are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment. The group’s 
investment includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

		
		  If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, 

only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive 
income is reclassified to consolidated statement of profit or loss where appropriate.

		
		  When the group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the 

associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the group does not recognise 
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments 
on behalf of the associate.

		
		  The group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence 

that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the group calculates 
the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the 
associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to share of profit/
(loss) of associates in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

		
		  Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between the 

group and its associate are recognised in the group’s consolidated financial statements 
only to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses 
are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset 
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary to 
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

		
		  Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are recognised in the 

consolidated statement of profit or loss.
		
4.2	 Taxation	
		
	 Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the consolidated 

statement of profit or loss except to the extent that relates to items recognised directly in 
equity or other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised directly in equity or other 
comprehensive income.	

		
	 Current	
		
	 The profits and gains of the group derived from electric power generation are exempt from tax in 

terms of clause 132 of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, subject 
to the conditions and limitations provided therein.	
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	 Under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, the 
group is also exempt from levy of minimum tax on ‘turnover’ under section 113 of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001. However, full provision is made in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on 
income from sources not covered under the above clauses at current rates of taxation after taking 
into account, tax credits and rebates available, if any.	

		
	 Deferred	
		
	 Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary 

differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the 
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the 
taxable profit. However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an 
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of transaction 
neither affects accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised 
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, 
unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised.	

		
	 Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences 

reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of 
financial position date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the consolidated statement of profit 
or loss, except in the case of items credited or charged to other comprehensive income or equity 
in which case it is included in other comprehensive income or equity.	

		
	 Deferred tax has not been provided in these consolidated financial statements as the group’s 

management believes that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future 
due to the fact that the profits and gains of the group derived from electric power generation are 
exempt from tax subject to the conditions and limitations provided for in terms of clause (132) of 
Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 	

		
4.3	 Property, plant and equipment	
		
4.3.1	 Operating fixed assets	
		
	 Operating fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified 

impairment loss. Freehold land is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. Historical cost 
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.	

		
	 Depreciation on operating fixed assets, other than identifiable capital spares in plant and machinery, 

is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the straight line method so as to write 
off the cost of an asset over its estimated useful life at the annual rates mentioned in note 13.1 
after taking into account their residual values. Depreciation on identifiable capital spares in plant 
and machinery is charged on the basis of number of hours used.	

		
	 The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, at each financial year end, and adjusted 

if impact on depreciation is significant. The group’s estimate of the residual value of its operating 
fixed assets as at June 30, 2019, has not required any adjustment as its impact is considered 
insignificant.	

		
	 An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s 

carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 4.5).	
		
	 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, 

as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item 
will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and 
maintenance costs are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the period in 
which they are incurred. 	

		



106 ANNUAL REPORT 2019

	 The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset, represented by the difference between the 
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as an income or expense. 	

		
4.3.2	 Capital work-in-progress	
		
	 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. All expenditure 

connected with specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried 
under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to operating fixed assets as and when these 
are available for use.	

		
4.3.3	 Major spare parts and standby equipment	
		
	 Major spare parts and stand-by equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment when an 

entity expects to use them for more than one year. Transfers are made to relevant operating fixed 
assets category as and when such items are available for use.	

		
4.4	 Intangible assets	
		
	 Expenditure incurred to acquire computer software has been capitalised as an intangible asset 

and stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any identified impairment loss. Intangible 
assets are amortised using the straight line method over a period of five years.	

		
	 An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s 

carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 4.5).	
		
4.5	 Impairment of non-financial assets	
		
	 Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation 

and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An 
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its 
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of 
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the 
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent 
of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial 
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the 
impairment at the end of each reporting period.	

		
4.6	 Leases	
		
	 The group is the lessee:	
		
4.6.1	 Operating leases	
		
	 Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor 

are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives 
received from the lessor) are charged to profit on a straight line basis over the lease term.	

		
4.7	 Stores, spares and loose tools	
		
	 Stores, spares and loose tools are valued principally at weighted average cost except for items in 

transit which are stated at invoice value plus other charges paid thereon till the reporting date while 
items considered obsolete are carried at nil value.	
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4.8	 Inventories	
		
	 Inventories except for those in transit are valued principally at lower of weighted average cost 

and net realizable value. Materials in transit are stated at cost comprising invoice value plus other 
charges paid thereon.	

		
	 Net realizable value is determined on the basis of estimated selling price in the ordinary course 

of business less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the 
sale. Provision is made in the consolidated financial statements for obsolete and slow moving 
inventories based on management’s estimate.	

		
4.9	 Investments	
		
	 Investments intended to be held for less than twelve months from the reporting date or to be sold 

to raise operating capital, are included in current assets. All other investments are classified as 
non-current. Management determines the appropriate classification of its investments at the time 
of the purchase and re-evaluates such designation on a regular basis.	

		
4.9.1	 Investment in equity instruments of associates	
		
	 Investment in equity instruments of associates are accounted for using equity method of accounting 

as fully explained in note 4.1 (d) to these consolidated financial statements.	
		
4.10	 Financial assets 	
		
4.10.1	 Classification	
		
	 From July 1, 2018, the group classifies its financial assets other than investment in associate in the 

following measurement categories:	
		
	 - 	 those to be measured subsequently at fair value [either through other comprehensive 

income (‘OCI’) or through profit or loss], and	
	 - 	 those to be measured at amortised cost.	
		
	 The classification depends on the group’s business model for managing the financial assets and 

the contractual terms of the cash flows.	
		
	 For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. 

For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the 
group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity 
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).	

		
	 The group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing 

those assets changes.	
		
4.10.2	 Recognition and derecognition	
		
	 Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date, being the date 

on which the group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when 
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and 
the group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.	
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4.10.3	 Measurement	
		
	 At initial recognition, the group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a 

financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at 
FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.	

		
	 Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining 

whether their cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest.	
		
	 Debt instruments	
		
	 Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the group’s business model for 

managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement 
categories into which the group classifies its debt instruments:	

		
	 i) Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where those cash 

flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at amortised cost. Interest 
income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate 
method except for delayed payment markup on amounts due under the PPA. Any gain or loss 
arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss. Impairment losses are presented as 
separate line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.	

		
	 ii) FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial 

assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are 
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the 
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses, 
which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain 
or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Interest income from 
these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Impairment 
expenses are presented as separate line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.	

		
	 iii) FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. 

A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in profit 
or loss in the period in which it arises.	

		
	 Equity instruments	
		
	 The group subsequently measures all equity investments except for investments in subsidiary and 

associate at fair value. Where the group’s management has elected to present fair value gains 
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains 
and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such 
investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the group’s right to 
receive payments is established.	

		
	 Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in the consolidated statement 

of profit or loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments 
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.	

		
4.10.4 	 Impairment of financial assets other than those due from the Government of Pakistan	
		
	 From July 1, 2018, the group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses 

associated with its financial assets. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether 
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.	

		
	 Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining 

financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.	
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4.11	 Accounting policies applied until June 30, 2018	
		
	 The group has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively, but has elected not to restate comparative 

information. As a result, the comparative information provided continues to be accounted for in 
accordance with the group’s previous accounting policy. 	

		
	 Classification	
		
	 Until June 30, 2018, the group classified its financial assets in the following categories: at fair 

value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, available-for-sale and held to maturity. The 
classification depended on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management 
determined the classification of its financial assets at the time of initial recognition.	

		
	 a)	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
		
		  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were the financial assets held for 

trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through 
profit or loss. Derivatives were also categorized as held for trading unless they were 
designated as hedges. A financial asset was classified as held for trading if acquired 
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Assets in this category were 
classified as current assets if expected to be settled within twelve months, otherwise, 
they were classified as non-current.

		
	 b)	 Loans and receivables
		
		  Loans and receivables were non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 

payments that are not quoted in an active market. They were included in current assets, 
except for maturities greater than twelve months after the statement of financial position 
date, which were classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables comprised of 
trade debts, advances, deposits, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents in 
the consolidated statement of financial position.

		
	 c)	 Available-for-sale financial assets
		
		  Available-for-sale financial assets were non-derivatives that were either designated in 

this category or not classified in any of the other categories. They were included in non-
current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investments within twelve 
months from the statement of financial position date.

		
	 d)	 Held to maturity
		
		  Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity, where 

management has the intention and ability to hold till maturity were classified as held to 
maturity and were stated at amortized cost.

		
		  Recognition and measurement
		
		  All financial assets were recognized at the time when the group became a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of investments 
were recognized on trade-date – the date on which the group committed to purchase 
or sell the asset. Financial assets were initially recognized at fair value plus transaction 
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial 
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss were initially recognized at fair value 
and transaction costs were expensed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. 
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Financial assets were derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the 
assets expired or had been transferred and the group had transferred substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss were subsequently carried at fair value. For 
investments having quoted price in active market, the quoted price represented the fair 
value. In other cases, fair value was measured using appropriate valuation methodology 
and where fair value could not be measured reliably, these were carried at cost. Loans 
and receivables and held to maturity investments were carried at amortized cost using 
the effective interest rate method.

		
		  Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss’ category were presented in the consolidated statement of profit or 
loss in the period in which they arose. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value 
through profit and loss was recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as 
part of other income when the group’s right to receive payments was established.

		
		  Changes in the fair value of securities classified as available-for-sale were recognized in 

other comprehensive income. When securities classified as available-for-sale were sold 
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognized in equity were included 
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as gains and losses from investment 
securities. Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest 
method was recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.  Dividends on 
available-for-sale equity instruments were recognized in the consolidated statement of 
profit or loss when the group’s right to receive payments was established.

		
		  The group assessed at each reporting date whether there was objective evidence that a 

financial asset or a group of financial assets was impaired. If any such evidence existed 
for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss was removed from equity and 
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized 
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on equity instruments were not reversed 
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

		
4.12	 Financial liabilities	
		
	 Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the group becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially measured at fair value 
less transaction costs. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised 
at fair value and transaction costs are expensed on profit or loss.	

		
	 Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured 

at amortised cost using the effective yield method.	
		
	 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled 

or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender or 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange and modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition 
of a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.	

		
4.13	 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities	
		
	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated 

financial statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amount 
and the group intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the 
liabilities simultaneously.	
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4.14	 Financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan	
		
	 Financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan include trade debts and other receivables 

due from NTDC/Central Power Purchasing Agency (Guarantee) Limited (‘CPPA-G) under the PPA 
that also includes accrued amounts. As referred to in note 2.2.1(a) to these consolidated financial 
statements, SECP through SRO 985(I)/2019 dated September 2, 2019 has notified that, in respect 
of companies holding financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan, the requirements 
contained in IFRS 9 with respect to application of Expected Credit Losses method shall not be 
applicable till June 30, 2021 and that such companies shall follow relevant requirements of IAS 39 
in respect of above referred financial assets during the exemption period. Accordingly, the same 
continue to be reported as per the following accounting policy:	

		
	 A provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the group will not 

be able to collect all the amount due according to the original terms of the receivable. 	
		
	 The group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that 

the financial asset is impaired. The financial asset is impaired and impairment losses are incurred 
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred 
after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence 
of impairment may include indications that the debtor is experiencing significant financial difficulty, 
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy 
or other financial reorganisation, and where observable data indicates that there is a measurable 
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions 
that correlate with defaults. The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the 
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future 
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective 
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss. When the financial asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the 
provision. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to the statement 
of profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the 
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised 
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised 
impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.	

		
4.15	 Trade debts	
		
	 Trade debts are amounts due from NTDC/CPPA in the ordinary course of business. They are 

generally due for settlement as referred to in note 4.23 and therefore are all classified as current. 
Trade debts are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they 
contain significant financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The group holds 
the trade debts with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them 
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.	

		
4.16	 Share capital	
		
	 Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly 

attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, if any.	
		
4.17	 Employee benefits	
		
	 (i)	 Short term obligations
		
		  Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and accumulating 

annual leaves that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the 
end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in 
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respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured 
at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are 
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the statement of financial position.

		
	 (ii)	 Post employment benefit - Defined contribution plan (Provident Fund)
		
		  There is an approved defined contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal 

monthly contributions are made both by the group and employees to the fund at the 
rate of 10 percent of the basic salary subject to completion of minimum qualifying period 
of service as determined under the rules of the fund.  

		
4.18	 Trade and other payables	
		
	 Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in 

the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are recognized initially at 
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.	

		
4.19	 Provisions	
		
	 Provisions are recognized when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 

past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed 
at each statement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.	

		
4.20	 Cash and cash equivalents	
		
	 Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, bank overdrafts, 

running finance under mark-up arrangements and short term loans which form an integral part of 
the group’s cash management.	

		
4.21	 Borrowings	
		
	 Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are 

subsequently stated at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction 
costs) and the redemption value is recognized in the statement of profit or loss over the period of 
the borrowings using the effective interest method. 	

		
	 Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer 

settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the statement of financial position date.	
		
4.22	 Borrowing costs	
		
	 General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 

production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time 
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time 
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on 
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets 
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are 
recognised in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.	

		
4.23	 Revenue recognition	
		
	 Revenue shall be recognised when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation by 

transferring a promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when 
(or as) the customer obtains control of that asset and thus has the ability to direct the use and 
obtain the benefits from the good or service. 	
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	 Revenue from the sale of electricity to NTDC, the sole customer of the group, is recorded on the 
following basis:

	 - 	 Capacity revenue is recognised based on the capacity made available to NTDC; and

	 - 	 Energy revenue is recognised based on the Net Electrical Output (NEO) delivered to 
NTDC.

	 Capacity and Energy revenue is recognised based on the rates determined under the mechanism 
laid down in the PPA. 	

		
	 Delayed payment markup on amounts due under the PPA is accrued on a time proportion basis 

by reference to the amount outstanding and the applicable rate of return under the PPA.	
		
	 Invoices are generally raised on a monthly basis and are due after 30 days from acknowledgement 

by NTDC.	
			 
4.24	 Foreign currency transactions and translation	
		
	 a)	 Functional and presentation currency
		
		  Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the group are measured using 

the currency of the primary economic environment in which the group operates (the 
functional currency). The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the 
group’s functional and presentation currency.

		
	 b)	 Transactions and balances
		
		  Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange rates 

prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting 
from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange 
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized 
in the statement of profit or loss. 

		
4.25	 Dividend 	
		
	 Dividend distribution to the group’s members is recognised as a liability in the period in which the 

dividends are approved.	
		
4.26	 Contingent liabilities	
		
	 Contingent liability is disclosed when:	
		
	 -	 there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be 

confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the group; or

	 -	 there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
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5.	 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL	
		
	 This represents 354,088,500 (2018: 354,088,500) ordinary shares of Rs 10 each fully paid in 

cash. 180,632,955 (2018: 180,632,955) ordinary shares are held by Nishat Mills Limited, the 
holding company.	

		
6.	 This represents maintenance reserve set aside from retained earnings for the purpose of meeting 

repair and maintenance costs associated with major maintenance of the plant in coming years. 
The reserve is not available for distribution of profits through dividend and will be utilized on actual 
occurrence of expenditure.	

		
7.	 In accordance with the terms of agreement with the lenders of long term finances, there are certain 

restrictions on the distribution of dividends.		  	
		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
8.	 LONG TERM FINANCING - SECURED			  		
	 The reconciliation of the carrying amount is as follows:			  		
	 Opening balance		   5,092,325 	  6,857,693 
	 Less: Repayments during the year		   2,052,155 	  1,765,368 		
			    3,040,170 	  5,092,325 
	 Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities	  2,385,532 	  2,052,155 		
			    654,638 	  3,040,170    
				  
				  
	 Long term financing under mark-up arrangement obtained from following banks:
				  
		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
	 Lender			 
	 National Bank of Pakistan		   527,628 	  883,784 
	 Habib Bank Limited		   703,568 	  1,178,486 
	 Allied Bank Limited		   703,568 	  1,178,486 
	 United Bank Limited		   691,030 	  1,157,485 
	 Faysal Bank Limited		   414,376 	  694,084 				  
			    3,040,170 	  5,092,325 
	 Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 	  2,385,532 	  2,052,155 
				  
			    654,638 	  3,040,170    
				  
8.1	 This represents long term financing obtained from a consortium of banks led by Habib Bank 

Limited (Agent Bank). The portion of long term financing from Faysal Bank Limited is on 
murabaha basis. The overall financing is secured against registered first joint pari passu charge 
on immovable property, mortgage of project receivables, hypothecation of all present and 
future assets and all properties of the group (excluding the mortgaged immovable property 
and mortgaged energy payment receivables), lien over project bank accounts and pledge of 
shares held by the holding company in the parent company. It carries mark-up at the rate of 
three months Karachi Inter-Bank Offered Rate (KIBOR) plus three percent per annum, payable 
on quarterly basis. The mark-up rate charged during the year on the outstanding balance 
ranged from 9.92% to 13.99% (2018: 9.12% to 9.50%) per annum. The finance is repayable 
in five quarterly instalments ending on July 01, 2020.	
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		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
9.	 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - SECURED

	 Short term borrowings under mark-up arrangements 
	    obtained as under:			 
				  
	 Running finances	 - note 9.1	  5,220,315 	  2,774,392 
	 Term finances	 - note 9.2	  1,199,997 	  1,804,499 
				  
			    6,420,312 	  4,578,891      
9.1	 Running finances			 
				  
	 The total running finance and running musharka main facilities obtained from various 

commercial banks under mark-up arrangements aggregate Rs 7,201.520 million (2018: Rs 
6,651.520 million). Such facilities have been obtained at mark-up rates ranging from three 
months KIBOR plus 0.25% to 2% per annum, payable quarterly, on the balance outstanding. 
The aggregate facilities are secured against charge on  present and future fuel stock/inventory 
and present and future energy purchse price receivables. The mark-up rate charged during 
the year on the outstanding balance ranged from 7.18% to 12.99% (2018: 6.39% to 8.43%) 
per annum. Various sub facilities comprising money market loans and letters of guarantee 
have also been utilized under the aforementioned main facilities.

	
9.2	 Term finances
	
	 The total murabaha and term finance main facilities obtained from various commercial banks 

under mark-up arrangements aggregate Rs 2,650 million (2018: Rs 2,450 million). Such 
facilities have been obtained at mark-up rates ranging from one week to six months KIBOR 
plus 0.05% to 1.25%, payable at the maturity of the respective murabaha transaction/term 
finance facility. The aggregate facilities are secured against first pari passu charge on current 
assets comprising of fuel stocks/inventory. The mark-up rate charged during the year on the 
outstanding balance ranged from 6.41% to 13.75% (2018: 6.45% to 7.43%) per annum. 
Various sub facilities comprising running musharka and running finance have also been utilized 
under the aforementioned main facilities.  

	
9.3	 Letters of credit and guarantee
	
	 The main facilities for opening letters of credit and guarantee aggregate Rs 500 million (2018: 

Rs 800 million). The amount utilised at June 30, 2019, for letters of credit was Rs 19.740 
million (2018: Rs 140.210 million) and for letters of guarantee was Rs 112.500 million (2018: 
Rs 202.984 million). The aggregate facilities for opening letters of credit and guarantee are 
secured by charge on present and future current assets including fuel stocks/inventory and 
by lien over import documents.

		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
10.	 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES			 
	
	 Creditors 	 - note 10.1	  62,937 	  469,811 
	 Payable to contractors		   3,457 	  3,495 
	 Workers’ profit participation fund	 - note 10.2	  188,477 	  160,571 
	 Withholding tax payable 		   -   	  652 
	 Other accrued liabilities 		   6,813 	  3,384 
	
			    261,684 	  637,913   
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		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
10.1	 Includes amounts due to following related parties:
			 
	 Security General Insurance Company Limited		   552 	  -   
	 Adamjee Insurance Company Limited		   6,291 	  5,289 
	 D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited		   184 	  -   
				  
			    7,027 	  5,289   

10.2	 Workers’ Profit Participation Fund			 
				  
	 Opening balance		   160,571 	  144,186 
	 Provision for the year	 - note 19.1	  188,477 	  160,571 

			    349,048 	  304,757 
	 Less: Payments made during the year		   160,571 	  144,186 
				  
	 Closing balance		   188,477 	  160,571    
				  

10.3	 Workers’ Welfare Fund (WWF’) has not been provided for in these consolidated financial 
statements based on the advice of the group’s legal consultant. However, in case the group 
pays WWF, the same is recoverable from NTDC as a pass through item under section 9.3(a) 
of the PPA.

		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
11.	 ACCRUED MARKUP			 
				  
	 Accrued mark-up / interest on:
			 
	 Long term financing - secured		   105,994 	  120,733 
	 Short term borrowings - secured		   127,914 	  61,753 
				  
			    233,908 	  182,486    

12.	 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS			 
				  
12.1	 Contingencies

	 Contingent liabilities:			 
				  
	 (i)	 A sales tax demand of Rs 1,218.132 million was raised against the group through order 

dated December 11, 2013, passed by the Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue 
(‘ACIR’) disallowing input sales tax for the tax periods of July 2010 through June 2012. 
The disallowance was primarily made on the grounds that since revenue derived by 
the group on account of ‘capacity revenue’ was not chargeable to sales tax, input 
sales tax claimed by the group was required to be apportioned with only the input 
sales tax attributable to other revenue stream i.e. ‘energy revenue’ admissible to the 
group. Upon appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [‘CIR(A)’], such 
issue was decided in group’s favour, however, certain other issues agitated by the group 
were not adjudicated. Both the group and department have filed appeals against the 
order of CIR(A) before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (‘ATIR’), which are pending 
adjudication.
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		  Subsequently, the above explained issue was taken up by department for tax periods 
of July 2009 to June 2013 (involving input sales tax of Rs 1,722.811 million), however, 
the group assailed the underlying proceedings before Lahore High Court (‘LHC’) directly 
and in this respect, through order dated October 31, 2016, LHC accepted the group’s 
stance and annulled the proceedings. The department has challenged the decision of 
LHC before Supreme Court of Pakistan and has also preferred an Intra Court Appeal 
against such order which are pending adjudication.

		
		  Similarly, for financial year 2014, group’s case was selected for ‘audit’ and such issue 

again formed the core of audit proceedings (involving input sales tax of Rs 596.091 
million). Group challenged the jurisdiction in respect of audit proceedings before LHC 
and while LHC directed the management to join the subject proceedings, department 
was debarred from passing the adjudication order. During the year, LHC has dismissed 
the petition in favour of the department, by allowing the department to complete the 
audit proceedings that are pending completion.

		
		  Since the issue has already been decided in group’s favour on merits by LHC and based 

on advice of the group’s legal counsel, no provision on these accounts have been made 
in these consolidated financial statements.

		
	 (ii)    	 During the year, the Commissioner Inland Revenue has raised a demand of Rs 179.046 

million against the group through his order dated April 16, 2019, mainly on account of 
input tax claimed on inadmissible expenses in sales tax return for the tax periods of July 
2014 to June 2017 and sales tax default on account of suppression of sales related 
to tax period June 2016. The group filed application for grant of stay before the ATIR 
against recovery of the aforesaid demand that was duly granted. Further, the group has 
filed appeals before CIR(A) and ATIR against the order which is pending adjudication. 
Management has strong grounds to believe that the case will be decided in group’s 
favour. Therefore, no provision has been made on this account in these consolidated 
financial statements.

		
	 (iii)	 During the year, NEPRA issued a show cause notice dated February 13, 2019, to the 

group along with other Independent Power Producers to provide rationale of abnormal 
profits earned since commercial operation date (COD) that eventually led to initiation of 
proceedings against the group by NEPRA on March 18, 2019. The group has challenged 
the authority of NEPRA to take suo moto action before the Islamabad High Court (IHC) 
wherein IHC has provided interim relief by suspending the suo moto proceedings. The 
case is currently pending adjudication before IHC. Management is confident that based 
on the facts and law, there will be no adverse implications for the  group.

		
	 (iv)	 The banks have issued the following on behalf of the group:
		
	 (a) 	 Letter of guarantee of Rs 11 million (2018: Rs 11 million) in favour of Director Excise and 

Taxation, Karachi, under direction of Sindh High Court in respect of suit filed for levy of 
infrastructure cess.  

		
	 (b)	 Letters of guarantee of Rs 100 million (2018: Rs 190.484 million) in favour of fuel 

suppliers.
		
	 (c)	 Letter of guarantee of Rs 1.5 million (2018: Rs 1.5 million) in favour of Punjab Revenue 

Authority, Lahore.
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	 Contingent asset:
		
	 (i)	 On August 07, 2017, the group instituted arbitration proceedings against NTDC/

Government of Pakistan by filing a Request for Arbitration (‘RFA’) with the London Court 
of International Arbitration (‘LCIA’) (the ‘Arbitration Proceedings’) for disallowing an 
amount of Rs 1,084.748 million relating to delayed payment charges on outstanding 
delayed payment invoices. The group believes it is entitled to claim delayed payment 
charges on outstanding delayed payments receivables from NTDC as per terms of the 
PPA. However, NTDC has denied this liability and objected on the maintainability of the 
Arbitration Proceedings, terming it against the PPA and refused to pay delayed payment 
charges on outstanding delayed payments receivables.

		
		  The LCIA appointed a sole Arbitrator and a hearing was also held in March 2018. During 

the year, the Arbitrator has issued Partial Final Award in which he has rejected the 
NTDC’s objection to the maintainability of the Arbitration Proceedings.

		
		  While the Arbitration Proceedings on merits of the case are underway, the group has 

submitted the Partial Final Award before LHC and obtained interim relief from honourable 
LHC, whereby, LHC has restrained NTDC from taking steps for delaying the arbitration 
proceedings and challenging the award in Civil Courts of Pakistan. As the above amount 
is disputed, therefore, on prudence basis, the group has not recognised the income and 
corresponding asset for such amount in these consolidated financial statements.

		
	 12.2	 Commitments
		
	 (i)	 Letters of credit and contracts for other than capital expenditure aggregating Rs 19.548 

million (2018: Rs 140.210 million).
		
	 (ii)	 The amount of future payments under non-cancellable operating lease and the period 

in which these payments will become due are as follows:	
		
		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
	

	 Not later than one year		   3,894 	  3,894   

13.	 FIXED ASSETS			 
				  
	 Property, plant and equipment:			 
	 Operating fixed assets	 - note 13.1	  9,809,491 	  10,449,604 
	 Capital work-in-progress 	 - note 13.2	  26,499 	  19,058 
	 Major spare parts and standby equipment	 - note 13.3	  171,600 	  189,932 
				  
			    10,007,590 	  10,658,594 
	 Intangible asset:			 
	 Computer software	 - note 13.4	  2,767 	  4,275 
				  
			    10,010,357 	  10,662,869    
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13.1	 Operating fixed assets
										          (Rupees in 
										          thousand)
	  Freehold 	  Buildings	 Plant and 	 Improve-	  Electric 	  Computer 	  Furniture 	  Office 	  Vehicles 	  Total 
	 land -	 and roads	 machinery	 ments on	 installa-	 equipment	 and	 equipment
	 note 13.1.2	 on freehold		  leasehold	 tions		  fixtures
		  land		  property
COST 
Balance as at July 01, 2017 (Un-audited)	  80,686 	  198,172 	  16,879,372 	  40,909 	  661 	  27,150 	  10,162 	  51,013 	  114,259 	  17,402,384 
Additions during the year 	  -   	  -   	  118,222 	  -   	  -   	  3,137 	  1,287 	  3,929 	  9,355 	  135,930 
Disposals during the year - note 13.1.4 	  -   	  -   	  (51,734)	  -   	  -   	  (669)	  -   	  -   	  (6,589)	  (58,992)										        
Balance as at June 30, 2018 (Un-audited)	  80,686 	  198,172 	  16,945,860 	  40,909 	  661 	  29,618 	  11,449 	  54,942 	  117,025 	  17,479,322 
										         										        
Balance as at July 01, 2018 (Un-audited) 	  80,686 	  198,172 	  16,945,860 	  40,909 	  661 	  29,618 	  11,449 	  54,942 	  117,025 	  17,479,322 
Additions during the year 	  -   	  17,161 	  172,420 	  -   	  383 	  3,014 	  522 	  145 	  97,965 	  291,611 
Disposals during the year - note 13.1.4 	  -   	  -   	  (468,705)	  -   	  -   	  (1,734)	  -   	  (2,735)	  -   	  (473,174)										        
Balance as at June 30, 2019 	  80,686 	  215,333 	  16,649,575 	  40,909 	  1,044 	  30,898 	  11,971 	  52,352 	  214,990 	  17,297,759 
										        
										        
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT 										        
Balance as at July 01, 2017 (Un-audited)	  -   	  54,062 	  5,952,613 	  25,064 	  450 	  18,182 	  4,707 	  21,880 	  34,694 	  6,111,652 
Depreciation charge for the year 	  -   	  7,982 	  927,350 	  4,091 	  59 	  7,872 	  996 	  4,868 	  22,792 	  976,010 
Disposals during the year 	  -   	  -   	  (51,734)	  -   	  -   	  (669)	  -   	  -   	  (5,541)	  (57,944)
										        
Balance as at June 30, 2018 (Un-audited)	  -   	  62,044 	  6,828,229 	  29,155 	  509 	  25,385 	  5,703 	  26,748 	  51,945 	  7,029,718 
										         										        
Balance as at July 01, 2018 (Un-audited) 	  -   	  62,044 	  6,828,229 	  29,155 	  509 	  25,385 	  5,703 	  26,748 	  51,945 	  7,029,718 
Depreciation charge for the year 	  -   	  8,415 	  773,401 	  4,091 	  54 	  2,703 	  1,190 	  5,322 	  29,134 	  824,310 
Disposals during the year 	  -   	  -   	  (361,940)	  -   	  -   	  (1,573)	  -   	  (2,248)	  -   	  (365,761)
										        
Balance as at June 30, 2019 	  -   	  70,459 	  7,239,690 	  33,246 	  563 	  26,515 	  6,893 	  29,822 	  81,079 	  7,488,267 
										        

Book value as at June 30, 2018 (Un-audited) 	  80,686 	  136,128 	  10,117,631 	  11,754 	  152 	  4,233 	  5,746 	  28,194 	  65,080 	  10,449,604 
										        

Book value as at June 30, 2019 	  80,686 	  144,874 	  9,409,885 	  7,663 	  481 	  4,384 	  5,077 	  22,531 	  133,911 	  9,809,491 
										        

Annual depreciation rate % 		   	 4 to 5.85 
	  -   	  4 to 5.24	 and number 	 10	 10	 33	 10	 10	 20
			   of hours used								      
			 

13.1.1	 Improvements on leasehold property represents costs of improvement incurred on property 
owned by Nishat (Aziz Avenue) Hotels and Properties Limited, a related party.	

	
13.1.2	 Freehold land represents 137,879 square meters of land situated at Jamber Kalan, Tehsil 

Pattoki, District Kasur, Punjab, out of which approximately 85,407 square meters represents 
covered area.

		  Audited	 Un-audited
		  2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
13.1.3	 The depreciation charge for the year has 
	    been allocated as follows:			 
			 
	  Cost of sales 	  - note 22 	  789,939 	  947,831 
	  Administrative expenses 	  - note 23 	  34,371 	  28,179 
				  
			    824,310 	  976,010

13.1.4	  The aggregate book value of sale of operating fixed assets during the current and previous 
year was below Rs 5 million.
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		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
13.2	 Capital work-in-progress			 
				  
	 Plant and machinery		   3,547 	  9,059 
	 Civil works		   22,951 	  8,998 
	 Advances against purchase of vehicles		   -   	  1,000 				  
			    26,498 	  19,057 

	 The reconciliation of the carrying amount is as follows:			  				 
	 Opening balance		   19,058 	  -   
	 Additions during the year 		   39,319 	  114,517 				  
			    58,377 	  114,517 
	 Transfers during the year		   (22,836)	  (95,459)
	 Charged to profit		   (9,042)	  -   				  
	 Closing balance		   26,499 	  19,058  
				  
13.3	 Major spare parts and standby equipment			 
				  
	 Opening balance		   189,932 	  90,645 
	 Additions during the year 		   84,391 	  122,194 
	 Reclassified from stores, spares and loose tools		  70,007 	  -   				  
			    344,330 	  212,839 				  
	 Transfers during the year		   (172,730)	  (22,907)
				  
	 Closing balance 		   171,600 	  189,932 
				  
13.4	 Intangible asset			 
				  
	 Computer software			 
				  
	 Cost			 
	 Opening balance		   7,542 	  7,542 
	 Addition during the year		   -   	  -   
				  
	 Closing balance 		   7,542 	  7,542 
				  
	 Amortization			 
	 Opening balance		   (3,267)	  (1,759)
	 Charge for the year	 - note 22	  (1,508)	  (1,508)
				  
	 Closing balance 		   (4,775)	  (3,267)
				  
	 Book value 		   2,767 	  4,275 
				  
	 Annual amortization rate		   20% 	  20%     
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13.5     All property, plant and equipment and intangible asset of the group are pledged as security for 
long term financing as disclosed in note 8 to these consolidated financial statements.			
	

		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
14.	 INVESTMENT ACCOUNTED FOR UNDER 
	    EQUITY METHOD	 		
				  
	 Investment in associate	 - note 14.1	  -   	  -  

14.1	 Related party - Associate			 
	 Unquoted:			 
	 Nishat Energy Limited			  				  
	 250,000 (2018: 250,000) fully paid ordinary shares 				 

of Rs 10 each [Equity held  25% (2018: 25%)] - Cost	  2,500 	  2,500 
				  
				  
	 The group directly holds 25% ordinary shares in NEL. NEL is no longer considered a going concern 

by its management and hence, the investment is fully impaired.				 
		

		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
15.	 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

	 Loans to employees - considered good		   229 	  752 
	 Less: Current portion shown under 
	              current assets	 - note 19	  (223)	  (521)
				  
			    6 	  231    
			 

	 This represents interest free motor vehicle loans given to employees, receivable in maximum 
60 monthly instalments in accordance with the group’s policy. These loans are secured 
against registration of cars in the joint name of the group and the employee and against the 
accumulated provident fund balance of the relevant employee. These loans have not been 
carried at amortised cost as the effect of discounting is not considered material.
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		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
16. 	 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

	 Stores		   10,694 	  8,579 
	 Spares [including in transit Rs 2.642 million 
	    (2018: Rs 4.680 million)]		   732,634 	  901,164 
	 Loose tools		   14,193 	  15,034 
				  
			    757,521 	  924,777  

16.1	 Stores and spares include items which may result in fixed capital expenditure but are not 
distinguishable.			 

		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
17.	 INVENTORIES

	 Furnace oil		   1,688,656 	  1,553,946 
	 Diesel		   4,515 	  2,166 
	 Lubricating oil		   26,228 	  13,227
 
			    1,719,399 	  1,569,339

18.  	 TRADE DEBTS 			 
			 
18.1	 These represent trade receivables from NTDC and are considered good. These are secured by 

a guarantee from the Government of Pakistan under the Implementation Agreement and are in 
the normal course of business and interest free, however, a delayed payment mark-up at the 
rate of three months KIBOR plus 4.5% per annum is charged in case the amounts are not paid 
within due dates. The rate of delayed payment mark-up charged during the year on outstanding 
amounts ranges from 10.57% to 17.47% (2018: 10.57% to 14.66%) per annum. Trade debts 
include unbilled receivables of Rs 652.678 million (2018: Rs 340.666 million).

	
18.2	 Included in trade debts is an amount of Rs 816.033 million relating to capacity revenue not 

acknowledged by NTDC as the plant was not fully available for power generation. However, the 
sole reason of this under-utilization of plant capacity was non-availability of fuel owing to non-
payment by NTDC.

	
	 Since management considers that the primary reason for claiming these payments is that plant 

was available, however, could not generate electricity due to non-payment by NTDC, therefore, 
management believes that group cannot be penalized in the form of payment deductions due 
to NTDC’s default of making timely payments under the PPA. Hence, the group had taken up 
this issue at appropriate forums. 

	
	 On June 28, 2013, the group entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (‘MoU’) for 

cooperation on extension of credit terms with NTDC whereby it was agreed that the constitutional 
petition filed by the group before the Supreme Court of Pakistan on the abovementioned issue 
would be withdrawn unconditionally and it would be resolved through the dispute resolution 
mechanism under the PPA. Accordingly, as per terms of the MoU, the group applied for 
withdrawal of the aforesaid petition in 2013 and on January 25, 2018, the Supreme Court 
disposed off the petitions filed before it. During the financial year 2014, the group in consultation 
with NTDC, appointed an Expert for dispute resolution under the PPA.
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	 During the financial year 2016, the Expert gave his determination whereby the aforesaid amount 
was determined to be payable to the group by NTDC. Pursuant to the Expert’s determination, 
the group demanded the payment of the aforesaid amount of Rs 816.033 million from NTDC 
that has not yet been paid by NTDC. The group filed a request for arbitration in the London 
Court of International Arbitration (‘LCIA’), whereby an Arbitrator was appointed.

	
	 In October 2015, the Government of Pakistan (‘GOP’) through Private Power & Infrastructure 

Board (‘PPIB’) filed a case in the court of Senior Civil Judge, (“Civil Case 2015”), Lahore, against 
the aforementioned decision of the Expert, praying it to be illegal, which is pending adjudication.

	
	 Consequently, invitation to participate in arbitration was issued to the PPIB/GOP. PPIB filed 

separate Civil Suit before the Civil Judge, Lahore, seeking inter alia that the parties should be 
restrained from participating in the arbitration proceedings in the LCIA (“Civil Case 2016”). The 
group filed applications in the Civil Court where the group prayed that the Civil Court, Lahore 
lacks the jurisdiction in respect of the cases filed by PPIB. In respect of the aforementioned 
applications, through its orders dated April 18, 2017, the Civil Court, Lahore rejected group’s 
pray and granted the pray of PPIB whereby, the court accepted PPIB’s applications for interim 
relief in 2015 and 2016 Civil Suits. Being aggrieved, the group challenged before the Additional 
District Judge, Lahore against the aforementioned orders of the Civil Court and continued to 
take part in the arbitration proceedings. Furthermore, in response to the group’s continued 
participation in the arbitration proceedings, PPIB filed contempt petition before Lahore High 
Court (‘LHC’) in respect of the decision of the Civil Court, Lahore and the LHC passed an order 
in those proceedings. The group challenged the LHC’s order before the Division Bench of LHC, 
which decided the matter in favour of the group through its order dated May 31, 2017 whereby, 
the aforementioned order of the LHC was suspended. 

	
	 The Arbitrator, on June 08, 2017,  declared his Partial Final Award and decided the matter 

principally in group’s favour and declared that the above mentioned Expert’s determination is 
final and binding on all parties (“Final Partial Award”). 

	
	 Aggrieved by the Partial Final Award, NTDC challenged the Arbitrator’s decision in Lahore 

Civil Court (“Civil Case 2017”), which suspended the Final Partial Award on July 10, 2017. In 
response to this decision of Civil Court, the group filed a revision petition in District Court and 
the District Court (“District Case 2017”) while granting interim relief to the group, suspended 
the Civil Court’s order on August 12, 2017. Along with challenging the Final Partial Award in 
Lahore Civil Court, NTDC also challenged the same, on July 06, 2017, in Commercial Court of 
England. As per advice of foreign legal counsel, the group also filed a case for anti suit injunction 
in Commercial Court of England against NTDC on August 14, 2017.

	
	 The District Judge, Lahore through his order dated July 8, 2017 set-aside the aforementioned 

orders of the Civil Judge, Lahore dated April 18, 2017 and accepted group’s appeals but 
dismissed the group’s revision petitions concerning the issue of jurisdiction. Aggrieved by this 
decision, (i) the group filed writ petitions before the LHC, which announced a favourable decision 
and suspended the proceedings of Civil Cases 2015 and 2016 till the final decision of LHC; and 
(ii) GOP/PPIB filed revision petitions in the LHC, which are currently pending adjudication.

	
	 On October 29, 2017, the Arbitrator declared his Final Award whereby he ordered NTDC to 

pay to the group: i) Rs 816.033 million pursuant to Expert’s determination; ii) Rs 189.385 million 
being Pre award interest; iii) Rs 9.203 million for breach of arbitration agreement; iv) Rs 1.684 
million and USD 612,310 for the group’s cost of proceedings; v) GBP 30,157 for group’s LCIA 
cost of Arbitration and vi) Interest at KIBOR + 4.5% compounded semi-annually from the date 
of Final Award until payment of these amounts by NTDC (“the Final Award”) that works out to 
Rs 205.870 million up to June 30, 2019.
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	 On November 24, 2017, NTDC challenged the Final Award in Commercial Court of England. 
On November 29, 2017, group filed an application before Lahore High Court for implementation 
of Final Award that is also pending adjudication. During the hearing held in December 2017 in 
London, NTDC withdrew its petitions dated July 06, 2017 and November 24, 2017 filed before 
Commercial Court of England against the group, pertaining to Partial Final Award and Final 
Award respectively.

	
	 On May 4, 2018, Commercial Court of England issued a favourable decision in the case of anti 

suit injunction, thereby preventing NTDC from pursuing case in Pakistan Civil Courts against 
Partial Final Award/Final Award and taking any steps outside England to set aside Partial Final 
Award/Final Award issued by the Arbitrator. Aggrieved by this decision, NTDC had sought 
permission to file an appeal before the Court of Appeals, London, which was rejected by the 
Court on October 04, 2018.

	
	 Based on the favourable Expert’s determination and Arbitration Award, management strongly 

feels that under the terms of the PPA and Implementation Agreement, the above amount of 
Rs 816.033 million is likely to be recovered by the group. Consequently, no provision for this 
amount has been made in these consolidated financial statements. 

	
	 Further, being prudent, the group has not recognised the abovementioned amounts in these 

consolidated financial statements for Pre-award interest, breach of arbitration agreement, 
group’s cost of proceedings, group’s LCIA cost of Arbitration and interest thereon on all these 
amounts as per Final Award due to its uncertainty since it is pending adjudication as mentioned 
above. Such amounts as per Final Award would be recognized when it attains finality and its 
collectibility is certain.

		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
19. 	 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS
	    AND OTHER RECEIVABLES			 
			 
	 Advances - considered good:			 
	 -  To employees		   395 	  16,693 
	 -  To suppliers		   743 	  3,404 
	 Current portion of long term loans 
	    - considered good	 - note 15	  223 	  521 
	 Balances with statutory authorities:			 
	 -  Customs duty recoverable		   4 	  12 
	 -  Sales tax		   458,530 	  497,662 
	 Claims recoverable from NTDC for pass 
	    through items:			 
	 -  Workers’ Profit Participation Fund	 - notes 19.1 
		    and 19.2	  401,225 	  718,290 
	 Interest receivable	 - note 19.3	  1,655 	  1,035 
	 Security deposits and bank guarantee margins		   7,612 	  6,522 
	 Prepayments		   5,738 	  6,186 
	 Other receivables	 - note 19.4	  23,947 	  300 
				  
			    900,072 	  1,250,625    
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		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
19.1 	 Workers’ Profit Participation Fund

	 Opening balance		   718,291 	  567,720 
	 Accrued for the year	 - note 10.2	  188,477 	  160,571 

			    906,768 	  728,291 
	 Less: Amount received during the year		   505,543 	  10,000 

	 Closing balance		   401,225 	  718,291  
				  

19.2	 Under section 9.3(a) of the PPA with NTDC, payments to Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 
are recoverable from NTDC as a pass through item.

19.3	 Includes an amount due from MCB Bank Limited, a related party amounting to Rs 0.674 
million (2018: Rs 0.469 million).

19.4	 The maximum aggregate amount due from MCB Bank Limited, a related party at the end of 
any month during the year was Rs 1.655 million (2018: Rs 1.035 million). 

	
		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
20.	 CASH AND BANK BALANCES			 

	 Cash at bank:			 
	 - On saving accounts 	 - note 20.1	  19,451 	  135,445 
	 - On current accounts 		   549 	  4,224 

		  - note 20.2	  20,000 	  139,669 
	 Cash in hand		   797 	  726 

			    20,797 	  140,395  
				  
20.1	 Profit on balances in saving accounts ranges from 3.11% to 10.50% (2018: 3.00% to 4.75%) 

per annum.			 

20.2	 Cash at bank includes Rs 17.359 million (2018: Rs 23.448 million) in MCB Bank Limited, a 
related party.					  
	

		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
21. 	 SALES

	 Energy revenue		   11,240,901 	  14,066,981 
	 Less: Sales tax		   1,644,765 	  2,054,816 

			    9,596,136 	  12,012,165 
	 Capacity revenue		   4,791,511 	  4,217,339 
	 Delayed payment markup		   1,194,271 	  699,581 

			    15,581,918 	  16,929,085   
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		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
22. 	 COST OF SALES			 
			 
	 Raw materials consumed		   8,801,876 	  10,882,284 
	 Salaries and other benefits	 - note 22.1	  277,238 	  234,372 
	 Repairs and maintenance		   39,123 	  21,847 
	 Stores, spares and loose tools consumed	- note 22.2	  357,039 	  372,965 
	 Electricity consumed in-house		   23,213 	  4,245 
	 Insurance	 - note 22.3	  211,016 	  168,296 
	 Travelling and conveyance		   24,035 	  20,185 
	 Printing and stationery		   805 	  702 
	 Postage and telephone		   661 	  628 
	 Vehicle running expenses		   3,094 	  2,178 
	 Entertainment		   1,920 	  1,819 
	 Depreciation on operating fixed assets	 - note 13.1.3	  789,939 	  947,831 
	 Amortization of intangible asset	 - note 13.4	  1,508 	  1,508 
	 Fee and subscription		   3,923 	  4,184 
	 Miscellaneous	 - note 22.4	  48,631 	  44,292 
				  
			    10,584,021 	  12,707,336   
			 
22.1	 Salaries and other benefits include Rs 15.573 million (2018: Rs 14.104 million) in respect of 

provident fund contribution by the group.
	
22.2	 This includes goods of Rs 0.301 million (2018: Rs 2.261 million) purchased from D.G. Khan 

Cement Company Limited, a related party.
	
22.3	 This includes amount of Rs 206.873 million (2018: Rs 163.6 million) charged by Security General 

Insurance Company Limited, a related party, in respect of insurance of the group’s assets.
	
22.4	 This includes wages of contractual employees aggregating Rs 30.752 million (2018: Rs 

27.698 million).			 
		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
23. 	 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES			 
			 
	 Salaries and other benefits	  - note 23.1 	  124,094 	  106,734 
	 Travelling and conveyance	  - note 23.2 	  66,481 	  55,995 
	 Entertainment		   1,154 	  1,222 
	 Rent, rates and taxes	  - note 23.3 	  12,561 	  12,661 
	 Printing and stationery		   729 	  1,033 
	 Postage and telephone		   1,269 	  1,166 
	 Vehicle running expenses		   5,756 	  5,250 
	 Legal and professional charges	  - note 23.4 	  10,424 	  89,696 
	 Insurance	  - note 23.5 	  4,838 	  3,765 
	 Advertisement		   179 	  960 
	 Fee and subscription		   3,226 	  3,939 
	 Depreciation on operating fixed assets	 - note 13.1.3	  34,371 	  28,179 
	 Miscellaneous		   9,119 	  9,967 
				  
			    274,201 	  320,567     
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23.1	 Salaries and other benefits include Rs 5.970 million (2018: Rs 5.723 million) in respect of 
provident fund contribution by the group.

	
23.2	 Includes Rs 58.403 million (2018: Rs 47.061 million) in respect of aviation services from 

Pakistan Aviators and Aviation (Private) Limited, a related party.
	
23.3	 Includes operating lease rentals of Rs 12.461 million (2018: Rs 12.461 million) in respect of 

property leased from Nishat (Aziz Avenue) Hotels and Properties Limited, a related party.
	
23.4	 Legal and professional charges include the following in respect of auditors’ remuneration 

(excluding sales tax) for:
	
		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)

	 Statutory audit fee		   1,753 	  1,643 
	 Half yearly review		   875 	  875 
	 Tax services		   985 	  861 
	 Certifications required by various regulations		   264 	  167 
	 Reimbursement of expenses		   149 	  249 
				  
			    4,026 	  3,795  

23.5	 This represents insurance services obtained from 
	    following related parties:			 
				  
	 Adamjee Life Assurance Company Limited		   432 	  506 
	 Security General Insurance Company Limited		   3,246 	  2,581 
				  
			    3,678 	  3,087

24.	 OTHER EXPENSES			 
				  
	 Exchange loss		   1,366 	  2,770 
	 Donations		   500 	  -   
	 Loss on disposal of operating fixed assets		   14,018 	  -   
				  
			    15,884 	  2,770 
25.	 OTHER INCOME			 
				  
	 Profit on bank deposits		   4,327 	  2,559 
	 Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets		   -   	  53 
	 Scrap sales		   3,231 	  4,845 
	 Insurance receipts against business interruption loss	  -   	  43,587 
				  
			    7,558 	  51,044    
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		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
26.	 FINANCE COST			  				  
	 Interest / mark-up on:			 
	  - Long term financing - secured		   458,528 	  533,774 
	  - Short term borrowings - secured		   482,561 	  201,149 
	 Financing fee and bank charges		   4,557 	  2,396 
				  
			    945,646 	  737,319  
				  
27.	 TAXATION			  				  
	 Current:			 
	 - For the year		   -   	  -   
	 - Prior years		   -   	  -   
				  
			    -   	  -   	

			 
27.1	 Relationship between tax expense
	    and accounting profit			 
				  
	 Profit before taxation		   3,769,724 	  3,211,294 
				  

	 Tax at the applicable rate of 29% (2018: 30%)		   1,093,220 	  963,387 
	 Tax effect of amounts that are:			 
	 Exempt as referred to in note 4.2		   (1,091,966)	  (962,621)
	 Allowable as tax credit		   (1,254)	  (766)
				  
			    -   	  - 		

		
			 
27.2	 For the purposes of current taxation, the tax credit available for carry forward is estimated at Rs 

25.387 million (2018: Rs 84.722 million). As explained in note 4.2, management believes that the 
tax credit available for carry forward may not be utilized in the foreseeable future. Consequently, 
on prudence basis, deferred tax asset on tax credit available for carry forward has not been 
recognized in these consolidated financial statements. Tax credit would expire as follows:

		  Accounting year to	 Amount of tax credit	 Accounting year in which
		  which tax credit relates	 (Rupees in thousand)	 tax credit will expire
			 
		  2018	   8,145	 2020
		  2019	 17,242	 2021

			   25,387 
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		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
28. 	 EARNINGS PER SHARE			  			 
28.1 	 Basic earnings per share			  			 
	 Profit for the year - attributable to equity			 
	    holders of the parent	 Rupees	  3,769,724,000 	  3,211,294,000 			 
	 Weighted average number of ordinary shares	 Number	  354,088,500 	  354,088,500 			 
	 Earnings per share	 Rupees	  10.646 	  9.069     
			 
28.2 	 Diluted earnings per share			  			 
	 A diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the group does not have any 

convertible instruments in issue as at June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 which would have 
any effect on the earnings per share if the option to convert is exercised.		
	

		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
29. 	 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS			 
	 Profit before taxation		   3,769,724 	  3,211,294 			 
	 Adjustment for non cash charges and other items:			  			 
	 Depreciation on operating fixed assets  - note 13.1.3	  824,310 	  976,010 
	 Amortization on intangible assets           - note 13.4	  1,508 	  1,508 
	 Profit on bank deposits		   (4,327)	  (2,559)
	 Finance cost		   945,646 	  737,319 
	 Provision for employee retirement benefits		   21,543 	  19,827 
	 Loss/(gain) on disposal of operating fixed assets		   14,018 	  (53)
	 Share of loss of associate 		   -   	  843 			 
	 Profit before working capital changes		   5,572,422 	  4,944,189 
				  
	 Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes:			 
				  
	 Decrease/(increase) in current assets			  			 
	 Stores, spares and loose tools		   167,255 	  (262,485)
	 Inventories		   (150,060)	  (593,780)
	 Trade debts		   (3,314,576)	  (3,384,501)
	 Advances, deposits, prepayments and 			 
	      other receivables		   351,173 	  (152,433)			 
			    (2,946,208)	  (4,393,199)
	 Increase/(decrease) in current liabilities			 
				  
	 Trade and other payables		   (382,894)	  128,035 
	 Unclaimed dividend		   6,665 	  534 
				  
			    (376,229)	  128,569 
				  
			    (3,322,437)	  (4,264,630)
				  
			    2,249,985 	  679,559    
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		  Audited	 Un-audited
			   2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
30. 	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS			 
			 
	 Cash and bank balances	  - note 20	  20,797 	  140,395 
	 Short term borrowings - secured	  - note 9	  (6,420,312)	  (4,578,891)
				  
			    (6,399,515)	  (4,438,496) 

31.	 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

31.1	 The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the year for remuneration, 
including certain benefits, to the chief executive, directors and executives is as follows:

		     Chief	 Executive	  Non Executive	       Executives 
		  Executive	 Director	 Directors	
		   2019	  2018	  2019	  2018	 2019	 2018	 2019	 2018
		   ( R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d )
Short term employee benefits								      
								      
Managerial remuneration	  15,867 	  7,568 	  14,490 	  7,140 	  -   	  -   	 113,281 	  7,568 
Medical allowance and reimbursement	  324 	  762 	  1,449 	  740 	  -   	  -   	  15,682 	  762 
Bonus	  5,472 	  2,696 	  2,530 	  1,235 	  -   	  -   	  34,712 	  2,696 
Overtime	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  3,075 	  -   
Leave encashment	  -   	  420 	  -   	  397 	  -   	  -   	  6,974 	  420 
								      
	  21,663 	  11,446 	  18,469 	  9,512 	  -   	  -   	 173,724 	  11,446 
								      
Meeting fee	   -    	   -    	   -    	   -    	  775 	  1,075 	  -   	   -    
								      
Post employment benefits					      	  		
								      
Contribution to provident fund	  324 	  757 	  -   	  714 	  -   	  -   	  11,328 	  757 
								      
	  21,987 	  12,203 	  18,469 	  10,226 	  775 	  1,075 	  185,052 	  12,203  
								      
								      
Number of persons	 1*	 1	  1 	  1 	  5 	  5 	  47 	  43  
  								      
	 * Mr. Ghazanfar Hussain Mirza was appointed as the Chief Executive in place of Mr. Hassan 

Mansha on April 27, 2019.

31.2	 The executive director, a non-executive director and certain executives are provided with 
company maintained vehicles.			   		
	

32.	 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES	 		
				  
	 The related parties include the holding company, the associate, subsidiaries and associates of 

the holding company, related parties on the basis of common directorship, key management 
personnel and post employment benefit plan (Provident Fund). Key management personnel 
are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the 
activities of the group, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) 
of that group. The group in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various 
related parties. Amounts due from and to related parties are shown under receivables and 
payables. Significant related party transactions have been disclosed in respective notes in these 
consolidated financial statements other than the following:
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		  Audited	 Un-audited
		  2019	 2018
			   (Rupees in thousand)
Relationship with 	 Nature of transactions		
the company		  	
				  
(i)  Holding company	 Dividends paid	  541,899 	  361,266 
(ii)  Other related parties	 Purchase of services	  901 	  -   
(iii) Key Management 
       Personnel	 Remuneration            - note 32.1	  41,231	  23,504 
		  Dividends paid	  12 	  8 

32.1	 This represents remuneration of the Chief Executive and Directors that is presented in the 
remuneration disclosed in note 31 to these consolidated financial statements.

32.2    	 The related parties with whom the group had entered into transactions or had arrangements/
agreements in place during the year have been disclosed below along with their basis of 
relationship: 

	 Name of related party	 Relationship	 %age of 
			   shareholding 
			   of the company
			 
	 Nishat Mills Limited	 Holding company	 51.01%
	 Security General Insurance Company Limited	 Common directorship	 N/A
	 D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited	 Common directorship	 N/A
	 Pakistan Aviators and Aviation (Private) Limited	 Common directorship	 N/A
	 Nishat (Aziz Avenue) Hotels and Properties Limited	 Common directorship	 N/A
	 Nishat Hotels and Properties Limited	 Common directorship	 N/A
	 Adamjee Insurance Company Limited	 Associate of holding company	 0.26%
	 MCB Bank Limited	 Associate of holding company	 N/A
	 Adamjee Life Assurance Company Limited 	 Associate of holding company	 0.01%
	 Lalpir Solar Power (Private) Limited	 Subsidiary	 N/A
	 Nishat Energy Limited	 Associate	 N/A
	 Mr. Hassan Mansha	 Director	 0.0000%
	 Mr. Norez Abdullah	 Director	 0.0001%
	 Mr. Ahmad Aqeel	 Director	 0.0001%
	 Mr. Yousuf Bashir	 Director	 0.0003%
	 Mr. Shahzad Ahmad Malik	 Director	 0.0001%
	 Mr. Ghazanfar Hussain Mirza	 Chief Executive	 0.0003%
	 Mr. Mahmood Akhtar	 Director	 0.0003%
				  
		  Audited	 Un-audited
		  2019	 2018
		  MWH	 MWH
33.	 CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
				  
	 Installed capacity [based on 8,760 hours 
	    (2018: 8,760 hours)]		  1,710,872 	  1,710,872 
	 Actual energy delivered 		   675,103 	  1,171,192 
					   

	 Output produced by the plant is dependent on the load demanded by NTDC and plant 
availability.
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		  Audited	 Un-audited
		  2019	 2018

34.	 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

	 Total number of employees as at June 30		  218	 217

					   
	 Average number of employees during the year		  218	 217
					   

35.	 DISCLOSURE RELATING TO PROVIDENT FUND
	
	 The investments by the provident fund in collective investment schemes, listed equity and 

debt securities have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the 
Companies Act, 2017 and the conditions specified thereunder.

	
36.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
	
36.1	 Financial risk factors
	
	 The group is exposed to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, 

other price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The group’s overall risk 
management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 
minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance.

	
	 Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors (the Board). The Board provides 

principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as 
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity. All 
treasury related transactions are carried out within the parameters of these policies.

		
(a)	 Market risk
	
	 (i)	 Currency risk
		
		  Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 

will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly 
from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to 
transactions in foreign currencies.

		
		  The group is not exposed to any significant currency risk. 
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	 (ii)	 Other price risk
		
		  Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 

instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising 
from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors 
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar 
financial instruments traded in the market. The group is not exposed to equity price 
risk since there are no investments in equity instruments traded in the market at the 
reporting date. The group is also not exposed to commodity price risk since it does not 
hold any financial instrument based on commodity prices.  

		
	 (iii)	 Interest rate risk
		
		  Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 

instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 
		
		  The group has no significant long-term interest-bearing assets. The group’s interest rate 

risk arises from borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the group to 
cash flow interest rate risk.

		
		  At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the group’s interest bearing financial 

instruments was:

		  Audited	 Un-audited
		  2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
		  Fixed rate instruments

		  Financial assets			 
		  Bank balances - saving accounts	 - note 20	  19,451 	  135,445 
					   
	 	 Financial liabilities		   -   	  -   
					   
		  Net exposure		   19,451 	  135,445 
					   
		  Floating rate instruments			 
					   
		  Financial assets			 
		  Trade debts - overdue		   9,020,734 	  5,782,071 
					   
		  WPPF receivable from NTDC - overdue		   198,076 	  557,719 
					   
				     9,218,810 	  6,339,790 
	 	 Financial liabilities			 
		  Long term financing - secured		   (3,040,170)	  (5,092,325)
		  Short term borrowings - secured		   (6,420,312)	  (4,578,891)
					   
				     (9,460,482)	  (9,671,216)
					   
	 	 Net exposure		   (241,672)	  (3,331,426)
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	 Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments			 
				  
	 The group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value 

through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the statement of financial position 
date would not affect profit or loss of the group.

		
	 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
		
	 If interest rates on variable rate financial instruments, at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% 

higher / lower with all other variables held constant, post tax profit for the year would have 
been Rs 44.204 million (2018: Rs 13.837 million) lower / higher, mainly as a result of  higher / 
lower interest expense on floating rate instruments.

				  
(b)	 Credit risk	
				  
	 Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss 

for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit risk mainly arises from deposits 
with banks, trade and other receivables.  

	
(i)	 Exposure to credit risk
	
	 The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The 

maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:	
		
		  Audited	 Un-audited
		  2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
				  
	 Long term loans and advances		   6 	  231 
	 Trade debts		   15,643,517 	  12,328,941 
	 Advances, deposits and other receivables		   434,662 	  726,668 
	 Bank balances		   20,000 	  139,669 
					   
				     16,098,185 	  13,195,509  
				  
	 As of June 30, age analysis of trade debts was as follows: 			 
				  
	 Neither past due nor impaired		   3,513,017 	  4,130,532 
				  
	 Past due but not impaired:			 
				  
	  - 1 to 30 days 		   1,252,398 	  1,850,964 
	  - 31 to 90 days		   1,196,102 	  2,798,729 
	  - 91 to 180 days		   3,643,063 	  1,872,619 
	  - 181 to 365 days		   4,009,833 	  188,868 
	  - above 365 days		   2,029,104 	  1,487,229 
				  
			    	 12,130,500 	  8,198,409 
				  
				     15,643,517 	  12,328,941  
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(ii)	 Credit quality of financial assets	
			 
	 The credit quality of major financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be 

assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about 
counterparty default rate:

						      Audited	 Un-audited
	  	                                     Rating 		  Rating 	  2019	  2018
			   Short term		   Long term 	 Agency	 (Rupees in thousand)
						    
	 NTDC	                           Not available			    3,513,017 	  4,130,532 
	 Al-Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited	  A-1 	 A+	  JCR-VIS 	  1 	  4 
	 Allied Bank Limited	  A1+ 	 AAA	  PACRA 	  25 	  168 
	 Askari Bank Limited	  A1+ 	 AA+	 PACRA	  14 	  11 
	 Bank Alfalah Limited	  A1+ 	 AA+	 PACRA	  5 	  5 
	 Bank Islami Pakistan Limited	 A1	 A+	 PACRA	  1 	  3 
	 Habib Bank Limited	  A-1+ 	  AAA 	  JCR-VIS 	  569 	  449 
	 MCB Bank Limited	  A1+ 	 AAA	 PACRA	  17,379 	  23,538 
	 MCB Islamic Bank Limited	  A1+ 	 A	 PACRA	  17 	  - 
	 National Bank of Pakistan	  A1+ 	 AAA	 PACRA	  23 	  113,016 
	 The Bank of Punjab	  A1+ 	 AA	 PACRA	  12 	  13 
	 Burj Bank Limited	  A-1 	 A+	 JCR-VIS	  2 	  2 
	 The Bank of Khyber	  A1 	 A	 PACRA	  5 	  - 
	 Faysal Bank Limited	  A1+ 	 AA	 PACRA	  3 	  - 
	 Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited	  A-1 	 AA-	 JCR-VIS	  1 	  - 
	 United Bank Limited	  A-1+ 	 AAA	 JCR-VIS	  1,943 	  2,460 
						    
					      3,533,017 	  4,270,201    

	 Due to the group’s long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after 
giving due consideration to their strong financial standing, management does not expect non-
performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the group. Accordingly, the credit 
risk is minimal.

(c)	 Liquidity risk
				  
	 Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated 

with financial liabilities.
	
	 The group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that, as far as possible, it always has 

sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, 
without incurring unacceptable loss or risking damage to the group’s reputation.

	
	 The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2019.

		   Carrying 	  Less than 	  One to five 	  More than 
		  amount	 one year	 years	 five years

			                                        (Rupees in thousand)

	 Long term financing	  3,040,170 	  2,385,532 	  654,638 	  - 
	 Short term borrowings	  6,420,312 	  6,420,312 	  - 	  - 
	 Unclaimed dividend	  21,666 	  21,666 		
	 Trade and other payables	  73,207 	  73,207 	  - 	  - 
	 Accrued markup	  233,908 	  233,908 	  - 	  - 
					   
		   9,789,263 	  9,134,625 	  654,638 	  -    
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	 The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2018 (Un-audited).
			   	  
		   Carrying 	  Less than 	  One to five 	  More than 
		  amount	 one year	 years	 five years

			                                        (Rupees in thousand)

	 Long term financing	  5,092,325 	  2,052,155 	  3,040,170 	  - 
	 Short term borrowings	  4,578,891 	  4,578,891 	  - 	  - 
	 Unclaimed dividend	  15,001 	  15,001 		
	 Trade and other payables	  474,798 	  474,798 	  - 	  - 
	 Accrued markup	  182,486 	  182,486 	  - 	  - 
					   
		   10,343,501 	  7,303,331 	  3,040,170 	  -     
  
 
36.2	 Fair value estimation
	
	 The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated financial 

statements approximate their fair values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective 
evidence at each reporting date.

	
36.3	 Financial instruments by categories			 
		  Financial assets 	 Loans
		  at amortised 	 and
		  cost	 receivables
		  Audited	 Un-audited
		  2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
	 Assets as per statement of financial position
			 
	 Long term loans and advances		   229 	  752 
	 Trade debts		   15,643,517 	  12,328,941 
	 Advances, deposits and other receivables		   434,439 	  730,520 
	 Cash and bank balances		   20,797 	  140,395 
				  
			    16,098,982 	  13,200,608   
      
 
			    Financial liabilities at 
			   amortised cost 	
		  Audited	 Un-audited
		  2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
	 Liabilities as per statement of financial position
			 
	 Long term financing		   3,040,170 	  5,092,325 
	 Short term borrowings		   6,420,312 	  4,578,891 
	 Trade and other payables		   73,207 	  474,798 
	 Unclaimed dividend		   21,666 	  15,001 
	 Accrued markup		   233,908 	  182,486 
				  
			    9,789,263 	  10,343,501     
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36.4	 Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to offsetting
	
	 There are no significant financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject to offsetting, 

enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements.
	
36.5	 Capital management
	
	 The group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard group’s ability to continue as 

a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and lenders and to maintain an 
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The group manages its capital structure 
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to 
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to 
shareholders or issue new shares. Consistent with others in the industry and the requirements 
of the lenders, the group monitors the capital structure on the basis of gearing ratio. This 
ratio is calculated as net borrowings divided by total capital employed. Net borrowings are 
calculated as total borrowings including current and non-current borrowings as disclosed in 
note 9 to these financial statements less cash and cash equivalents as disclosed in note 30 to 
these financial statements. Total capital employed includes equity as shown in the statement 
of financial position, plus net borrowings.  

	
	 The gearing ratio as at June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 is as follows:
			 
		  Audited	 Un-audited
		  2019	 2018
		  (Rupees in thousand)
				  
	 Borrowings - note 9		   3,040,170 	  5,092,325 
	 Less: Cash and cash equivalents - note 30		   (6,399,515)	  (4,438,496)
				  
	 Net borrowings		   9,439,685 	  9,530,821 
	 Total equity 		   19,108,067 	  16,400,609 
				  
	 Total capital employed		   28,547,752 	  25,931,430 
				  

	 Gearing ratio	  Percentage 	  33.07 	  36.75     
 

	 In accordance with the terms of agreement with the lenders of long term finances (as discussed 
in note 8 to these consolidated financial statements), the group is required to comply with 
certain financial covenants in respect of capital requirements which the group has complied 
with throughout the reporting period.
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37.	 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
	
	 These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on September 18, 2019  

by the Board of Directors.
	
38.	 CORRESPONDING FIGURES
	
	 Corresponding figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to reflect better 

presentation of events and transactions for the purpose of comparison, however, no significant 
reclassifications have been made except for ‘delayed payment markup’ of Rs 699.581 million 
previously included in ‘energy revenue’ and ‘capacity revenue’, now separately presented 
under Sales as per the requirements of IFRS 15.

	 CHIEF EXECUTIVE 	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER	 DIRECTOR
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FORM OF PROXY

I/We, ________________________________________________________________________________ 

of  _____________________________ CDC A/C  NO. / FOLIO NO. _______________________________ 

being a shareholder of the Nishat Power Limited (The Company) do hereby appoint.

Mr./Miss/Ms. __________________________________________________________________________ 

of  ______________________________ CDC A/C  NO. / FOLIO NO. ______________________________ 

and   or failing him/her _______________________________ of _________________________________

who is/are also a shareholder of the said Company, as my/our proxy in my/our absence and to vote for 
me/us at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 26, 2019 (Saturday) at 
11:30 A.M. at Emporium Mall, The Nishat Hotel, Trade and Finance Centre Block, Near Expo Centre, 
Abdul Haq Road, Johar Town, Lahore, and at any adjournment thereof in the same manner as I/we 
myself/ourselves would vote if personally present at such meeting.

As witness my/our hands in this day of________________ 2019.

Signature _________________________________

Address __________________________________

_________________________________________

CNIC No. _________________________________

No. of shares held __________________________

Witness:-

Name ____________________________________

Address __________________________________

_________________________________________

CNIC No. _________________________________

IMPORTANT:	
a. 	 This instrument appointing a proxy, duly completed, must be received at the registered Office of 

the Company at Nishat House, 53-A, Lawrence Road, Lahore not later than 48 hours before the 
time of holding the Annual General Meeting. For Appointing Proxies.

b. 	 Attested copies of the CNIC or the passport of beneficial owners shall be furnished with the proxy 
form.

c.	 The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the Meeting.
d.	 In case of corporate entity, the Board’s resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature 

shall be furnished along with proxy form to the Company.

Revenue
Stamp

 of Rs. 5/-
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